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 1      HEARING
 2      MR. RHODES: My name is John Rhodes
 3  and I am president and CEO of the New
 4  York State Energy Research and
 5  Development Authority and here today as
 6  Chair of the State Energy Planning Board.
 7      I'd like to introduce to you the
 8  other representative of the Planning
 9  Board joining me today, Catherine Draper,
10  who is with the office of Assemblywoman
11  Paulin.  Other Planning Board members had
12  to cancel for personal reasons at the
13  very last moment, but we have the
14  attention of all the agencies involved in
15  the State Energy Plan process.
16      We are guests today of John Jay
17  College and we wish to thank them.  As
18  guests, I ask that we all maintain
19  decorum and abide by their rules.  The
20  one rule that I know about is no posters
21  on poles, so I think we're good, but I
22  want to go on record with that one.
23      This is a hearing to accept public
24  comments on the 2014 Draft State Energy
25  Plan.  It was approved by the state
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 1      HEARING
 2  energy Planning Board on January 7, 2014,
 3  and made available on the Energy Plan
 4  website, energyplan.ny.gov.  The Plan was
 5  issued in accordance with Article 6 of
 6  the energy law.  Public notice of the
 7  issuance of the Plan and notice of this
 8  public hearing were published in the
 9  State Register on January 29, 2014.  The
10  Draft Plan consists of two volumes.  The
11  first volume provides fifteen key
12  initiatives to advance the state's energy
13  future.  The second volume addresses
14  energy uses, its sources and impacts and
15  provides detailed background that was
16  used to develop the overarching vision
17  and the initiatives in the first volume.
18      This is one of six public hearing
19  sessions that are planned to receive
20  public comments.  Future sessions are
21  scheduled on Long Island, Buffalo and
22  Syracuse.
23      Just quickly on the Plan, the Draft
24  Plan is a result of serious, thoughtful
25  work that envisions an energy system that
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 1      HEARING
 2  is clean, flexible, affordable, resilient
 3  and reliable.  The initiatives to achieve
 4  that vision focus on five areas:
 5  Improving energy affordability;
 6  unleashing the power of private sector
 7  financing; providing a more resilient
 8  flexible power grid; giving customers
 9  more control over their energy use; and
10  alining energy innovation with market
11  demand.
12      Accordingly, the Plan outlines
13  long-term policy goals, long-term action
14  items, and meaningful metrics.
15      Written comments on the Draft Plan
16  will also be accepted besides these
17  spoken comments today through April 30
18  and information on how to submit written
19  comments can be found on the Energy Plan
20  website.  If you decide to submit written
21  comments please do so as soon as possible
22  so they can be carefully considered.  All
23  comments, whether oral or written, will
24  be considered by the Energy Planning
25  Board as it works towards issuance of the
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 1      HEARING
 2  final Energy Plan and all comments count
 3  equally regardless of how they were
 4  received, whether written or in forums
 5  like this one.  The Energy Plan is
 6  targeted issuance of the final plan in
 7  the spring of 2014.
 8      The process today is simple.  Those
 9  who want to comment at this hearing have
10  been asked to sign in upon arrival.  Your
11  name will be called one at a time to
12  speak.  When your name is called please
13  come to the podium to provide your
14  statement.  As a matter of process, I
15  will also call the name of the following
16  speaker, so-to-speak, the on-deck person.
17  A court reporter is here today to provide
18  a transcript to the Planning Board of
19  everything that is said today.  It is
20  important that there be only one speaker
21  at a time so that the reporter can hear
22  clearly.  Speakers should address their
23  comments in the direction of the
24  microphone and please make an effort to
25  speak clearly and slowly.


Min-U-Script® Ellen Grauer Court Reporting Co. LLC (2) Pages 5 - 8







HEARING OF THE DRAFT STATE ENERGY PLAN 
February 20, 2014


Page 9


 1      HEARING
 2      It is also very important those in
 3  attendance be courteous to the speaker so
 4  that his or her comments can be
 5  transcribed accurately by the reporter.
 6      If you provide a statement and have
 7  a written version with you, it would be
 8  helpful if you would provide them either
 9  to us today, or following the hearing so
10  that we can provide those to the court
11  reporter to assist in providing the
12  transcript.
13      All speakers are asked to focus on
14  issues that pertain to the Draft Energy
15  Plan only.  Your comments should be as
16  succinct as possible so we can hear as
17  many as possible.  We have set a
18  five-minute deadline for that purpose,
19  but of course, after everyone has had a
20  chance to address the board, repeat
21  speakers may be afforded another time
22  should time permit.
23      Formal presentations such as power
24  point will not be allowed today.  Again,
25  the goal is to hear from as many of you
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 1      HEARING
 2  as possible.  As this is a statement
 3  hearing, the Planning Board is not
 4  entertaining questions.  This is an
 5  opportunity for us to receive feedback
 6  and hear from you on the Draft Plan.
 7  Those who want to comment but do not want
 8  to speak publicly, today or don't get a
 9  chance to do so, again, can submit
10  written comments on our website.  And
11  again, that is energyplan.ny.gov.
12      With that, I want to thank you
13  again, all, for coming here today and ask
14  if there are any questions about process
15  that we can take at this time?
16      Seeing no questions, I will call
17  our first speaker, Bob Wyman, to be
18  followed by Heidi Gogins.
19      MR. WYMAN: Good morning.  My name
20  is Bob Wyman.  I'm a resident of the
21  upper west side, Manhattan.  Welcome to
22  Manhattan.  And first I'd like to thank
23  you for the work that's been done so far
24  on the draft, but I do hope that you will
25  consider it a draft as opposed to simply
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 1      HEARING
 2  a plan that will be issued that we
 3  comment on, because frankly, the Plan
 4  does need work.  The Plan starts off
 5  well, I think, by recognizing the
 6  significant magnitude of the challenges
 7  that present us in the energy realm.  It
 8  then goes on to call for bold solutions
 9  to match the magnitude of the challenges
10  that we face.  Unfortunately, the Plan as
11  written, the draft as written, doesn't
12  read as a plan presenting bold solutions.
13  I won't call it timid, but it seems very
14  much like business as usual, or just a
15  continuation of things that are already
16  in place.
17      Let me give just one example.  In
18  the supporting documents for the Plan it
19  mentions that NYSERDA, through the first
20  quarter of 2012, had incented somewhere
21  on the order of 200 geothermal systems in
22  the state for heating of homes.  But when
23  we look at what the potential is in the
24  state, if we just look, say at New York
25  City, we've got about a million, a little
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 1      HEARING
 2  over a million buildings in the City.
 3  Tremendous amount of buildings.  Studies
 4  by Professor Modi's students at Columbia
 5  have shown that somewhere on the order of
 6  800,000 of those buildings could in fact
 7  be heated fossil-fuel free, without oil,
 8  without natural gas, whatever, with
 9  geothermal heat pumps.  A bold plan would
10  say not simply that we acknowledge that
11  the fossil-fuel free or carbon-free
12  heating solutions are being installed at
13  the rate of maybe a couple of hundred,
14  maybe a thousand a year, but a bold plan
15  would say that rather than continuing the
16  old technologies that we know about, what
17  we really ought to be doing is putting
18  that money into building a future which
19  is fossil-fuel free.
20      Now, I think one of the things that
21  concerns me as well is when we look at
22  the Plan, the Plan seems overly focused
23  on electricity.  It seems to be almost an
24  electricity plan rather than an energy
25  plan, and one of the ways we see that is
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 1      HEARING
 2  if we look at the metrics.  A key metric
 3  in the affordability section is keeping
 4  electric bills low but unfortunately,
 5  that metric, keeping electric bills low,
 6  can potentially work against other things
 7  that we know should be done and that are
 8  supposedly encouraged by the Plan itself.
 9  For instance, if we were to switch from
10  using gasoline to electricity for our
11  automobiles we would in fact be
12  increasing our electric bills even though
13  we would be decreasing our energy bills.
14  Similarly, if a home switches from using
15  oil or gas to heat itself and switches
16  over to geothermal heat pumps, which are
17  fossil-fuel free, they would increase
18  their electric bill more dramatically
19  than decreasing their energy bill.  So I
20  would suggest that the metric of keeping
21  electric bills low is in fact
22  counterproductive.  It may be that we
23  want to keep the cost of electricity low
24  but the metric for an the Energy Plan
25  should not be focused on electric bills,
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 1      HEARING
 2  it should be focused on energy bills, for
 3  whatever the unit that's planned.
 4      I also would like to point out
 5  something which I think is a fairly
 6  dramatic misrepresentation, although it's
 7  a very common one of what geothermal heat
 8  pumps are all about.  I won't bore you
 9  with the technology, I think you
10  understand this stuff.  But in the
11  supporting documents it says geothermal
12  technology is an energy efficiency
13  technology.  A lot of people say that,
14  okay, but I think it's a fairly
15  significant misunderstanding of what
16  geothermal heat pump technology is all
17  about.  Yes, it's true that if you look
18  at the literature you'll see that these
19  heat pumps typically run at co-efficiency
20  performance of three to four, that means
21  efficiencies of 300 percent to 400
22  percent.  But when you look at something
23  which has an efficiency of 300 percent to
24  400 percent of heating you have to be
25  thinking there's more than efficiency
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 1      HEARING
 2  going on here.  If, for every kilowatt of
 3  energy that you put into the system you
 4  get 4 kilowatts power, 4 kilowatts of
 5  thermal energy equivalent, where did the
 6  other three come from?  Clearly, what is
 7  happening here is an amplification of the
 8  input power, but actually what's
 9  happening is the generation of renewable
10  energy.  That energy is coming from
11  somewhere.  It's typically renewable
12  energy.
13      So I think we should be thinking
14  about geothermal heat pumps as renewable
15  energy, not just simply as efficiency.
16  And we should recognize geothermal heat
17  pumps, the way their used, essentially by
18  taking heat out of buildings during the
19  summer when it's hot, storing it in the
20  ground so that it can be recovered in the
21  winter, essentially a solar thermal
22  technology which uses the building as a
23  solar collector rather than using panels
24  on the roof.  So I would suggest that in
25  the draft that hopefully you can address
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 1      HEARING
 2  the question of keeping energy bills low,
 3  whether or not electric bills are low,
 4  and also, please address the fact that
 5  geothermal heat pumps are not given the
 6  attention they should be given and also
 7  the technology is misrepresented as an
 8  energy technology when in fact it is a
 9  technology for generating renewable
10  energy.  Thank you very much.
11      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
12      Heidi Gogins, if I'm reading the
13  name correctly, and after that, Toby
14  Horn.
15      MS. GOGINS: You're the first
16  person to pronounce my name correctly for
17  a long time.
18      MR. RHODES: Compliments on your
19  handwriting.
20      MS. GOGINS: Don't ask me to do
21  math.  I'm going to sort of face sideways
22  so I can see everybody and I can see you.
23      First of all, I want to say that
24  it's a beautiful looking plan, a lot of
25  nice pictures, a lot of nice feeling,
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 1      HEARING
 2  statements, but I feel like it's not a
 3  plan.  A plan at this point, where we
 4  stand with climate change, needs
 5  imagination, bold initiatives and a
 6  refusal to perpetuate the status quo and
 7  business as usual.  This document does
 8  not do that.  This document has a first
 9  volume, lots of pictures; volume two, and
10  volume two has a lot of forecasts in the
11  absence of planning, and the forecasts
12  seem to be based on what the current
13  reality is rather than where do we want
14  to go?
15      I want to know where volume three
16  is.  Volume three would have really
17  innovative ideas for moving away from the
18  kind of energy generation that we have
19  now.  There is much too big component of
20  natural gas in this plan and it's very
21  craftily -- I don't want to, you know,
22  that's a loaded word, but I think it's
23  kind of stated in a way that doesn't make
24  it clear.  First of all, natural gas is
25  not clean energy.  It is not renewable.
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 1      HEARING
 2  It is a fossil fuel.  I think what's
 3  important is nobody anywhere in this plan
 4  uses the word methane and I kind of want
 5  to know where the word methane is.
 6  Methane is the worst greenhouse gas than
 7  cO2.  If you use a time line of the next
 8  50 years switching to methane doesn't do
 9  anybody any good and it just makes a lot
10  of people sick and causes a lot of
11  environmental damage.  Um, what's going
12  to be an endangered thing in the next 50
13  years is water, water, and we're not
14  lacking for energy, we're not lacking for
15  ways of generating energy from
16  renewables.  They're doing it in Germany,
17  they're doing it all over the world.
18  They're not doing it as much as they
19  should.  But we need to be leading.  New
20  York State should be leading and setting
21  an example, not perpetuating the bad
22  policies of the other countries or other
23  states.  Basically, this document
24  predicts fracking in New York State,
25  volume two page 88, which I think is
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 1      HEARING
 2  criminal.
 3      (Applause.)
 4      SPEAKER #2: So what is clean
 5  energy?  It's not shale gas, whose
 6  extraction, transportation and processing
 7  releases high levels of methane and
 8  causes air and water contamination.
 9      I want to give you my copy of a
10  little plan that was done at Stanford and
11  Cornell by Professors Jacobson -- let's
12  see, let me read all these guys, Bob
13  Howarth, Mark Delucchi.  This was a
14  peer-reviewed fantastic 2030 plan which
15  shows how New York State can completely
16  move to renewables by 2030.  No -- I'll
17  just read you, Won't the transition be
18  expensive?  No, many forms of renewable
19  energy are already cost effective
20  compared to fossil fuels, even without
21  considering the cost to health and global
22  warming.  What do we want to spend money
23  on?  We can spend it now or put it off,
24  and we'll going to have to spend it
25  anyway to mitigate damage and pay for


Page 20


 1      HEARING
 2  cleanups like for Sandy.  I think this is
 3  a question of what do we believe in and
 4  do we have the guts, and the balls,
 5  excuse my language, to do what we know is
 6  right.  What we know is right.  This is a
 7  moral issue.  It's not political.  It's
 8  not, you know, what's the easiest thing
 9  to do.  We managed to convert from,
10  unfortunately, horses to cars in about 20
11  years, you know.  So it's not we can't do
12  big technological innovation.  People are
13  doing it, they're doing it, so we need to
14  do it, and I'd like to be proud to be a
15  New Yorker and say that we led the way
16  for the country.
17      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
18      Toby Horn, followed by Christopher
19  Raup.
20      MS. HORN: Good morning, my name is
21  Toby Horn.  I'm a real estate broker and
22  I'm representing myself as an individual
23  citizen of New York City.
24      We are a visual society.  We use
25  Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, so it only
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 1      HEARING
 2  holds, so it's only reasonable when you
 3  talk about renewable energies we talk
 4  about wind and solar, but there is
 5  another renewable energy we should be
 6  talking about and that's geothermal
 7  ground source heat pumps.  Lester Brown
 8  and Jeffrey Sacks have acknowledged
 9  geothermal ground source heat pumps and
10  believes that we should be including them
11  in our dialogue.  Renewables are being
12  addressed now but we don't have the
13  complete picture, okay?  We really need
14  to discuss the geothermal source ground
15  pumps in our dialogues and hopefully,
16  after today it will be addressed.
17      Fossil fuels have been around for
18  150 years.  I think their time is up and
19  we need to discuss renewables.  They say
20  we can get a cleaner fossil fuel.  In my
21  opinion that's like saying you can be
22  like a little bit pregnant rather than
23  just being pregnant.  My opinion, there
24  is no such thing as a cleaner fossil
25  fuel.  We need to get rid of all the
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 1      HEARING
 2  fossil fuels.  We need to adjust the
 3  renewables and we need to do it now
 4  because if we want our planet to exist we
 5  need to change our way of thinking and
 6  start addressing solar, wind and geo
 7  thermal, and geothermal, and to me, it's
 8  ground source heat pumps.  I hope
 9  everyone looks it up and starts
10  investigating their other alternatives.
11  Thank you.
12      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
13      Christopher Raup followed by Jill
14  Weiner.
15      MR. RAUP: Good morning.  My name
16  IS Christopher Raup, manager of State
17  Regulatory Affairs for Con Edison.  Thank
18  you for the opportunity to provide these
19  remarks on behalf of Con Edison and
20  Orange & Rockland Utilities.  Our company
21  is supportive of the development of the
22  State Energy Plan as a road map to meet
23  the future energy needs of the people of
24  New York.
25      Con Edison serves 3.1 million
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 1      HEARING
 2  electric customers and 1.1 natural gas
 3  customers in New York City and
 4  Westchester, as well as 1,700 steam
 5  customers in Manhattan.  Our Orange and
 6  Rockland affiliate serves 300,000
 7  electric customers and 130,000 gas
 8  customers in Rockland, Orange and
 9  Sullivan Counties in New York.  Last year
10  Con Edison and O&R served 43 percent of
11  the state's peak electric load.
12      Con Edison supports the stated
13  focus of the State Energy Plan, on energy
14  affordability; enhancing resilience and
15  flexibility of the electric grid;
16  customer choice; energy innovation
17  aligned with market demand; and using
18  private sector financing to achieve clean
19  energy goals.
20      While we support the focus of the
21  Plan, the details of its implementation
22  are important.  We'd like to suggest some
23  principles to guide implementation so
24  that the Plan achieves benefits for our
25  customers.
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 1      HEARING
 2      The first principle we'd like to
 3  emphasize is affordability.  We note the
 4  focus of the Plan and we appreciate it.
 5  The affordability of energy is critical
 6  to our customers despite changes to how
 7  customers use energy and the type of
 8  energy they choose.  We should avoid
 9  incentive structures that shift costs
10  from one group of customers to another.
11  Incentives should encourage technologies
12  that benefit all customers, and should
13  have a goal of affordability for all
14  customers.  Affordability should also
15  consider reliability, resiliency and
16  clean energy needs.
17      Taxes and fees have a major impact
18  on affordability; 30 percent of a typical
19  Con Edison bill is comprised of taxes and
20  fees.
21      We oppose to using the utility bill
22  to collect general revenues, as this
23  reduces affordability.  Moreover, such
24  policies encourage customers to make
25  decisions simply to avoid these charges.
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 1      HEARING
 2      Finally, the last principle we
 3  emphasize is reliability.  Reliability:
 4  Reliability electrical service is very
 5  important to our customers.  We have very
 6  strong reliability performance and are
 7  taking steps to improve that performance
 8  in extreme weather, to strengthen our
 9  systems and to improve our ability to
10  restore customers when weather affects
11  service.  This includes for our overhead
12  system, making investments in selective
13  underground distribution circuits, and
14  for our underground system making
15  investments in elevating equipment and
16  flood barriers.
17      Con Edison and O&R should be
18  considered partners when implementing the
19  many initiatives in the Plan because we
20  bring special skills and experience to
21  the table.  We interact with our
22  customers every day.  Our customers
23  talked to us 15 million times in 2013 and
24  we are taking steps to improve our
25  communications with them, including using
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 1      HEARING
 2  mobile applications, social media and
 3  expanding the use of e-mail and text
 4  messaging.  We understand the challenge
 5  of building the infrastructure.  We are
 6  integrating customer resources into our
 7  system and are planning for the future
 8  handled by forecasting savings from
 9  demand side management.  This includes
10  extensive experience helping our
11  customers with energy efficiency measures
12  and we're actively considering what the
13  utility of the future will look like and
14  how our customer choices will impact the
15  future business model.
16      While the Plan puts forth numerous
17  initiatives I'd like to highlight just a
18  few that are significant to Con Edison
19  and our cases.  Updating the electric and
20  gas deliver systems to insure service
21  quality and reliability, we strongly
22  support this initiative and as noted
23  previously, we're making significant
24  investments in our energy delivery system
25  to enhance reliability and resiliency.
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 1      HEARING
 2      Facilitating new energy business
 3  models:  We support this initiative and
 4  in particular, we support providing
 5  flexibility to utilities to provide a
 6  variety of services to customers, to own
 7  or operate distributed resources, or
 8  both.
 9      Realign energy efficiency policies
10  to accelerate the pace of deployment:  We
11  support reexamining policies regarding
12  the State's energy efficiency programs,
13  and are working closely with the State to
14  increase the effectiveness of our
15  programs.  Energy efficiency continues to
16  be the least-cost method of moving to a
17  clean energy future, and we believe
18  streamlining policies will result in
19  better programs for our customers.
20      And finally, establishing the New
21  York Green Bank to mobilize private
22  sector capital:  We generally support
23  this recommendation.  The development of
24  the Green Bank could be significant, in
25  particular, it's vision of moving state
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 1      HEARING
 2  support for renewable energy from
 3  incentive-based programs to
 4  financing-based programs.  But we should
 5  take care that the Green Bank addresses
 6  the credit needs of all customer
 7  segments.  Returning to the focus on
 8  affordability, the State should seek ways
 9  to complete the Green Bank's
10  capitalization without increasing fees on
11  customer bills.
12      In closing, we look forward with
13  our customers in New York State in the
14  implementation of the Plan.  Working
15  together, Con Edison can consider and
16  meet the State's objectives in providing
17  our customers with a strong energy
18  infrastructure that is safe, reliable,
19  clean and affordable.  Thank you.
20      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
21      Jill Wiener?
22      MS. WEINER: It's Jill Wiener,
23  W-I-E-N-E-R.  I work with the all
24  volunteer grassroots Catskill Citizens
25  For Safe Energy.  I live in Sullivan
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 1      HEARING
 2  County, the New York side of the Delaware
 3  River basin.  This is my closest hearing.
 4  I'm two hours from home.  I did take a
 5  bus to reduce my carbon footprint, an
 6  hour to get to the bus.  So, I'm going to
 7  start off speaking on behalf of the 53
 8  organizations that requested an extension
 9  of the public comment hearing on this
10  plan and offer our thanks for that
11  extension, but we still do have some
12  outstanding requests, and I have about
13  five of them.
14      So, one further hearing, further
15  scheduled hearing should be changed to
16  evening hours to make them more
17  accessible to the public.
18      Two, providing the reference and
19  unpublished, so attainable greenhouse gas
20  inventory and draft energy efficiency and
21  renewable resource potential documents.
22  Um, so this plan as it is, is now
23  incomplete.
24      Providing public information
25  session so that clarifying questions can
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 2  be asked and hopefully answered.  We also
 3  request additional hearings in the Hudson
 4  Valley, Finger Lakes.  These are two
 5  areas that are -- you were mandated to do
 6  six hearings, but there's no reason not
 7  to do more.  The identity also of the
 8  public members of the energy Planning
 9  Board are unknown and we think that we
10  should know who those people are; and
11  frankly, this plan should be presented in
12  its entirety with all relevant documents
13  publicly available, and until it is it's
14  really unreasonable to close a comment
15  period.  The public and our climate
16  actually deserve a lot more, and I have a
17  letter with further details that I'll
18  hand over to you, Mr. Rhodes.
19      So the New York State Energy Plan
20  is a report with goals but by definition
21  it is not a plan.  There's no road map to
22  get us to the stated goals to reduce
23  greenhouse emissions by 2050 from the 80
24  percent -- I'm sorry, by 80 percent from
25  1990 levels.  The document is really like
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 2  a New Year's resolution, to lose 15
 3  pounds by February 10, but to eat
 4  chocolate and chips and sit on the couch
 5  and wait for the pounds to melt away, I
 6  can assure you it didn't work, it never
 7  does.  And it's good to have goals.  But
 8  the goals must be properly spelled and
 9  I'm going to go back to the diet
10  metaphor.  We cannot cut our carbon
11  emissions and replace those missing
12  calories with more fat from methane shale
13  gas.  We just cannot.  It will not work
14  for our fragile climate.  Our collective
15  pants are splitting here and we need a
16  real diet and it may not be all that
17  pleasant, but we need it.  We cannot rely
18  on a swap-out.  We cannot substitute
19  these carbon for shale gas and think
20  we're going to achieve a result that will
21  benefit our system.  In fact, we are
22  going to make things much, much worse for
23  the carbon, and beyond the climate, it
24  makes it worse for the public health
25  social structure and the economy for
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 2  communities that are forced to host
 3  fracking, fracking infrastructure, and
 4  the suggested new converted power plants
 5  that will run on frack shale gas.  The
 6  document does refer to natural gas as
 7  clean, as a clean source of energy.  It
 8  is not.  Um, natural gas, which we should
 9  officially really start to refer to as as
10  frack gas or shale gas, is methane.
11  Methane is a scientifically proven potent
12  greenhouse gas and it's really simply
13  math.  Fracking equal methane, methane
14  equals climate change.  There was
15  something in the document, we were happy
16  to see it and I am not still calling it a
17  plan.  It is a document.  I'm happy to
18  see that the state has its eye on ramping
19  up renewables and efficiency by
20  strengthening building codes and audits,
21  but there seems to be some sort of
22  schizophrenic disconnect in this document
23  promotes the using of frack shale for
24  home heating and as a transportation
25  fuel.  Um, Adam Brandt, a leading author
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 2  of "Methane, Leaks from North American
 3  Natural Gas Systems," says that switching
 4  from diesel to nat gas, that's not a good
 5  policy from a climate perspective, and we
 6  agree there are alternatives including
 7  fast-charging electric buses.  By
 8  suggesting conversion to natural gas for
 9  home heating the State is promoting an
10  unsustainable energy with price swings,
11  and as we've seen from recent propane
12  shortages, possible unreliable access.
13  The State is also basically making a
14  sales pitch for the industry creating
15  more nat gas customers.  Additionally,
16  plan marginalizes and crowds out the
17  renewable energy sector.
18      There is a plan to convert New York
19  State to energy infrastructure.  My
20  friend, Heidi, gave you the short
21  version.  I have the full report here,
22  and we can do this.  It's feasible,
23  economic, healthy and sustainable.
24      Finally, and I'm just about done.
25  Port Ambrose is an LNG terminal that's
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 2  proposed for the coastal waterways off
 3  Long Beach.  It's a project of Liberty
 4  Natural Gas represented by an executive,
 5  Roger Whelan.  It's also sponsoring an
 6  import terminal off the coast of
 7  Rockaway.  Mr. Whelan, on behalf of
 8  Liberty, publically states that Port
 9  Ambrose will be an import terminal here
10  as well.  It doesn't take much
11  imagination to come to the conclusion
12  that it's going to be an export terminal
13  here.
14      This terminal will increase the
15  pressure to frack if it's an export to
16  frack New York and to increase dangerous
17  fracking in other communities on the
18  Marcellus fault and if Port Ambrose is an
19  import terminal, it will bring more
20  methane into the greater metro area.
21  Methane has no place in the Plan for New
22  York unless the Plan is to harm the
23  climate and I'll speak directly to the
24  governor:  Governor Cuomo, you have the
25  ability and responsibility to veto Port


Page 35


 1      HEARING
 2  Ambrose under maritime law and we want
 3  you to do that immediately.
 4      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
 5      MS. VAN DOLSON: Good morning, my
 6  name is Susan Van Dolson.  I'm with two
 7  groups, Westchester for Change, an
 8  all-volunteer grassroots organization,
 9  and Stop the Algonquin Pipeline
10  Expansion, also an all-volunteer
11  grassroots organization.
12      Just about sixteen months ago New
13  York City was hit with a storm that
14  devastated much of the region.  Its
15  short-term and long-term impact is
16  imprinted on the minds of all of us.
17  Many New Yorkers thought living through
18  such a tremendous storm would finally
19  help policy-makers to move New York State
20  away from reliance on fossil fuel, both
21  because of the impact on climate and
22  because of the acute need to create a
23  more locally distributed power system.
24  It's very disappointing that the New York
25  State Draft Energy Plan does not provide
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 2  a solid pathway away from reliance on
 3  fossil fuels, nor does it provide some
 4  concrete goals that show a commitment to
 5  the future.  For example, the Draft Plan
 6  doesn't specify how the State will
 7  achieve a goal set by Governor Paterson
 8  to reduce emissions 80 percent by 2050.
 9  Though the Draft provides some incentive
10  to develop some renewable energy, and to
11  create some local distribution system,
12  these gains are undermined by an
13  increased dependence on methane gas and
14  fossil fuels.  The Draft Plan operates on
15  a false premise that methane is clean.
16  Methane emissions from shale gas and
17  construction projects are significant
18  contributors to climate change.  Methane
19  is 72 times more powerful than cO2 and
20  greenhouse gas.  The final plan should
21  require measurement and tracking of all
22  autopsy greenhouse emissions, including
23  those from the full life cycle shale gas
24  development.  There should have been a
25  specific schedule for the reduction of
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 2  total greenhouse gas emissions with
 3  benchmarks at regular intervals.  There
 4  are multitudes proposed gas
 5  infrastructure projects that require
 6  permits to be granted by New York State
 7  agencies.  The New York State Energy
 8  Board should be taking a holistic
 9  approach when evaluating these projects
10  by looking at long-term economic and
11  health impacts for new and expanded
12  pipelines, gas-fired power plants,
13  storage facilities and liquified natural
14  gas plants.  New York's energy policy
15  should not be predicated on facilitating
16  the gas company's needs to move the gas
17  from the Marcellus shale region to and
18  through New York, then for export to the
19  global market where gas will command a
20  higher price.  Gas infrastructure imposes
21  health and safety risks to New Yorkers,
22  adds to climate change, and ties up
23  investment dollars that could be better
24  used for wind, water and solar projects.
25  This plan does not take into account the
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 2  health and safety impact and associated
 3  costs from all these projects.
 4      One gas pipeline project is the
 5  Williams Transco Rockaway Lateral which
 6  is proposed to cross an extremely
 7  vulnerable area of the City exactly where
 8  Sandy took aim.
 9      Another ill-conceived project is
10  the Port Ambrose off the coast of Long
11  Beach.  LNG facilities are a terrorist
12  target, explosive hazard.  Governor Cuomo
13  has the power to reject the LNG facility
14  and the PSC should and could streamline
15  the creating of a wind farm proposed for
16  the same area.
17      Government Cuomo's Draft Energy
18  Plan called for Indian Point nuclear
19  facility not to be relicensed.  What did
20  they suggest instead?  They called for a
21  gas-fired power plant such as the CPV
22  power plant that's near the end of its
23  permitting process.  A PSC hearing will
24  be held next Tuesday in Middletown.  This
25  polluting plant is not needed and should


Page 39


 1      HEARING
 2  be rejected.  It promotes fracking.  It
 3  is not clean.  To support this you should
 4  go to the Riverkeeper's website press
 5  release about extending comission by the
 6  Natural Resource Defense Council by
 7  Synapse.  The press release states that
 8  Indian Point can be shut down without any
 9  -- one additional cubic foot of natural
10  gas.  This plan should not include
11  gas-fired power plants and associated
12  infrastructure.  In contrast to these gas
13  infrastructure projects, Dr. Mark
14  Jacobson, a visionary scientist and
15  economist has proposed solutions project,
16  which you heard about, which provides a
17  road map for New York State to produce
18  one hundred percent of our energy for
19  electricity, transportation, heating and
20  cooling, using wind, water and solar for
21  efficiency and conservation.  This plan
22  reduces energy demand by 36.4 percent.
23  It creates 254,000 jobs that would last
24  for at least 40 years.  The Plan also
25  predicts 2,500 less air pollution deaths
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 2  and savings of energy health and climate
 3  costs at $4,100 per person.
 4      In conclusion, I would like to
 5  state that I object to the fact that some
 6  components of this energy plan were not
 7  released in time for these hearing.  How
 8  fair is that for the public?  Are we
 9  ready to believe that the public's
10  opinion will be taking serious?  I'm here
11  today to say that New Yorkers deserve
12  better.  Governor Cuomo can be a leader
13  in the nation by proposing an energy plan
14  to reject the increased use of climate
15  change and fossil fuels.  New York lived
16  through Sandy.  We are tough.  We can
17  prove to the world we don't need frack
18  gas and that we embrace energy policy
19  that promotes economic growth powered
20  without fossil fuel.  The decision-making
21  and commitment to succeed must begin
22  today, not 10 years from now and not 20
23  years from now.  We don't have time to
24  wait.
25      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
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 2      Amy Allen, to be followed by Susan
 3  Filgueras.
 4      MS. ALLEN: Amy Allen, Westchester
 5  County Association.  Westchester County
 6  Association is a business membership
 7  organization focus on the economic
 8  vitality of Westchester County and the
 9  surrounding region.
10      We recognize that energy policy is
11  a critical component of the instate
12  economy affecting business and our entire
13  community.  That is why it is important
14  for the State to have an energy plan that
15  creates pragmatic solutions to meet the
16  short and long-term needs for heating
17  homes, fueling businesses and driving job
18  creation.  The creation of an energy plan
19  is an important step for New York State
20  creating low-cost, reliable and
21  environmentally conscious energy requires
22  policy and infrastructure improvement
23  that encourages private investment in an
24  instate generation using a range of fuel
25  sources.


Page 42


 1      HEARING
 2      Electric infrastructure in New York
 3  State is currently insufficient to
 4  exploit our present instate generating
 5  capacity.  While downstate businesses and
 6  residential ratepayers face high prices
 7  due to high demand, upstate generators
 8  operate at partial capacity because there
 9  is no ability to move their surplus
10  capability.  The result is that the
11  downstate utility import expensive
12  out-of-state power through overpriced
13  transmission patchwork projects.
14      Despite the State's attempt to
15  reduce energy consumption it has actually
16  increased in recent years, and while
17  conservation and great efficiency are
18  critically important, there are
19  fundamentally two ways to meet this
20  growing demand:  One, is in ways that
21  send our money out of state and benefit
22  others; or two, by facilitating the
23  economic benefits of the energy
24  production here at home.  At present, the
25  State bypasses upstate generators to
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 2  bring power downstate from Canada, via
 3  the Champlain Hudson Power Express, CHPE,
 4  bypassing instate generators in favor of
 5  rescuing Hydro-Quebec investors from the
 6  expensive boondoggle of their own does
 7  not amount to sound energy policy.  It is
 8  imperative that the State cease its pet
 9  project to build the CHPE and focus on
10  pragmatic strategies achieving our
11  larger, common goals of creating
12  inexpensive, reliable energy for New York
13  State with minimal environmental impacts.
14      The reliability and affordability
15  of electricity throughout New York State
16  should be the first priority of any
17  sensible state energy plan.  This means
18  creating a regulatory environment that
19  facilitates private investment, keeps New
20  York money in the state, and continues to
21  lower our carbon output.  It also means
22  lowering our electrical infrastructure to
23  move electricity between regions while
24  growing the economy and creating jobs.
25  While these solutions aren't simple, they
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 2  will provide consistency for businesses
 3  an increase reliability.
 4      The Westchester County Association
 5  thanks the State for this opportunity to
 6  contribute to the state's energy plan.
 7      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
 8  Susan Filgueras, followed by Paulette
 9  Osborne.
10      MS. FILGUERAS: I have a lot to
11  say.  This is my second trip.  I was in
12  Brooklyn yesterday because I have an
13  awful lot to say and five minutes doesn't
14  do it.  I'm from Rockland County, the
15  town of Stony Point, and we are one of
16  the towns that's part of the community
17  reconstruction zone program by the
18  government that got beaten up by the
19  hurricane, the October snowstorm.  We are
20  also one of the counties that is a host
21  community to energy infrastructure and
22  one of the comments I made yesterday is
23  that there is no meeting scheduled for
24  Rockland, Orange, Putnam, Green, Duchess,
25  and we're the counties that host the
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 1      HEARING
 2  infrastructure in New York State.  We
 3  need to be heard.  Um, and after
 4  listening to everybody today I thought,
 5  oh boy, I'm going to get up here and say
 6  this, but I am.  We need to build in New
 7  York, for New York by New York and create
 8  New York jobs.  We lost two power plants
 9  in Rockland County.  Rockland County is a
10  hair's breath from bankruptcy.  The
11  people who own those plants realized that
12  it's cheaper to operate them as a loss,
13  sell off their air emissions credits and
14  I don't know what they're doing with
15  their water intake credit, and charge the
16  towns back a tax certiorari.  Do you know
17  Rockland County is paying $11 million a
18  year in interest.  We haven't touched the
19  principal, because they claim their
20  property is not worth what it once was.
21  We need businesses that come to New York
22  that mean to build in New York to become
23  New York to support one of the greatest
24  labor forces we've got and it's one of
25  the best.  We can build it bigger,
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 2  better, with far more experienced people
 3  than almost anywhere else in the world,
 4  and I believe that, because my uncle, my
 5  brother, my cousin, my father, my mother
 6  need jobs.  We can't export.
 7      I did bring you some new pictures.
 8  Rockland County is host to this tiny
 9  little island up near Bear Mountain
10  called Iona Island.  It's a bird
11  sanctuary, and as the bird sanctuary it
12  is an eagle sanctuary.  I'm sorry, I
13  apologize, I couldn't print them out for
14  everybody.  The American Bald Eagle nest
15  in Iona Island and right now they've come
16  out of their nest and they're
17  magnificent.  The Power Express is going
18  to blast underneath Iona Island so that
19  they can bring their extension cord from
20  Quebec to Queens.  I brought you another
21  picture, did a small history lesson last
22  night.  Stony Point is home to one of the
23  most resounding wins in a battle in the
24  Revolutionary War.  The Champlain Hudson
25  Power Express plans to dig our
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 2  revolutionary heros up, to tear that
 3  cemetery asunder and put their extension
 4  cords.  They've told their job supervisor
 5  they won't, but the documents they
 6  submitted to the Public Service
 7  Commission, the Department of Energy, and
 8  the Army Corps of Engineers show the
 9  installation going through my cemetery.
10  These are the people who fought and died
11  for my right to stand here.  They fought
12  and died for your right to be elected and
13  sit here.  They fought for Governor
14  Cuomo's right to be elected Governor and
15  we're going to dig them up?  I object to
16  that.
17      The Champlain Hudson Power Express
18  promised jobs.  The Department of Energy
19  was very clear, 26 jobs.  They promised
20  construction jobs.  They're going to
21  import their labor, their construction
22  labor, because the machinery they're
23  using is highly sophisticated and needs
24  an educated labor force.
25      They promised savings -- oh, wait,
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 2  that's not to the enduser, that's to the
 3  producer, to Blackstone, the very people
 4  who bankrupted the Merritt, Bowline,
 5  Lovett plants, the two plants that
 6  bankrupted Rockland County and we're
 7  paying them $11 eleven million not to do
 8  anything with that very valuable
 9  resource.
10      To end, I've been reading,
11  studying, following the New York State
12  Energy Highway.  Now we got the New York
13  Energy Plan.  I didn't know about the
14  hearing because I don't read the Federal
15  Register with my coffee.  Education,
16  listening to every one of these people,
17  education and engaging the public is so
18  important, and if we can't be heard we're
19  the people who have to pay the bill.
20  We're the host community.  We are the
21  people whose property will be eminent
22  domain for a Canadian transmission line,
23  no jobs, taking our taxes, and they're
24  going to dig up our American heroes.
25  Please, somebody hear us.  Thank you.
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 2      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
 3      Paulette Osborne followed by Laura
 4  McGill.
 5      MS. OSBORNE: I yield my time to
 6  someone else.
 7      MR. RHODES: Are you Laura?
 8      MS. McGILL: Yes.  I also want to
 9  say a few things but I'm going to yield
10  my time, too.
11      Anyway, anyway, I'm just here.  I'm
12  a volunteer.  I go out.  I feel like I'm
13  out everyday trying to do some rally
14  against fracking, Sierra Club, Food and
15  Water Watch.  I'm worried about the wine
16  in upstate New York, to add a little
17  levity to this, so that's my big concern.
18  I think anybody who votes on this plan or
19  has anything to do, including Governor
20  Cuomo, before they do anything they
21  should take a trip to Dimock,
22  Pennsylvania.  I went there and was very,
23  very affected by what I saw and I think
24  that everybody sits in their ivory tower
25  and thinks it's not going to happen to us
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 2  and it's not going to happen in New York
 3  State, but it is.  The water, all the
 4  water that's used for fracking, it's just
 5  a waste of water because these are not
 6  renewable, this is not renewable energy.
 7  So I saw this and like I said, I would
 8  hope that anybody that's in power, I
 9  don't know if you've been to Dimock,
10  Pennsylvania.  There's other places but I
11  think that's about the closest, I wish
12  that somebody, or the people we met
13  there, that they have their water that
14  looks yellow.  I mean, I wouldn't touch
15  it let alone -- I don't know, I wouldn't
16  touch it.  I have a picture of me holding
17  it but to think that that could happen
18  here, when I live in New York City and we
19  have the best water, I feel, in the
20  United States.  I lived out in L.A. for a
21  while, we couldn't take it out of the
22  tap.  We had to filter it, and to think
23  that's going to be, plus everything else
24  that's going to be affected.  Like I
25  said, I'm very emotional and not as well
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 2  read or eloquent as the other people that
 3  have spoken, but I really, really suggest
 4  that you also watch Gasland and Gasland 2
 5  and also go to Dimock, Pennsylvania.  If
 6  anybody has anything else to say they can
 7  use the rest of my time.
 8      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
 9      Betty Trentlyon, if I have that
10  right, followed by Eric Weltman.
11      MS. TRENTLYON: I'll pass.
12      MR. RHODES: Is that Betty
13  passing?  Eric Weltman, or Wolfrin
14  followed by Karen Cherry.
15      MR. WELTMAN: My name is Eric
16  Weltman and I'm a senior organizer with
17  Food and Water Watch, a national
18  non-profit organization out of their
19  Brooklyn office.  I'm here to urge
20  Governor Cuomo to ban fracking, lead New
21  York in a transition to renewable energy,
22  as well as to veto the proposed Port
23  Ambrose liquified natural gas facility.
24      In October 2012 Hurricane Sandy
25  slammed New York devastating communities
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 2  across the region.  Even today, many
 3  victims of this climate disaster are
 4  struggling to pick up the pieces and put
 5  their homes and neighborhoods back
 6  together.
 7      The question today, the question
 8  today is whether governing Cuomo will be
 9  a leader in preventing further climate
10  catastrophe.  The question today, the
11  question today is whether Governor Cuomo
12  will lead New York in a transition to
13  renewable energy or deepen our reliance
14  on the dirty fossil fuels that caused
15  tragedies like Hurricane Sandy.
16  Unfortunately, Governor Cuomo's current
17  Draft Plan would maintain New York's
18  dependence on fossil fuel.  It would
19  enable a massive dole out of pipelines,
20  compressor stations, storage facilities,
21  power plants and other infrastructure and
22  it would rely on fracking in other states
23  and stimulate the demand for even more
24  fracking.  Already, New York's landscape
25  is becoming littered with dirty dangerous
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 2  infrastructure projects, from a
 3  compressor station in Minisink to the
 4  pipeline here in Manhattan and even more
 5  being proposed, such as the storage
 6  facility in Seneca Lake and liquified
 7  natural gas terminal off of Long Island.
 8  These projects risk public safety, our
 9  communities and the environment and
10  enable fracking which threatens our
11  water, our air, our food, and our
12  climate.
13      The threat of further climate
14  catastrophe is particularly stark here in
15  New York City.  Burning natural gas
16  releases dangerous levels of carbon
17  dioxide.  More problematic, fracking for
18  natural gas releases massive amounts of
19  methane.  Methane is an extremely potent
20  greenhouse gas, 333 times more efficient
21  in trapping heat than carbon dioxide over
22  a hundred years, and about a hundred
23  times more potent than carbon dioxide
24  over 20 years.
25      The simple truth, the simple truth
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 2  is Governor Cuomo can not lien on climate
 3  change and allow fracking in New York.
 4  The simple truth, the simple truth is
 5  Governor Cuomo cannot lien on climate
 6  change and rely on frack gas from other
 7  states.  If he has any hope, if Governor
 8  Cuomo has any genuine, realistic
 9  expectation of attaining his goal of an
10  80 percent reduction in greenhouse gases
11  he cannot, must not, allow fracking in
12  New York.  The bottom line, this is the
13  bottom line:  New York should not spend
14  another dime on deepening our dependence
15  on natural gas or enabling fracking here
16  or anywhere.  Not one more dime, not one
17  more dime, not even one more penny on
18  deepening our reliance on natural gas.
19      Governor Cuomo should ban fracking
20  in New York.  He should veto the Port
21  Ambrose LNG facility and use the full
22  extent of his authority to stop other
23  infrastructure project, and he should
24  lead, Governor Cuomo should lead on
25  preventing climate change by producing a
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 2  plan that transitions New York to a
 3  clean, renewable energy future.  The here
 4  plan today does not do that.
 5      MR. RHODES: Karen Cherry, followed
 6  by Gregory Grant.
 7      MS. CHERRY: Good morning.  My name
 8  is Karen Sherry.  I am a Brooklyn
 9  resident and leader of Brooklyn, New
10  York.  On behalf of the residents and
11  children and family I stand here today in
12  support of relicensing Indian Point
13  energy center.  As a rate payer it is
14  important to me that the cost of the
15  powerful -- the power is affordable.
16  Right now it is anything but affordable.
17  In fact, New York State and New York City
18  practically has almost the highest power
19  costs in the nation.  If we continue to
20  pile on costs by imposing clean and
21  affordable energy plants, how can we
22  expect New York to thrive in this cold
23  weather?  We can't.  The State Energy
24  Plan must assure the power is safe,
25  reliable and affordable sources of
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 2  energy.  Additional unnecessary costs
 3  must not pass onto already overburdened
 4  New York City residents.
 5      In closing, New York City needs
 6  more power plants to produce clean, clean
 7  and affordable power, not fewer.  For
 8  these reasons I strongly urge you to
 9  insure continued operation at Indian
10  Point energy center.  Thank you for your
11  consideration.
12      MR. RHODES: Gregory Grant,
13  followed by Reverend Robinson.
14      MR. GRANT: I'm Gregory Grant and
15  I'm a resident of Brooklyn, New York.
16  Thank you for taking the time to hear my
17  views on New York Draft Energy Plan.  In
18  the cold weather we experienced last
19  month natural gas and electricity bills
20  skyrocketed, rising 20 percent on
21  average.  For renters, homeowners and
22  businesses across the City this is an
23  unsuspected cost that can cause
24  significant budgeting problems.  Many of
25  the residents in our communities can
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 2  barely afford to feed their families.
 3  The energy produced by Indian Point,
 4  however, represents stability in an
 5  unpredictable climate.  It is vitally
 6  important to keep Indian Point open as it
 7  is one of the resources with reliable
 8  output and stable prices.  In particular,
 9  the price of the energy produced by
10  Indian Point does not change with the
11  weather.  I cannot stand by as opponents
12  of Indian Point force Brooklyn families
13  to pay higher rent, outrageous energy
14  bills for the products they need.  New
15  York must move towards making sure that
16  our people in the City have reliable
17  energy.  Relicensing Indian Point is the
18  first goal of making this a reality and
19  New York State must adopt its position in
20  its energy plan.
21      MR. RHODES: Please.  Reverend
22  Robinson, followed by Marty Rajandran.
23      REVEREND ROBINSON: Good morning,
24  thank you, good morning.  We thank you
25  for allowing us to come today before you
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 2  to have remarks in regards to relicensing
 3  Indian Point.  I think that safe,
 4  healthy, affordable, reliable energy is
 5  very important for the residents of the
 6  City of New York.  We all know when fuel
 7  costs go up and natural gas goes go up
 8  electrical costs go up.  We have to think
 9  about it.  Just the other day I got an
10  oil delivery.  When I bought my home ten
11  years ago, I was paying $300 for four
12  hundred gallons of oil.  Now I'm paying
13  $420 for four hundred gallons of oil.
14  That's why we need safe, healthy, clean,
15  performable, reliable energy.
16      Like I said, I'm here today for
17  support of Indian Point.  Thank you, sir,
18  and have a nice day.
19      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
20  Marty Rajandran, followed by Rachelle
21  Bradt.  Please have some decorum and
22  respect.  I know there are some different
23  views here but it's the last few speakers
24  that are the only ones who received this
25  treatment.
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 2      MS. RAJANDRAN: Thank you.  My name
 3  is Marty Rajandran.  I'm a New York City
 4  resident.  I'm not an expert.  I work
 5  with some of the groups here as a
 6  volunteer, but my comments are not really
 7  technical ones.  I'm just here as a
 8  concerned New York resident.
 9      I moved back to New York two years
10  ago living out of the country for many
11  years.  I made a choice to come back to
12  the City.  But to be frank, sometimes I
13  wonder if I made the right choice.
14  Before I returned I never heard of
15  fracking or Indian Point.  Within my
16  first couple of days of living in the
17  City I saw something on television that
18  really shocked me.  It was an energy
19  announcement.  There is an incident at
20  Indian Point.  You will get further
21  instructions on what to do, and then it
22  said it's a test.  Well, to be frank, I
23  did not know what Indian Point was so I
24  had to Google it and look it up and see
25  what this is all about.  To see that we
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 2  are living within 50 miles of a 40
 3  year-old nuclear power plant that has
 4  outlived its usefulness and needs to be
 5  replaced.  I understand that even now
 6  part of the plant has not been relicensed
 7  because it is old and it's dangerous.
 8  This plant has been spewing nuclear waste
 9  into the Hudson River for years.  They
10  are storing nuclear waste on site because
11  according even to the federal government,
12  there is no place to save -- for safe
13  nuclear waste disposal, and we have
14  nuclear waste right on our shoreline.
15      The other thing is evacuation, of
16  course, anything can happen but there is
17  no evacuation plan so we are living
18  within 50 miles of a very dangerous
19  situation as we know, and Fukushima can
20  happen here.  It can happen here and we
21  have to say no.  I'm happy that Governor
22  Cuomo does want to close it, but I'm out
23  here looking at it for two years and I
24  don't see any real action happening.  We
25  know that this would cause hardship so
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 2  there needs to be a plan.  What's the
 3  Plan?  To close Indian Point now and
 4  replace it with some renewable energy
 5  option so that we keep our rates low.
 6  This would be my fear and my concern.
 7      On fracking, well, I've seen the
 8  movies Gasland 1 and 2 and I've learned a
 9  lot about fracking and among my concerns
10  on fracking is that it uses huge, vast
11  amounts of water that then become
12  unusable to us and as other people have
13  said, this is not something that we can
14  afford to in the future.  We need to have
15  clean water for our children and our
16  grandchildren and fracking is not going
17  to provide this to our hour children.  In
18  addition, we have to be concerned about
19  what it does to the land and to the air,
20  and we are increasingly finding what it
21  does.
22      New York is naturally a green
23  state.  It's one of the reasons why I
24  came back here.  I hope that we invest in
25  renewable energy resources available and
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 2  that we are hearing about today, and that
 3  we give incentives for green and that we
 4  divest from fossil fuels immediately.
 5  Thank you.
 6      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
 7      Rachelle Bradt, followed by
 8  Priscilla Bassett.
 9      MS. BRADT: Good morning, I'm
10  Rochelle Brant.  I'm a member of
11  Riverside Church Loved Earth community.
12  I'm a member of Riverside Church Beloved
13  Church community.  We see the issue of
14  climate change as a moral issue that
15  everybody should be making their top
16  priority and of course, our government.
17  First of all, there are misconceptions
18  about natural gas and nuclear power as
19  being clean.  That has to be debunked.
20  Those sources of energy are not clean.
21  In fact, they are deadly, both of them
22  are deadly.  The gas is deadly for water
23  and air, and the nuclear can lead any
24  moment into a catastrophe none of us will
25  survive.  That is why there is no
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 2  evacuation plan, because we cannot be
 3  evacuated.  So you have to consider that
 4  fact if you want to save a few dollars on
 5  your bill.  On the other hand, this
 6  report that has been referred to I would
 7  like Governor Cuomo to look at the report
 8  by an engineer, by Professor Mark
 9  Jacobson of Stanford and also Professor
10  Ingraffea of Cornell University who have
11  their life experience is specifically
12  energy engineering technology.  They have
13  spent 20, 30 years of their working life
14  to produce a plan how we, as United
15  States, can be a leader in technology
16  that we have been in the past, to move
17  away from fossil and nuclear fuels,
18  period.  We cannot have another solution.
19  Any other solution is unrealistic because
20  there will be no planet to live on.
21      So, these engineers conclude their
22  report which is in all details, costs are
23  accounted for.  They put the factor and
24  health costs and they come up with a
25  general plan that's very specific and
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 2  amounts for New York State 50 percent
 3  wind, 26 percent solar, 24 percent tidal
 4  geothermal hydroelectric for the
 5  production of electricity.  This is only
 6  electricity, but electricity being the
 7  biggest source of pollution and the one
 8  that is the easiest where we can replace
 9  gas to fuel our power plants with gas, is
10  absolutely absurd and backwards.  This is
11  an old, outdated technology, and
12  interesting, go back to when Con Edison
13  started -- I mean, Mr. Edison, Thomas
14  Alva Edison, the genius, who brought us
15  the light bulb almost didn't happen
16  because the gas industry of New York
17  wanted to sabotage the idea that they
18  could do without gas and they almost made
19  it impossible to go the first
20  implementation of light bulbs because
21  they were afraid they would no longer be
22  able to use their gas infrastructure, and
23  now we're right back at the same problem.
24      Governor Cuomo, you are a leader,
25  leader of our state.  Make New York State
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 2  the Empire State and an example of the
 3  United States to set an example that
 4  technology can make us survive.  We have
 5  no other choice.
 6      MR. RHODES: Priscilla Bassett,
 7  followed by Joan Farber.
 8      MS. BASSETT: Good morning, I have
 9  sat here wondering whether I should pass
10  and then I remembered that I read about a
11  week ago that there was a suit filed
12  against the State of New York, against
13  the governor, against Commissioner
14  Martens by a group of landholders in
15  upstate New York including residents of
16  my county, Sullivan County.  I thought
17  today I'd be the only person here from
18  Sullivan County and who am I?  Not the
19  man in the street, I'm an old lady on a
20  country road in Neversink, New York in
21  Sullivan County, and we have Jill Weiner
22  who is, who has spoken before me so
23  eloquently and with so much factual
24  information.  What can I say?  I can say
25  that I've been part of an effort in my
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 2  county and in our communities writing
 3  letters, going to public hearings,
 4  lectures, being out on the street,
 5  calling for no fracking.  We oppose
 6  fracking now and in the future.  The
 7  social well-being of our communities, of
 8  our county, the health, the environmental
 9  costs of horizontal hydraulic fracturing
10  outweigh the promise of jobs that the
11  landholders who filed that suit are
12  concerned with.  We too are concerned
13  with jobs but not at the price of the
14  health of our country, of our county.
15      According to the Times Herald
16  Record, Commissioner Martens has recently
17  said that there will be no fracking until
18  at least April, 19 -- I mean, excuse me,
19  2015, 15.
20      Now, on behalf of my family and
21  other landholders up there in Sullivan
22  County, and certainly Orange County with
23  this new development with a pro fracking
24  facility being built, there are just too
25  many risks, too high a price to pay for
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 2  endangering our land, water, air, and our
 3  social well-being in our communities.
 4  New York's Energy Plan, and this is my
 5  chance to say this, because we're having
 6  this public hearing, I may sound off
 7  target somewhat but I'm not, because this
 8  is the issue.  New York's Energy Plan
 9  must make our state a national renewable
10  energy leader and unequivocally say no to
11  fracking.  Our health, our environment
12  and our social quality of life require
13  it.
14      Now, as a postscript, I want to say
15  in my small community, Grahamsville, New
16  York, Sullivan County, we have nearby
17  Sullivan County Community College which
18  is heated and cooled by geothermal pumps.
19  We have the Daniel Pierce Public Library,
20  likewise, geothermal.  So thank you very
21  much.
22      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
23      Joan Farber, followed by Sam
24  Tatnall.
25      MS. FARBER: My name is Joan Farber
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 2  and I'm a resident of New York City and
 3  Hancock, New York, which is right in the
 4  middle of the Marcellus shale.  I too am
 5  very concerned about the central place in
 6  your plan of natural gas.  The earth and
 7  the life that supports it are all we have
 8  and are.  Hydro fracking for natural gas
 9  threatens to poison on a large scale all
10  we need for life, namely, the air and the
11  water that sustains it.  We know how bad
12  this is Colorado, New Mexico and now in
13  Pennsylvania, and the illness and
14  pollution we know about there is the
15  result of a relatively short-term effect.
16  That is to say, we know about the nerve
17  damage and the cancers because they have
18  already occurred.  We don't know about
19  the long-term impact of large
20  unretrievable amounts of poisoned water
21  circulating deep under the Earth or about
22  the potential genetic changes in humans
23  and animals because of these toxins
24  released into streams, wetlands and
25  aquifers, however, we do know from the
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 2  Department of Environmental
 3  Conservation's own report that the waste
 4  water that is returned to the surface
 5  from hydrofracking is radioactive beyond
 6  the legally safe limits and the available
 7  water treatment facilities are not
 8  suitable for handling that.  How much
 9  more do we need to know before we say
10  that natural gas should not be done in
11  New York State.
12      MR. RHODES: Sam Tatnall followed
13  by Audrey Ahearne.
14      MR. TATNALL: I'm Sam Tatnall, New
15  York City resident.  I'm trained as a
16  physicist and software engineer and in
17  part my training says one should apply
18  logic wherever possible in one's
19  life-style.  So I look at this problem of
20  hydraulic fracturing and I see not only
21  the problem of releasing methane and the
22  carbon dioxide that will be generated by
23  the burning of it, but I'm really fearful
24  of poisoning the aquifer or streams, our
25  environment and it's something that
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 2  cannot be cleaned up by a Superfund
 3  cleanup.  We can't go back and say, Oh,
 4  oh, we made a mistake, let's go and fix
 5  it.  Once these poisons are put in the
 6  ground, that's it.  We cannot go back.
 7  So I am very much opposed to
 8  hydrofracking and I want to go on record
 9  as saying so, and I think that we have to
10  find alternative sources of energy which,
11  in the long-term, will allow us to
12  sustain our lives.  And I just want to
13  say that I have colleagues who are
14  smarter than I am who say, Oh, it's not a
15  problem.  I mean, Yes, we have some
16  climate change but how do you know it's
17  caused by human activity?  Well, it's
18  quite obvious to me that the kind of
19  change that has occurred in the last ten,
20  twenty years is not normal.  It's not
21  something which it's ever been recorded
22  before in history so that we must be
23  responsible for the climate change that
24  is going on, and we must change our ways.
25  So I just want to add that emphasis,
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 2  thank you.
 3      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
 4      Deidre Ahearne followed by Chris
 5  Coppa.
 6      MS. AHEARNE: I'm a New York City
 7  resident here in Manhattan and I am a
 8  volunteer with 350NYC and we act for
 9  environmental justice.  I'm attending
10  these hearings today because I'm
11  passionately concerned about what kind of
12  future we're creating.  The President
13  said climate change is a fact and when
14  our children's children look us in the
15  eye and ask we did all we could to leave
16  them a safe and more stable world with
17  new sources of energy, I want to be able
18  to say yes, we did.  Well, how can we not
19  believe that this statement should be
20  viewed as a rhetorical device for
21  politicians, but rather as a call for all
22  citizens to hold our elected officials
23  accountable for their votes and actions
24  with regard to energy policy.  Right now
25  we are also experiencing the daily impact
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 2  of climate change with major weather
 3  disruptions all over the world.
 4  Scientists report measurable impacts on
 5  biodiversity, sea-level change, and ocean
 6  acidification due to climate change.
 7  Communities across the United States are
 8  grappling with the environmental
 9  devastation and chronic health impacts
10  that the aggressive exploitation of
11  fossil fuels has produced.  Global
12  economies are floundering under the
13  weight of these natural disasters and
14  public emergency reserve funds, such as
15  FEMA, are seriously depleted.  The
16  decisions that New York State makes now
17  with regard to energy policy can
18  contribute to this continued disgraceful
19  degradation of our planet or it can
20  continue to reverse the conditions that
21  caused climate change.
22      Specifically, I want to address
23  these areas from the Plan:
24      We need to update our aging
25  transmission and distribution systems
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 2  with new technologies and efficiencies.
 3  The Governor's Energy Highway Initiative
 4  is a good concept but how this is
 5  implemented is critical.  Grid
 6  modernization will eliminate the
 7  transmission constraints from upstate to
 8  downstate and rebalance the supply/demand
 9  gap.  However, the Hudson River Capacity
10  Zone must be strongly rejected.  This
11  financial construct, designed by FERC and
12  ISO is just a way to manipulate market
13  prices by creating a Capacity Zone.  It
14  will place a surcharge on ratepayers in
15  order to provide incentives to the
16  electricity generators to construct new
17  gas-fired power plants.  This will
18  undermine the purpose of grid
19  modernization and thwarting the
20  introduction of renewable sources by
21  investment in power plants.
22      Secondly, New York State must turn
23  away from dirty it and dangerous energy
24  and rapidly increase investments in
25  renewable energy and energy efficiency
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 2  now.  The Energy Plan must commit to
 3  extending the State's renewable energy
 4  target to insure that 50 percent of New
 5  York's electric energy comes from
 6  renewable energy sources by 2025, with a
 7  target of a hundred percent renewables by
 8  2035.  To accomplish that, the governor's
 9  Energy Plan must commit to doubling New
10  York's land-based wind capacity and
11  invest in offshore wind this year.
12  Specifically, the State can purchase
13  offshore wind power to power Long Island
14  from a project under development east of
15  Montauk point, and move forward
16  immediately with a project proposed by
17  the New York Power Authority in the New
18  York wind energy area off the Rockaways.
19  Governor Cuomo must say no to the
20  proposed Port Ambrose LNG offshore export
21  terminal.  New York State must invest in
22  wind turbines not LNG tankers.  This plan
23  cites overreliance on the expansion of
24  natural gas, however, New York must ban
25  fracking now, and must move away from
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 2  further increased investments in any and
 3  all forms of infrastructure, gas
 4  infrastructure, in order to protect our
 5  families from fracking.  Such
 6  infrastructure investments only diverts
 7  our resources away from where they are
 8  needed and sends a mixed message.  We
 9  must not collude with the notion that
10  natural gas is a clean energy.  It is a
11  dangerous and toxic pollutant at every
12  stage of the production cycle and it
13  contributes to the acceleration of global
14  warming, mainly through the release of
15  methane gas, not to mention the danger of
16  earthquakes that we're seeing in places
17  like Oklahoma.  We must recognize that
18  the harms to a conversion to natural gas
19  will bring to Minisink, Waywayanda,
20  Seneca, Port Ambrose, etc., and take
21  steps to move away from that path.
22  Increasing New York's reliance on natural
23  gas commits New York to significant
24  investments in unsustainable gas
25  infrastructure that will lock-in reliance
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 2  on fossil fuels for decades to come and
 3  open New York up to the destructive and
 4  devastating practice of hydraulic
 5  fracturing which has disseminated nearby
 6  states, and significantly it will
 7  crowd-out opportunities for increased
 8  renewable resources which should be the
 9  single-minded focus of our future Energy
10  Plan.  A bold, decisive and aggressive
11  investment in all forms of renewable
12  energy now will secure our energy future
13  and generate employment in the region.
14      In summary, Governor Cuomo has an
15  opportunity to lead New York towards a
16  rational policy shift in favor of
17  renewable energy sources and to reduce
18  the investment of taxpayers' money in the
19  very coal, oil and gas industries that
20  are the major source of carbon pollutants
21  in the atmosphere.  Every energy decision
22  must be judged by the extent to which it
23  contributes to climate change through
24  increased carbon and methane emissions or
25  provides a solution to the climate
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 2  emergency.  The Governor must step up to
 3  the challenge and instruct his energy
 4  team to reject projects and plans that do
 5  not meet his litmus test.  The voters and
 6  the children of the future will take note
 7  of his actions.  Thank you.
 8      MR. RHODES: Thank you.
 9      Chris Coppa followed by Gregory
10  Grant.
11      MS. COPPA: Chris Coppa from Staten
12  Island.  It took me about two hours to
13  get here, and I just want to say I want
14  to -- I'm against fracking now and in the
15  future.  I think it's damaging to the
16  environment, the climate, the water, the
17  earth, everything, and it's really bad.
18  It's damaging to our health, and really,
19  it's pollution.  So everyone has said it
20  so I'm not going to reiterate what has
21  already been said.  But I wanted to say
22  my peace.  Thank you.
23      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
24      Gregory Grant, followed by Rebecca
25  Smith.
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 2      Rebecca Smith, in that case,
 3  followed by Ruth Hardinger, please.
 4      MS. SMITH: Good morning, my name
 5  is Rebecca Smith.  I'm representing -- my
 6  name is Rebecca Smith, thank you for
 7  getting my name right.
 8      I'm representing Damascus Citizens
 9  For Sustainability.  The Energy Plan
10  demonstrates a bias for natural gas
11  energy that is not based on fact.  We
12  will show that mounting evidence now
13  indicates that methane gas leakage rates
14  throughout the natural gas lifetime make
15  gas energy a driver for climate change,
16  not a cleaner fuel that slows it down.
17      The 2013 gas -- in 2013 Gas Safety,
18  Inc. released three studies on fugitive
19  methane emissions in Manhattan.
20  Commissioned by Damascus Citizens for
21  Sustainability, these reports show that
22  Manhattan exists in a cloud of elevated
23  levels of methane produced almost
24  entirely by pipeline leaks.  Methane is a
25  greenhouse gas far more potent than
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 2  carbon dioxide.  Comparable testing in
 3  other cities throughout the nation show
 4  similar findings.
 5      Emissions were measured using a
 6  cavity ring-down laser spectrometer
 7  driving over 160 miles of Manhattan
 8  streets.  The results indicate 8.6
 9  billion cubic feet a year of methane is
10  leaked from Manhattan and lost to the
11  atmosphere.  The 2013 Intergovernmental
12  Panel for Climate Change makes methane 84
13  times more potent a greenhouse gas than
14  carbon dioxide over a 20 year-period.  In
15  global warming terms, Manhattan's yearly
16  methane emissions are equivalent to
17  14,112000 metric tons of carbon dioxide.
18  What is that like?  It's like almost 3
19  million more cars in Manhattan a year, or
20  a 3.6 coal plants.
21      Methane is odorless and colorless.
22  It's lighter than air and easily escapes
23  when given the opportunity.  While
24  natural gas burns about half as dirty as
25  coal, mounting evidence shows gas to be
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 2  worse than other fossil fuels precisely
 3  because of its propensity to leak every
 4  stage from drill site to distribution.
 5      How much can the system leak before
 6  methane leaks make it worse than burning
 7  coal?  At the drill site for many 3.2
 8  percent is the limit.  At the drill
 9  site -- these are really low numbers --
10  2.3 percent that was registered in
11  Denver, Julesberg Fossil formation.
12      Transport:  This is the low number,
13  1.4 percent.
14      Distribution:  The Manhattan study
15  estimates more than five percent.
16  Measured leaks from Manhattan alone lost
17  2.8 percent of the entire Con Edison
18  system while representing only one-third
19  of its customers.  If the entire customer
20  base leaked only half as much as
21  Manhattan the rate would be 5.72 percent.
22  If we add altogether the lower estimates
23  for drill site transport and distribution
24  we have a 9.2 percent emissions.
25      The Draft Energy Plan fails to
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 2  provide adequate measurements for methane
 3  in the atmosphere.  Appendix 1 from the
 4  Emissions from Energy does not reference
 5  methane.  Appendix 4, Historical Trends
 6  for air Pollutants lists eight different
 7  results for pollutants.  Nothing about
 8  methane.  It cites 2011 NYSERDA as giving
 9  a 1.7 percent emissions rate from
10  transmission and distribution alone.  The
11  Manhattan report shows more than five
12  percent at distribution.
13      Ultimately, it is impossible to
14  know exactly how much methane is leaked
15  from complex processes over the natural
16  gas life cycle nationwide.  However, it
17  is certain that there are many
18  opportunities for leakage in the system.
19  The enormous disappointments of the
20  Manhattan and other urban emissions
21  studies is that they provide actual
22  measured data of leakage at distribution.
23  That means not EPA estimates of estimates
24  of estimates.  It means data.  We cannot
25  expect industry to fix all these leaks or
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 2  operate within the safety tolerances of a
 3  laboratory.
 4      So what's the down side of taking a
 5  risk on natural gas?  Enormous.  The New
 6  York State Energy Plan that we're
 7  discussing today states the following:
 8  "Rising atmospheric greenhouse gas
 9  concentrations are rapidly approaching
10  the level at which scientists project
11  that severe consequences are likely."
12  Because extreme global warming is a life
13  or death conscience, responsible policy
14  cannot approve natural gas as an energy
15  source.  The time to replace fossil fuels
16  with renewables is now.  New York State
17  must aggressively transition out of
18  natural gas and other fossil fuels and
19  make a real commitment to renewable
20  energy.  Thank you.
21      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
22      Ruth Hardinger, followed by
23  Pramilla Malick.
24      MS. HARDINGER: My name is Ruth
25  Hardinger.  Hello, can you hear that?
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 2  First of all, thank you for this hearing.
 3  This comment period is really too short
 4  and extension to April is not enough.
 5  This comment period needs to be extended
 6  for six months, total.
 7      Three days ago John Kerry compared
 8  climate change to a weapon of mass
 9  destruction.
10      Methane is a short-lived climate
11  forcing greenhouse gas.  You heard a lot
12  about it.  Last fall the IPCC, the
13  Intergovernmental Panel for Climate
14  Change, stated that if we emphatically
15  reduced these emissions we could slow
16  down human-caused climate change
17  imperiling our pressure Earth.
18      What does it mean that methane is a
19  potent greenhouse gas?  By comparison to
20  weight, it's actually moved from 86 -- to
21  86 pounds and even predicting up to a
22  hundred pounds, 86 pounds of methane is
23  like one pound of carbon dioxide.
24  Methane functions like weight.  Sun's
25  rays land on the ground, methane holds
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 2  that heat down 86 times more than carbon
 3  dioxide in the first 20 years of its
 4  presence.
 5      On page 55 of the New York State
 6  plan it brings up the United Nations plan
 7  to, short-lived climate forcers
 8  collaborating with industry.  It implies
 9  that after 20 years methane goes away,
10  which is not correct.  Methane degrades
11  and converts into carbon dioxide and
12  continues to have global warning
13  potential for a century or more.  The
14  United Nations and New York State should
15  stop development and address the vast
16  amount of abandoned wells leaking methane
17  in New York State and everywhere, plus
18  the oceans.  That's methane leaks.
19      Slick marketing of shale gas as a
20  clean natural gas is pervasive in this
21  plan.  Where's the evidence that it's
22  clean?  And maybe 50 percent less carbon
23  dioxide when burned is not an effective
24  climate change advantage.  Is this what
25  we're basing policies on?  The IPCC says
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 2  by 2050 if we continue using shale gas
 3  temperatures will rise at least 2 degrees
 4  centigrade which is almost 4 degrees
 5  Farenheit.
 6      Shale gas is not clean for health
 7  and environment and it's escalating
 8  climate instability.
 9      Making gas safe is not a realistic
10  goal.  It will cost at least a million
11  dollars a mile to replace urban
12  distribution lines.  New York City has
13  over 4,320 miles of pipeline.  There are
14  over 2.5 million miles of pipeline in the
15  United States, and half of them are over
16  50 years old.  In what time frame are
17  these leaky lines going to be replaced?
18  And cutting pipes causes more emissions.
19  The so-called green completion wells
20  would still produce .4 percent leakage at
21  best, so multiply that times by how many
22  hundreds of thousands of wells?
23  Continuing adding more short-lived
24  climate-forcing gas to the atmosphere, it
25  does not address toxic and methane
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 2  migration caused by faulty installations
 3  or fractured well casings.  And there's
 4  venting.  And there is venting, leakage
 5  and flaring.  North Dakota has already
 6  flared 35 percent of its production.
 7  There is no way this is sustainable.
 8      Neither industry or EPA has taken
 9  substantive methane emissions
10  measurements.  Their reports on methane
11  quantities are largely based on business
12  deduction allowances for leakage and
13  estimates, not actual measurements.  The
14  elevated methane levels measured in the
15  fugitive emissions studies such as the
16  New York City report, Washington D.C. and
17  Boston, while they may appear to be small
18  amounts, add up to amounts that escalate
19  climate change.  These emissions are part
20  of the newly understood status that
21  natural gas is worse than coal for
22  climate change.  Gas efforts will provide
23  huge amounts of money to the industry, it
24  will not benefit life.  Is that the goal?
25      While the purpose of this New York
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 2  City plan is to figure out a better way
 3  to provide energy, the report pushes
 4  substantiated health problems about
 5  hydrofracking for gas, pushes them into
 6  the background.  Widely documented water
 7  contamination, the lack of safe places to
 8  dispose of radioactive waste from
 9  drilling, endocrine disruptors causing
10  birth defects in wildlife and now
11  documented in human births are only three
12  examples of the many tragic events.  Also
13  asthma and other respiratory diseases are
14  caused by ground-level ozone which is a
15  product of methane.
16      Many scientists say that we don't
17  have 20 years to address global warming.
18  Digging up the earth and spending
19  trillions of money or more on
20  infrastructure that will only support gas
21  extraction for a few decades is a losing
22  strategy.  New York Plan should delete
23  use and infrastructure development of
24  natural gas from this agenda and focus on
25  building renewable energy and increasing
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 2  efficiency.
 3      Our government must use the
 4  precautionary principle and take
 5  precautionary measures.  We have no time
 6  for an expensive fix, false fix, that
 7  will fail to solve these fossil fuels
 8  problems that are causing man-made
 9  weapons of mass destruction.  New York
10  State, don't go backwards.
11      MR. RHODES: Pramilla Malick,
12  followed by --
13      MS. MALICK: I actually, I know a
14  lot of people.  I would like to address
15  some of these issues to the members of
16  the board that are here.  So I'm going to
17  face them and I apologize.
18      My name is Pramilla Mallick and I'm
19  here to testify on behalf of myself as a
20  citizen of this great state and on behalf
21  of two grassroots, all-volunteer
22  community organizations from the lower
23  Hudson Valley, Protect Orange County and
24  Stop Minisink Compression Station.
25      I'd like to thank the Planning
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 2  Board for giving me the opportunity to
 3  comment on these proceedings.  I am here
 4  today specifically to comment on
 5  initiatives 6, 8 and 9 in the Plan which
 6  explicitly promotes the acceleration and
 7  expansion of natural gas, including oil
 8  to gas conversion and infrastructure for
 9  gas transmission and distribution.
10  Although it remains undecided if New York
11  State will allow high-volume hydraulic
12  fracturing, our state has already seen a
13  steady expansion of gas infrastructure in
14  the past few years in order to facilitate
15  the transportation of shale gas from
16  Pennsylvania to downstate markets such as
17  New York City.  Unfortunately, my
18  community of Minisink in Orange County
19  has been on the front lines of that
20  expansion and our experiences over the
21  past few years served as a critical
22  warning for our elected officials and
23  regulators that such a path is filled
24  with great risks that must be identified
25  and understood before we take one further
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 2  step in this direction.  I wish I could
 3  say that our experiences are atypical.
 4  But based upon accounts from other
 5  communities across the country, they are
 6  all too common.  And because this plan
 7  will have permanent and irreversible
 8  impacts upon my community and other
 9  communities in the lower Hudson Valley, I
10  would like to reiterate with the woman
11  from Rockland County had requested, that
12  you hold public hearings in the lower
13  Hudson Valley so that my neighbors can
14  also come before you and testify.  It is
15  important for you to know the
16  implications for New York residents and
17  communities when you propose a policy
18  that will have both immediate as well as
19  long-term impacts and indeed, Article 6,
20  the Article 6 energy law which is the
21  basis for these proceedings, mandates
22  that you consider and address these
23  issues, specifically 6-104.2K calls for
24  quote, An assessment of the impacts of
25  the implementation of a plan upon
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 2  economic development, health, safety and
 3  welfare, environmental quality and energy
 4  costs for consumers, specifically
 5  low-income consumers.  These are some of
 6  the issues I will testify on today.
 7      Minisink is a small middle-class
 8  community about an hour outside New York
 9  City.  In 2006 it was unfortunate to lie
10  directly in the path of one of New York's
11  largest pipeline, the Millennium
12  Pipeline.  From 2006 onwards the
13  residents of Minisink, as well as New
14  York residents all along the 182 mile
15  pipeline have been under siege by this
16  predatory and irresponsible company which
17  has little or no regulatory oversight or
18  restraints.  In 2006 during construction
19  the company tore up farmland and private
20  lawns, creating permanent damage to
21  irrigation and drainage systems.  Their
22  unfulfilled promises to repair the damage
23  disappeared into a 1-800 voice mail.
24  During construction several faulty wells
25  were identified by a routine inspection
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 2  and ordered repaired.  Instead of
 3  repairing the wells, they buried them
 4  deep in the ground where they remain to
 5  this day leaking methane, a far more
 6  potent greenhouse gas than cO2, along
 7  with radioactive condensate, into our
 8  farmlands, our wetlands and other
 9  sensitive terrain.  We in Minisink can
10  frequently smell the foul odor of sulfur,
11  and then there is the constant and ever
12  present hum from the high-pressure
13  pipelines.
14      In 2011 they targeted our
15  communities again.  This time for 12,260
16  horsepower gas compressor station
17  allegedly to serve the increasing demand
18  for New York City as Con Edison promoted
19  oil to gas conversion.  This plant was
20  sited smack in the middle of a
21  residential area with 200 homes within a
22  half-mile of the facility on protected
23  farmland, as well as on a national
24  historic site.
25      Our community is a District 2
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 2  agricultural area which should be free
 3  from even the most benign industrial
 4  development.  It was approved by FERC,
 5  the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission,
 6  despite being in complete violation of
 7  our local zoning laws because an
 8  interstate project preempts local zoning
 9  pursuant to the Natural Gas Act,
10  therefore, it's important to understand
11  that interstate pipeline facilities
12  render home rule moot and meaningless.
13  New York is a home-rule state and this is
14  a core principle here, yet this Draft
15  Energy Plan directly conflicts with that
16  principle.  This plan would result in
17  greater consumption of natural gas which
18  is contingent on greater interstate
19  pipeline capacity.  Furthermore, all
20  pipelines require compressor stations
21  every 40 to a hundred miles and metering
22  stations are usually positioned every ten
23  miles, each becoming a new source of
24  pollution emitting highly toxic
25  carcinogens and neurotoxins along with
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 2  radioactive particles.  As minor sources
 3  they are individually permitted and as a
 4  result, evade many air quality
 5  regulations, but their cumulative effects
 6  are many times greater than that of other
 7  major sources of emission that would
 8  require a Title V permit.  I am going to
 9  submit, along with my testimony for the
10  record, a report on public health impacts
11  of the Minisink Compressor Station
12  presented by Wilma Subra, a former EPA
13  scientist.  Although the State health
14  commissioner, Dr. Shah, is reviewing
15  health impacts from the extraction
16  process of fracking, he is not addressing
17  the health impacts from the
18  infrastructure, which is already under
19  way in New York State.  This, despite the
20  fact that many of those same studies he's
21  currently reviewing identify adverse
22  health impacts from gas infrastructure.
23  In fact, study after study in the past
24  year, including the Colorado School of
25  Public Health study, identified air


Page 95


 1      HEARING
 2  pollution as one of the greatest public
 3  health risks emanating from natural gas
 4  development.  An even more recent
 5  Colorado study which was looking at fetal
 6  health, found a great incidence of birth
 7  defects among populations living near all
 8  types of natural gas development,
 9  including infrastructure.  All the toxins
10  identified in this study are currently
11  spewing out of the compressor station in
12  Minisink.  The study states, quote, Some
13  of these pollutants, example, toluene,
14  xylenes, and benzene are suspected
15  mutagens and are known to cross the
16  placenta and expose a developing fetus.
17  It goes to add, Currently, there are few
18  studies on the effects of air pollution
19  or natural gas development on birth
20  outcomes.
21      Another report released just a few
22  days ago by the Weather Channel that
23  looks at impacts in the Eagle Ford Shale
24  region also identifies emerging evidence
25  of health impacts from natural gas
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 2  infrastructure, the growing problem of
 3  air pollution and the difficulty in
 4  monitoring those impacts.  Quote, Plumes
 5  of contaminated air move with the wind.
 6  Some of the chemicals break down in
 7  sunlight or react with other pollutants
 8  to form new compounds.  The evidence
 9  disappears quickly while the health
10  effects may linger, end quote.
11      It's alarming that the symptoms
12  described in this report on the Eagle
13  Ford region, nosebleeds, rashes,
14  headaches, nausea and respiratory
15  difficulties are the same things that's
16  now being experienced in Minisink and the
17  same symptoms now reported in
18  Pennsylvania.  It's the same chemicals
19  and the same symptoms.  We are on the
20  precipice of a public health catastrophe
21  and you have a legal and moral obligation
22  to reject any plan that creates any risks
23  to public health and safety anywhere, be
24  it New York, be it Pennsylvania, be it
25  Ohio, be it anywhere.  Air and wind do
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 2  not recognize any political borders.  The
 3  interstate board is actually meaningless
 4  to the pollutants that travel in air and
 5  wind.  The use of natural gas also
 6  presents the issue of volatility in two
 7  important ways.  First and foremost, from
 8  a public health perspective natural gas
 9  is highly volatile.  In the past year
10  alone there have been over 30 major
11  pipeline incidents.  And in fact, the
12  Millennium Pipeline, parent company
13  NiSource, was the owner of the recent gas
14  pipeline explosion in Sissonville, West
15  Virginia that melted a portion of an
16  entire higher along with several homes.
17  Compressor stations are especially
18  volatile because of the large number of
19  valves that results in excessive leaking.
20  Again, catastrophic for climate change
21  with methane in the 20-year term being at
22  least 86 times worse than cO2.  And
23  please find attached to my testimony a
24  list of compressor station explosions and
25  fires just within the past year.
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 2      Although our compressor station is
 3  relatively new, it connects to the
 4  Windsor Compressor Station in Windsor,
 5  New York, which has been plagued by
 6  problems, and on every such occasion the
 7  entire Millennium Pipeline that connects
 8  to it, including our compressor station,
 9  needs to be emptied releasing large
10  quantities of methane and other chemicals
11  and hydrocarbons into the atmosphere.  In
12  the station's permit they allege only
13  four blow down events in a year, but
14  because of all the problems, they have
15  had four in just two months.  None of
16  these are calculated by the State when
17  they calculate greenhouse gas emissions,
18  or other air quality assessments.
19      The volatility is intrinsic to the
20  gas and the volatility combined a with
21  high-leakage rates and extremely high
22  operating pressures in these pipelines
23  make all natural gas pipelines an extreme
24  public hazard.  And it is critical to
25  know these safety concerns are never
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 2  addressed in the federal siting process.
 3  There is no binding regulation of
 4  agreement that compels FERC to consider
 5  issues of safety when siting an
 6  interstate facility, and indeed, they
 7  don't.  And the Pipeline and Hazardous
 8  Material Safety Administration is not
 9  involved in the siting process at all.
10  In our case, we had a prominent pipeline
11  engineer, Richard Kuprewics, testified
12  that the Minisink Compressor Station
13  would create too much pressure on the
14  pipeline creating a high risk of
15  explosion greater than San Bruno
16  explosion that killed eight people in
17  California.
18      I remind you that there are 200
19  families with hundreds of young children
20  living within a half mile of this
21  facility.  This testimony was ignored by
22  FERC.  When the same information was
23  brought to the attention of PHMSA they
24  responded that they do not maintain
25  records on the maximum allowable pressure
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 2  on the pipeline and deferred to the New
 3  York Public Services Commission who then
 4  stated they could not locate those
 5  records.  This is consistent with a
 6  pattern of complete lack of any type of
 7  oversight over these facilities.
 8      On Christmas Eve and Christmas
 9  morning, again, a noxious odor filled the
10  air in Minisink.  This was yet again
11  unscheduled, undocumented and unaccounted
12  for release.  When I contacted our county
13  emergency response office to request
14  information on what had been released and
15  the amount, I was told no report was
16  filed, no report was requested, and next
17  time just call the company.
18      Already some of my neighbors in
19  Minisink have been forked to leave their
20  homes.  The same is happening in Green
21  County, Pennsylvania where a recent
22  Chevron well exploded and burned for five
23  days.  The same is happening in Dimock,
24  Pennsylvania, Windsor, New York, Hancock,
25  New York.  People are being forced to
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 2  leave their homes.  Because of fracking
 3  we have a new phenomenon in the United
 4  States America, internally displaced
 5  persons.
 6      And finally, there is the issue of
 7  greenhouse gas emissions.  Former
 8  Governor Paterson signed executive order
 9  24 which requires New York State to
10  reduce total greenhouse gas emissions by
11  80 percent to 1990 levels.  Meeting this
12  goal would be entirely impossible with
13  further development of natural gas, which
14  would again necessitate interstate
15  facilities.  Once again, Minisink serves
16  as a telling example of what to expect in
17  such a scenario.  During the siting
18  process of the compressor station the
19  community of Minisink was able to
20  identify an alternative plan which would
21  have still met the company's stated
22  needs, yet require the compressor station
23  half the size on property already owned
24  by the company.  It was rejected by both
25  the company and FERC on the false basis
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 2  of costs.  But what would that have meant
 3  for New York State?  It would have meant
 4  50 percent less greenhouse gas emissions,
 5  24 hours a day, seven days a week, 50
 6  percent less global warming potential.
 7  Yes again, due to federal preemption, New
 8  York State has no ability, and in fact
 9  desire, to select the project that would
10  be more consistent with our stated goal.
11      MR. RHODES: Ms. Malick, I'm sorry,
12  your time has been up for some time.
13  Would you --
14      MS. MALICK: Who is the next
15  speaker?
16      MR. RHODES: I'm sorry?
17      MS. MALICK: Who is the next
18  speaker?
19      UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I yield my
20  time.
21      MR. RHODES: Okay, the next speaker
22  yields her time, okay.
23      MS. MALICK: Again, New York State,
24  again, has no ability and again, no
25  desire to attempt to meet that executive,
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 2  the goal of that executive order because
 3  the project was able to receive all the
 4  State permits it needed.
 5      On the issue of price volatility,
 6  the U.S. Energy Information
 7  Administration just issued a report a few
 8  days ago which said, quote, Natural gas
 9  prices will rise in the near term in part
10  due to increased demand by industrial
11  customers and eventually, demand for
12  exports from liquified natural gas, LNG,
13  facilities.  The clarity of this
14  statement is in sharp contrast to the
15  ambiguity on the subject of LNG exports
16  on cost analysis in the Draft Energy
17  Plan.  Analysts and industry are equally
18  clear on this forecast as well.  Again,
19  Minisink serves as a telling example.
20  Millennium's parent company, NiSource,
21  along with the shipper, Mitsui
22  Corporation, have both announced publicly
23  to their shareholders that they will soon
24  have access to international markets
25  though export facilities.
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 2      So lest you fool yourself into
 3  believing you can regulate our state out
 4  of this enormous quagmire or some tool
 5  will solve the problems created by
 6  natural gas, I'm here to tell you that no
 7  such animal exists.  Regulations are
 8  meaningless because the State could never
 9  have the manpower to enforce them, given
10  the thousands of miles of pipelines.
11  State-of-art tools, such as smart pigs
12  have proved remedial at best.  I submit
13  here a recent article headlined "Pipeline
14  leak detection still doesn't work," and
15  we know this because they are constantly
16  picking the pipeline in Minisink trying
17  to find the faulty wells that they buried
18  a few years ago and they have not been
19  able to do that.  Neither the technology
20  nor the regulations did defy the laws of
21  physics and chemistry and for that matter
22  biology.  These problems are intrinsic to
23  the gas through its complete life cycle.
24      My community, Minisink, is in many
25  ways the paper upon which this plan is
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 2  being written.  Initiative 8 calls for
 3  quote, Accelerate, securing of critical
 4  infrastructure to insure the safety,
 5  security and reliability of an
 6  increasingly complex and interconnected
 7  energy system including transportation,
 8  liquid fuels, electricity and natural gas
 9  infrastructure, end quote.  All of this
10  is already converging upon my once
11  pristine community in anticipation of
12  this plan, with now an imminent gas-fired
13  power plant hoping to connect to the
14  compressor station by yet another
15  unscrupulous company, Competitive Power
16  Ventures.  All this in a community which
17  provides much of the food and dairy
18  products consumed by NYS.  And you know,
19  they refer to us in the permitting
20  process as host communities, and I'm here
21  to tell you we are not host communities.
22  We are communities being held hostage.
23  This is neither safe, secure nor
24  reliable, but we do have an alternative
25  path forward.  Luckily, we're not in a
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 2  situation where we must necessarily
 3  assume those risks.  Luckily, renewables
 4  as documented in the Jacobson study
 5  reference many times today, along with
 6  efficiency and conservation programs can
 7  meet all of our energy needs.  It's a
 8  false perception.  There's more than
 9  enough capacity in the system.  We have a
10  distribution problem, we don't have a
11  capacity problem, and rather than creat a
12  new unnecessary capacity to give a market
13  to fracking companies in Pennsylvania who
14  have no market, we ought to be converting
15  the energy that we have today into
16  renewables, which would not endanger
17  public health and safety, and luckily, we
18  do not need to have sacrifice zones such
19  as Minisink.  A policy which merely
20  trades oil, coal or nuclear for natural
21  gas, is merely trading poisons and
22  trading victims.  It's not a policy or a
23  plan.  It's merely a pretext and
24  posturing.  Thank you.
25      MR. RHODES: Thank you.  Just a
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 2  process comment.  The reason for the time
 3  limit is that we keep getting requests to
 4  speak, they keep coming in, and as a
 5  courtesy to all of the people who have
 6  shown up, I will try to abide by the
 7  proposition that if you have more to say
 8  we can resume at the end but would like
 9  to go through the list out of respect for
10  the people that keep submitting their
11  names.
12      (Recess.)
13      MR. RHODES: Can we have Barbara
14  Harris?  Everybody please take your seat
15  or find a way to pay attention to our
16  resuming speaker.
17      MS. HARRIS: As you'll see I
18  crossed out much of my talk because it's
19  been said and if you haven't heard it
20  yet --
21      MR. RHODES: Excuse me, please,
22  it's important that we have one
23  conversation, so out of respect for Ms.
24  Harass, please.
25      MS. HARRIS: My name is Barbara
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 2  Harris and I'm a member of a grassroots
 3  organization as many of us are.  It's
 4  called the Alliance for a Green Economy,
 5  New York City.  There's also an Alliance
 6  for a Green Economy in New York State,
 7  and our short name is AGREE, and I think
 8  in this room we have many, many groups,
 9  all many grassroots, that agree with us
10  and have given incredibly passionate and
11  educational information to you, and I am
12  not the technical person to have reviewed
13  your documents.  One of our members, Bob
14  Alpert, spoke yesterday in Brooklyn so
15  his remarks are on the record, but I just
16  wanted to talk about my part here.
17      AGREE is a local coalition
18  promoting a citywide transition to
19  renewable energy with sustainable energy
20  sources.  We support the closure of
21  Indian Point for environmental, safety
22  and public health reasons, and I'll give
23  away my age, but I was up in Cortland in
24  Buchanan with Pete Seeger 40 years ago,
25  we said, Don't build Indian Point here,
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 2  it's the least place one could think of
 3  putting up a nuclear plant.  It's not
 4  what we need.  It's not what the people
 5  want.  We should still be singing but
 6  fortunately we are here we're here --
 7  thank you -- to speak out to close down
 8  Indian Point, which is our main focus.
 9      Earlier there was an incident, sort
10  of a little incident in the room where
11  the microphones didn't work.  That was
12  simply rectified by getting the right
13  technical person and plugging a few
14  things in.  Yesterday, from the freedom
15  tower, icicles fell, not expected, and it
16  was very dangerous and they closed the
17  streets and Wall Street and they closed
18  streets to the subway.  They quickly put
19  up scaffolding so people wouldn't be
20  hurt, and it was chaos.  Okay, those were
21  incidences that were taken care of.
22  Indian Point is old, it's worn out, it's
23  leaky, it's on a fault, it's ready to go,
24  its license is up.  Why was its license
25  extended?  If you're driving a car and
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 2  your license is up you're not driving a
 3  car.  If you even have one light out on a
 4  car you're going to get a violation.
 5  Indian Point is a violation.  It's
 6  against the best interests of any of our
 7  citizens.  There's no evacuation plan,
 8  it's all been said.  They talked about
 9  already the Jacobson plan, we have enough
10  energy to 2020, there are many resources
11  and renewables and alternatives.  People
12  are looking at, we've been talking about
13  renewables forever, and now's the time.
14  It's actually the time.  You see world
15  conditions, you see what's happening, you
16  see our weather and you see an old plant,
17  Indian Point whose time has come, and we
18  don't want to wait anymore.  We're
19  relying on you, we're relying on Governor
20  Cuomo, and I think his heart's there.  He
21  just needs to put his power there to say
22  Entergy should be over.  They're closing
23  down in other areas.  They should not be
24  here.  We have to think of the people's
25  needs before corporate needs and people's
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 2  concerns, and our concerns.
 3      I have the gray hair, as others in
 4  the room.  We're thinking about the next
 5  generation and our kids and if we don't
 6  do it when will it get done?  It has to
 7  get done.  We have to close down Indian
 8  Point.  Replacement power is available,
 9  alternatives.  We have so many friends:
10  we have wind, we have air, we have water,
11  and we have geothermal.  Actually, this
12  has been an educational experience for
13  me.  I'm a retired educator and I can't
14  tell you how much I've learned today from
15  the other speakers.  They've got it down.
16  This state is concerned.  How many groups
17  are there?  How many concerns are there?
18  You know, I'm so used to being a teacher
19  I'm expecting someone to respond and
20  raise his or her hand.  That's what we
21  need, that response.  We need that
22  positive response that you hear us, that
23  you're ready to go, and you have the
24  resources.  I live in New York City.  I
25  was born in the Bronx, raised in the
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 2  Bronx, I'm educated until the City, I
 3  live here now.  It's a city that can be
 4  green and it's a city ready for
 5  renewables and they are there in our
 6  power and our money and our finances and
 7  in our hearts to make that happen.  So
 8  Alliance For a Green Economy urges you,
 9  the State, the government; those in
10  power, those who have say so, those who
11  have the power of the pen and the
12  intellect to shut down Indian Point now
13  and work for renewables, let's get them
14  chucking.  They'll create more jobs, more
15  money.  They'll create a good spirit and
16  a clean environment and what we must do
17  for our next generations.  Thank you very
18  much.
19      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
20      Philip Misegaas, followed by David
21  Anderson and believe me, we are hearing
22  you, thank you.
23      Mr. Anderson is passing.
24      Philip Misegaas.
25      MR. MISEGAAS: My name is Philip
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 2  Misegaas director of the Hudson River
 3  Program at Riverkeeper.  Riverkeeper's
 4  been working for over 40 years to help to
 5  restore the Hudson.  We've been working
 6  for over 40 years to protect and restore
 7  the Hudson River and also to protect the
 8  drinking water supply for over 9 million
 9  New York City resident.  And I have a few
10  comments.  In the interest of time we
11  will be filing written comments as well.
12      To begin with, the Plan's
13  greenhouse plan reduction targets are a
14  good start, but New York must establish a
15  2018 target to get on the path to meeting
16  the 80 2050 goal.  New York should
17  establish near and midterm targets to
18  help achieve a year over year economy
19  wide greenhouse gas reductions to meet
20  Governor Cuomo's long-term goals.  The
21  2018 target of 14 percent reduction from
22  2011 levels and 20 percent reduction by
23  2021 would insure the State is on the
24  appropriate path to comply with long-term
25  emissions reduction goals.
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 2      In addition, the term carbon should
 3  be clarified in the Energy Plan and
 4  referred to as cO2 equivalent.  Other
 5  greenhouse gases such as methane, which
 6  has been mentioned prominently here
 7  today, are more potent than cO2 and
 8  science has illustrated that a
 9  comprehensive approach greenhouse gas
10  reductions is necessary to mitigate
11  climate change.  Extending and expanding
12  the State's renewable energy and
13  energy-efficiency programs is critical to
14  meeting greenhouse gas targets.  The
15  Draft Plan includes a state commitment to
16  2020 to energy efficient programs which
17  are currently set to expire 2015.  All
18  this time is essential to provide certain
19  commitment for utilities and others.
20  This commitment must be coupled with
21  targets and dollar budgets to capture all
22  cost-effective energy efficiency across
23  sectors, and that includes Con Edison
24  that mentioned the great cost
25  effectiveness of energy efficiency.
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 2      In addition, the final plan must
 3  scale up renewable energy.  The Draft
 4  Plan includes a draft commitment to 2025
 5  to a renewable energy portfolio.  The
 6  Plan should direct the PSC, the Public
 7  Service Commission, to issue an order by
 8  the year-end 2014 that targets meeting
 9  half of the State's electricity demand
10  with renewable energy by 2025.
11      Moving onto to hydrofracking and
12  natural gas, the Plan should not endorse
13  expanding access to natural gas but
14  should promote an aggressive transition
15  to renewable energy sources to reduce
16  reliance on fossil fuels.  Expanding the
17  use of natural gas puts communities at
18  risk.  Our Riverkeeper supports New
19  York's efforts to reduce the use of
20  petroleum products for heating buildings.
21  We cannot support replacing those
22  products with natural gas.  Recent
23  increases in U.S. production of natural
24  gas have been made possible through the
25  use of hydrofracking which has been


Page 116


 1      HEARING
 2  discussed prominently here today and
 3  which we all know can be devastating for
 4  communities.  Fracking can cause
 5  emissions of a number of harmful
 6  pollutants, including volatile organic
 7  compounds and carcinogens, and as our
 8  neighbors in Pennsylvania have seen,
 9  fracking carries the risk of brown ground
10  and water contamination from construction
11  spills and improper waste water disposal.
12  Natural gas is not a clean fuel.  Methane
13  emissions associated with natural gas
14  extraction production, processing,
15  transport and infrastructure contribute
16  to climate change.  These methane
17  emissions can undercut the climate and
18  reduction of cO2 from the use of natural
19  gas because methane is at least 72 times
20  more potent as a greenhouse gas than cO2
21  over a 20 year-period.  A number of
22  resent studies shown and have found that
23  the amount methane currently emitted into
24  the atmosphere from the natural gas
25  supply change has been consistently
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 2  underestimated by regulators and high
 3  enough in combination with GHC emissions
 4  from other sectors to push us towards the
 5  climate's tipping point in the next 20 or
 6  30 years.
 7      Finally, on the natural gas issue,
 8  increasing use of natural gas can delay
 9  transition to renewable resources giving
10  the massive infrastructure investments
11  that are beginning to happen, they should
12  be diverted to renewables and not wasted
13  on natural gas.
14      Finally, I want to make a comment
15  about Indian Point.  I think I'm doing
16  okay on time.
17      UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: About a
18  half-a-minute.
19      MR. MISEGAAS: Half-a-minute, okay,
20  that's all I need.
21      Riverkeeper is actively opposing
22  the relicensing of Indian Point, support
23  the State's efforts in that regard, and I
24  think it's important to note that Indian
25  Point has already been denied a couple of
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 2  key federal permits from the State of New
 3  York that they would need to get
 4  relicensed.  So while we appreciate that
 5  Energy Plan considers the potential
 6  closing of Indian Point, we think it
 7  should go a step forward and actively
 8  clarify that the plant is likely to close
 9  in the near future, it will not get the
10  permits it needs and as the Public
11  Service Commission process is under way
12  and there are plans under way and well
13  under way to replacing Indian Point's
14  power in time and affordably the Energy
15  Plan should reflect that reality.  Thank
16  you.
17      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
18  Dr. Susan Spieler, followed by Beth
19  Ackerman.
20      DR. SPIELER: Thank you for the
21  opportunity to speak with you.  I'm here
22  in many capacities.  One is that I feel
23  like most everybody who has spoken here
24  today has spoken for me.  The only part
25  of what was said is that I don't agree
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 2  with renewing Indian Point because I
 3  think it's way too dangerous for all of
 4  us in New York City and New York State
 5  and the country.  We don't need another
 6  Fukushima closer to home.
 7      Thank you.  So I'm a clinical
 8  psychologist in Manhattan on the upper
 9  west side and resident of Manhattan on
10  the upper west side, so I'm going to
11  speak in my capacity as a clinical
12  psychologist.  You might ask yourself,
13  what does this have to do with the
14  purpose of today's event?  Well, as a
15  psychologist I volunteer sometimes with
16  the New York City Medical Reserve Corps
17  when there's a crisis and everybody knows
18  Super Storm Sandy was a major crisis in
19  New York.  I went and spent time in an
20  energy shelter that was created after
21  that event and what I learned was very
22  profound.  The people who are most
23  affected by Super Storm Sandy in an
24  immediate sense were people who were
25  poor, who were on the edge already
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 2  functioning and I want to speak to my
 3  memory of an experience with a particular
 4  family, but there were many I could be
 5  speaking about today.
 6      This shelter was in a very large
 7  public school.  It was only open for the
 8  weekend, so people were flooding in from
 9  all over New York, Queens, Long Island.
10  I don't know how they got there, but they
11  were there, and there were many who were
12  already homeless before the storm, but
13  then there were the people who were given
14  shelter in other homeless shelters and I
15  want to speak about the family, a single
16  mom with two daughters.  She had lost her
17  job and therefore they had wound up in a
18  shelter in Chinatown.  So picture
19  children uprooted from Queens moving to
20  Chinatown before the hurricane.  So after
21  the hurricane their shelter in Chinatown
22  was evacuated to the shelter I volunteer
23  at in Manhattan.  They wanted -- the
24  children wanted to know where they were
25  going the next day.  They already
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 2  understood the instability of their lives
 3  and might not know where they were going
 4  the next day.  They were traumatized
 5  because of several layers of climate
 6  change, because as we all know, Hurricane
 7  Sandy was related to climate change.
 8  Nine-try seven percent of the scientists
 9  agree climate change is real.  We already
10  know that.  So we're not even touching on
11  the trauma or the cost of that on the
12  children and the adults who are uprooted
13  and the poor are uprooted first.  They
14  don't have the connections that upper-
15  and middle-class people often do.  I know
16  that people who lived in nicer places
17  than these shelters and they had people
18  they could stay with.  But they couldn't.
19  It was opened temporarily.  I want to
20  know what happened to these people.  They
21  are probably not stable.
22      The girl I spoke to in that family
23  was in high school.  She had come from
24  Queens, started school late in Chinatown
25  and now again was uprooted.  She did not
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 2  know what they where she would be.  She
 3  didn't know what she should tell here
 4  peers starting in a new school and not
 5  wanting to tell anybody she was homeless.
 6  This is a shameful thing to have to
 7  report to your peers in high school, as
 8  we all know.  So there's a whole story
 9  that is yet to be told about the mental
10  health hazards of all these crises and we
11  need stability.  We need New York State
12  to lead in renewables so we do not have
13  accidents, hurricanes, and explosions
14  from trains that are parked outside.
15  I've seen photographs of trains carrying
16  liquid natural gas.  They're just sitting
17  there in Albany waiting to be exploded.
18  I don't understand how New York State can
19  possibly tolerate this, and I just want
20  to make a shout-out again to Sane energy
21  project, I don't know if they're here
22  anymore.  They were here before.  They're
23  a wonderful group that's part of a group
24  that I'm a member of which is called the
25  New York City Grassroots Alliance which
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 2  is an alliance of more than 30
 3  environmental and climate change
 4  nonprofits that are working
 5  collaboratively.  When do you ever see
 6  collaboration between so many groups, to
 7  do beautiful work in New York City and to
 8  connect with other groups outside of New
 9  York?
10      Thank you for your time, thank you.
11      MR. RHODES: Thank you.
12      Beth Ackerman, followed by Fay
13  Muir.
14      MS. ACKERMAN: Hi, this must be the
15  softer end of the story here.  My talk
16  will be somewhat reminiscent of yours,
17  Susan.  Beloved earth.  Beloved.  When
18  you stop to think about it, we all love
19  the Earth, yet a gas intensive Energy
20  Plan is shortsighted benefitting gas
21  companies and lobbyists, yet not
22  benefitting life, Earth, children,
23  grandchildren.
24      I represent, with my friend,
25  Rachelle Bradt, Riverside Church's
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 2  grassroots committee on climate change.
 3  And we are called Beloved Earth.  Our
 4  church's tradition believes that we, as
 5  humans, are charged with being the
 6  caretakers of the planet.  And this is
 7  why our congregation voted overwhelmingly
 8  two months ago to support a total ban on
 9  fracking in New York State.  We believe,
10  or at least I do, that miraculous things
11  can happen.  In this case it would not
12  only be sensible but miraculous when
13  Governor Cuomo listens to the people of
14  this great state and hears that his
15  political legacy is connected to his
16  action on this Energy Plan.
17      I grew up summers in the Finger
18  Lakes and when I look out on that
19  precious resource, the giver of life,
20  water, I know, yes, we are all connected
21  and that includes watching and acting and
22  speaking with love.  To turn away as
23  quickly as possible from fossil fuels.  I
24  can see a future when we all, together
25  with the Energy Planning Board, quickly,
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 2  without wasting another life-giving
 3  moment, transition to renewable energy.
 4  In the words of another great
 5  American-borne faith tradition, the
 6  Hopis, we are the ones we've been waiting
 7  for.
 8      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
 9      Fay Muir, followed by Helen
10  Bentley.
11      MS. MUIR: Good afternoon, I'm here
12  representing my great-grandson.  His name
13  is Jaethan.  He turns seven months this
14  week.  I'm skipping the technicalities OF
15  THIS Energy Plan to ask how much longer
16  can we survive the self-serving
17  cost-benefit insanity of the fossil fuel
18  industry and its apologies.  I'm going to
19  quote from my venerable colleague, David
20  Ferguson, who cannot be here today.  As a
21  general matter truth reads easily.
22  Fracking's tortured logic makes no
23  attempt to account for the cost of
24  externalities that extractive industries
25  universally assume as a perennial
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 2  entitlement; the huge cost of health
 3  care, suffering and lost productivity;
 4  the vast loss in perpetuity of such
 5  essential and irreplaceable resources as
 6  water; the cost of ruined communities
 7  boomed until they bust; the enormous cost
 8  of capital invested in disruptive,
 9  soon-to-be obsolete infrastructure.
10  Resources desperately needed to fund
11  existing and technologies to prevent such
12  devastation as we still can from global
13  warning.  The incalculable cost of
14  continuing to cannibalize the plant,
15  scrapping the bottom of the fossil fuel
16  barrel with increasing dangerous and
17  costly technologies to aggrandize the few
18  at the expenses of the many, devouring
19  the planet that sustains us, self-serving
20  like a cancer that will in the end
21  consume the very society that supports
22  it.  Evidently, the only technology the
23  industry trusts is that which boosts its
24  bottom line.
25      Fracking's treatise hardly warrants
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 2  even the thin veneer of objectivity,
 3  decrying subsidies for renewables while
 4  soft peddling the horrendous subsidies
 5  enjoyed by oil and gas, the wealthiest
 6  industry the world has ever seen, and
 7  citing problems with intermittent
 8  renewables, such as storage, as if they
 9  were insurmountable for a society that
10  cracked the atom and got to the moon and
11  back.  Nowhere is there ever mentioned
12  the critical dire contribution of methane
13  to global warning or such ancillary costs
14  as the environmental degradation of the
15  mining and transportation of whole hills
16  of silica sand for fracking, nor the
17  continued devastation of exploding
18  trains.  Somehow they can't explain why
19  the trains explode.  I wouldn't be
20  surprised if it's the chemical in the
21  fracked crude, pipeline spills and the
22  poisoning of West Virginia, thank you,
23  David.
24      In concluding, please consider
25  these truths to remain self-evident.  Our
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 2  future depends on the widespread
 3  development of renewable energy.  Your
 4  plans for our energy future is severely
 5  lacking in this regard and needs further
 6  insight to change the dynamics to favor
 7  renewable energy in a comprehensive
 8  manner which gives the sustainability
 9  this state needs.  So I end also with the
10  question, Will you be culpable in fossil
11  fuel abomination to foster greed, or will
12  you be part of the solution?  Our state's
13  future depends on your choice.
14      MR. RHODES: Helen Bentley,
15  followed by Francisco Gomez.
16      Francisco Gomez, would you go now?
17  If Helen Bentley reappears she can go
18  after.
19      MR. GOMEZ: Hello, you guys can
20  hear me?  This is actually my first time
21  speaking.  My name is Francisco Gomez.
22  I'm a student at Birmingham Community
23  College and after-school teacher's
24  assistant in the elementary school.
25      I came all the way from the south
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 2  Bronx today to ask you to ban fracking.
 3  I traveled all the way to John Jay
 4  because I greatly understand that the
 5  environment is at stake.  It's an
 6  environment that we all share.  In those
 7  states who have nurtured the energy boom,
 8  which are Pennsylvania, Ohio, West
 9  Virginia and Texas has had hundreds and
10  hundreds of complaints about well-water
11  contaminations.  Oil, gas drilling and
12  pollution was confirmed in numbers of
13  them.
14      I'm here personally to emphasize
15  that, like everybody else here, I like
16  drinking water.  I don't want my water
17  contaminated because I kind of
18  biologically need it as well.  To those
19  who might not know about what fracking
20  can do, fracking can make water
21  flammable.  I also don't like flammable
22  water.  I'm not going to be funny, to be
23  honest.  A lot of consumption is based on
24  water, such as tea and coffee.  I see you
25  guys drinking coffee, you guys drinking


Page 130


 1      HEARING
 2  water.  I understand people like their
 3  local Starbucks coffee hot, but I don't
 4  think they like their coffee to be on
 5  fire.
 6      Another point I want to make is,
 7  let's say the State does let fracking
 8  proceed and a disaster happens, just like
 9  West Virginia, who is going to pay to
10  clean it up?  Is it going to be the oil
11  companies who I believe are getting tax
12  breaks from all this profit or the
13  taxpayers which is everybody in this
14  room?
15      Um, I would like to end my speech
16  with a quote from Margaret Mead.  She
17  quotes, We won't have a society if we
18  destroy the environment.  Thank you very
19  much.
20      MR. RHODES: So I believe Frank
21  Rimler had to leave, or he's here?  Josh
22  Cole followed by Gusti Bogok.
23      MR. COLE: My name is Josh Cole.
24  I'm here to testify on behalf of New York
25  State Senator Brad Hoylman.  He could not
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 2  make it, so I want to welcome everyone to
 3  the 27th Senate District which Senator
 4  Hoylman represents.
 5      I want to thank the board for the
 6  opportunity to submit testimony here
 7  today and for the board's hard work in
 8  developing this plan, given the
 9  complexity of New York State's unique
10  energy needs and resources.
11      I would also like to thank the
12  board for adhering to the commitment
13  previously set by the State to reduce
14  greenhouse gases up to 80 percent 2050.
15  The Plan contains valuable tools, such as
16  the extension of the Renewable Portfolio
17  Standard, and the Energy Efficiency
18  Portfolio Standard, for meeting that 80
19  percent reduction goal.
20      These mechanisms represent
21  environmentally progressive policy at its
22  best, allowing for the public sector to
23  encourage and guide the private sector
24  toward the common good.
25      This plan is a first step in
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 2  establishing a path to reducing our
 3  reliance on some of the more conventional
 4  fossil fuels which contribute to climate
 5  change, and establishes contingencies for
 6  the shuttering of the Indian Point power
 7  plant.  This operation presents
 8  well-known risks to residents throughout
 9  New York State, including the Senator's
10  constituents here in Manhattan.
11      That being said, the Senator is
12  concerned by the Plan's reliance on the
13  expanded use of natural gas, especially
14  in order to compensate for the reductions
15  of other fuels and the potential
16  reduction of nuclear power production.
17      While consumption of natural gas
18  may offer lower levels of carbon dioxide
19  emissions over more widely used fossil
20  fuels such as coal and oil, the fact
21  remains that natural gas is a fossil fuel
22  itself, and its use also contributes to
23  the greenhouse gas emissions which drive
24  climate change.  Methane, the primary
25  component of natural gas, is emitted into
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 2  the air during the extraction process.
 3  According to the Intergovernmental Panel
 4  on Climate Change, methane is 34 times
 5  more effective in trapping heat in our
 6  atmosphere over a 100-year period than is
 7  carbon dioxide.  Even more alarming, a
 8  recent study by researchers at Harvard
 9  University has found that the level of
10  atmospheric methane is substantially
11  higher than previously believed.  Given
12  these statistics, it is hard to see how
13  natural gas represents a more responsible
14  choice for empowering our state.  There
15  are also emerging concerns regarding the
16  release of radon through the use of
17  natural gas.  We believe we should have
18  answers about the quantity and safety of
19  radon being emitted before we further our
20  reliance on the use of natural gas.
21      Switching from a harmful energy
22  source to a seemingly less harmful
23  source, especially when more responsible
24  energy options are available, is bad
25  long-term policy.  Furthermore, given the
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 2  finite supply of natural gas, the
 3  potential for unpredictable variations in
 4  consumer prices, and the cost and scale
 5  of the additional infrastructure needed
 6  to deliver and use such fuel, increasing
 7  our reliance on natural gas would seem to
 8  be a shortsighted investment.
 9      All of this is, of course, in
10  addition to the externalities of the
11  natural gas extraction process, which
12  reeks its own havoc on the environment
13  destroying landscapes, tainting water
14  supplies, and contributing to
15  asthma-inducing ozone, just to name a
16  few.  While the DEC has studied the
17  catastrophes associated with natural gas
18  drilling in Pennsylvania and around the
19  nation, the agency has not developed a
20  regulatory framework to insure New York
21  will not suffer a similar fate.  As such,
22  Senator Hoylman is a staunch opponent of
23  permitting hydraulic fracturing, and is a
24  cosponsor of legislation to prohibit
25  fracking anywhere in New York State.  We
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 2  owe it to the generation of tomorrow to
 3  be more vigilant with our energy choices
 4  today.
 5      In 1931, well before our current
 6  did he pay the on fossil fuels, Thomas
 7  Edison likened our reliance on
 8  non-renewable energy sources to chopping
 9  down the fence around our house for fuel,
10  when we should be using nature's
11  inexhaustible sources of energy:  sun,
12  wind and tied.  More than 80 years later,
13  in light of our scientific understanding
14  of how our energy consumption affects the
15  planet, his words are especially
16  prescient.  We appreciate the New York
17  State Energy Planning Board being
18  judicious in our current policy so that
19  80 years from now we will not have
20  destroyed our house altogether.
21  Therefore, we urge the board to explore
22  opportunities to harness new energy
23  technologies and further reduce our
24  reliance on fossil fuels, including
25  natural gas.
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 2      Thank you very much for your time
 3  and for your consideration of our
 4  comments.
 5      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
 6  Before you get started, please come up.
 7  There was a question raised earlier and
 8  there will be up on the website for you
 9  in the room, asking about the membership
10  of the Energy Planning Board, in
11  particular the public members.  They are
12  Assemblywoman Amy Paulin appointed by the
13  assembly.  The Senate appointed Tom
14  Coakley, who is a retired professor at
15  St. Lawrence University, and the Governor
16  appointed James Winebrake who is at RIT,
17  those members and the agency members are
18  all on the website.  Thank you.
19      Back to you, thank you.
20      MS. BOGOK: Thank you, John, and
21  thank you for getting my name right.
22      So my name is Gusti Bogok, I'm the
23  co-chair of the Sierra Club Atlantic
24  Chapter Gas Drilling Task Force.  I also
25  am affiliated with several local
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 2  environmental groups in New York City
 3  including Sane Energy Project, and thank
 4  you for this opportunity to speak.
 5      New York's Energy Plan has the
 6  potential to be a road map for stemming
 7  the tide of climate chaos, cleaning up
 8  harmful pollution and making New York a
 9  national leader in renewable energy.  But
10  Governor Cuomo's plan must go further.
11      To protect families from the
12  escalating effects of climate destruction
13  the Plan must set a path to immediately
14  phase-out outmoded, dirty and dangerous
15  fuels, such as coal, gas and nuclear, and
16  shift towards clean renewable energy
17  solutions of the future.
18      If New York were truly serious
19  about combatting climate change it would
20  not attempt to frack and burn its way to
21  a stable climate.  Rather, New York would
22  commit to retiring dirty, aging and
23  uneconomical coal and oil plants and move
24  away from gas when replacing highly
25  polluting fossil fuel energy generation.
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 2  Converting dirty coal and oil plants will
 3  do nothing to reduce the State's carbon
 4  footprint when the life cycle greenhouse
 5  gas footprint of shale gas is considered.
 6  Emissions from methane are a hundred
 7  times more potent than from coal or
 8  diesel oil within the first 20 years.
 9      The benefits of utility scale
10  efficiencies resulting from proposed grid
11  modernization in the Governor's Energy
12  Highway Initiative have been entirely
13  overlooked in the Energy Plan itself.
14  Upgrading the grid with new technologies
15  will save energy and eliminate the need
16  to refurbish aging fossil fuel power
17  plants or build new ones.
18      However, FERC has authorized
19  electricity surcharges on all ratepayers
20  through the creation of a new Capacity
21  Zone, a financial construct designed to
22  support existing power plants and fossil
23  fuel industries producing frack gas.
24  Capacity Zone surcharges will increase
25  electricity rates far above current rates
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 2  and market conditions.  Requiring a
 3  utility to purchase from the Capacity
 4  Zone makes a failed plant artificially
 5  profitable and shifts the financial
 6  burden to ratepayers, effectively
 7  quashing long overdue renewable energy
 8  initiatives.  Therefore, FERC's Capacity
 9  Zone ratepayer surcharges must be
10  scrapped and the governor's Energy
11  Highway Initiative robustly implemented.
12      Also, New York must halt further
13  investments in gas infrastructure such as
14  pipelines, compressor stations and LNG
15  storage and export facilities and abandon
16  the risky transport of crude and tar
17  sands oil by rail and barge.  We've been
18  calling some of these trains bomb trains
19  which, indeed they are, or the
20  exportation of huge volumes of precious
21  water supplies to enable fracking in
22  Pennsylvania.  Trading gas for water is
23  foolhardy and these kinds of projects
24  pose grave risks to the health,
25  livelihoods and vital resources of
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 2  adjacent communities.
 3      Building out shale gas
 4  infrastructure in New York State will
 5  lock-in reliance on finite fossil fuels
 6  for decades to come, and thwart
 7  opportunities to scale-up renewable
 8  energy in time to avoid runaway climate
 9  change.  Ratepayers will be subject to
10  fluctuating prices and New York's
11  communities burdened with the devastating
12  effects and clean-up costs of hydraulic
13  fracturing.
14      So I have one minute remaining.
15  I'm going to skip a lot of this, but
16  focus on something that a lot of people
17  have overlooked which is the energy
18  reduction.  We have to get serious about
19  the energy reduction program.  Energy
20  reductions programs are the most
21  cost-efficient way to address energy
22  supply issues and New York must implement
23  programs to reduce consumption,
24  especially those that reduce energy
25  embedded in the products we consume.
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 2  Embedded energy accounts for a whopping
 3  40 percent of the energy we use.  So the
 4  Plan must counteract wasteful behavior in
 5  the public and private sectors and expand
 6  the categories within the Extended
 7  Producer Responsibility policy to mandate
 8  a quote, Design for recovery, law on all
 9  products.  To quote DEC's own Beyond
10  Waste Plan, New York State's Beyond Waste
11  Plan sets forth a new approach for New
12  York State focusing on end-of-the-pipe
13  waste management techniques to looking
14  upstream and more comprehensively at how
15  materials that would otherwise become
16  waste can be more sustainably managed
17  through the State's economy.  To this
18  end, the Energy Plan must give emphasis
19  and teeth to New York's Beyond Waste
20  Plan.  Finally, New York should electrify
21  its vehicle fleet so that reductions in
22  power sector carbon emissions will be
23  compounded in the transportation sector,
24  to help stabilize the climate and chart
25  New York State well on course toward a


Page 142


 1      HEARING
 2  sustainable, renewable energy future.
 3      MR. RHODES: John Miglietta,
 4  followed by Mav Moorhead.  Is Mav
 5  Moorhead here?
 6      MS. MOORHEAD: I am.
 7      MR. RHODES: Thank you.
 8      MS. MOORHEAD: Thank so much for
 9  having this hearing.  I'm Mav Moorhead.
10  I'm with NYH2O, it's a volunteer group.
11  We started working against the idea of
12  hydrofracking fracturing in 2009 and have
13  been working extensively toward that
14  goal.
15      I sent to David Bragdon at city
16  hall who is implementing the New York
17  City Energy Plan, and this is an e-mail
18  that that I sent back to him in December
19  of 201.  Basically, my focus will be on
20  immediate measures to implement
21  conservation and renewables because
22  conservation is really the ticket to
23  reduce the amount of energy the City and
24  therefore, in fact, the State could use
25  many of these particular suggestions.
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 2  I'll read the e-mail.  A lot of it is
 3  relevant to this, although it is
 4  addressed to him regarding the New York
 5  City Energy Plan.  "David Bragdon, in
 6  Plan NYC mitigating natural gas usage
 7  more of a priority than curtailing
 8  natural gas carbon emissions and
 9  footprint, fracking's natural gas huge
10  carbon footprint has been entirely
11  promoted by Plan NYC.  Marcellus shale
12  high level of radon 222 would be
13  transported into New York City homes,
14  restaurants, commercial entities causing
15  second leading cause of lung cancer in
16  the U.S., it's imperative that we not
17  only mitigate the onslaught of mitigating
18  factors that the carbon footprint is
19  produced, but most certainly to institute
20  immediately as many compounding measures
21  as possible to reverse the crippling
22  prospect of a future climate change.  A
23  few suggestions are included here and I
24  had spoken with him at that time about
25  these particular suggestions, in addition
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 2  to sending the e-mail.
 3      Suggestion:  Conservation,
 4  instituting mandates for New York City,
 5  and of course this could be implemented
 6  to New York State, for New York State or
 7  New York City buildings to provide
 8  uniform heat throughout buildings through
 9  use of conforming valves to no higher
10  than a temperature of 70 degrees would
11  relieve existing gross overheating in
12  many New York City buildings, and of
13  course this could be applied to many
14  different state buildings throughout the
15  State of New York, there are so many
16  residential and commercial buildings.
17      Number two:  Institute mandates
18  that office buildings turn off lights
19  after a certain hour unless in direct
20  use.  And that is a very important thing
21  because walking around any city you will
22  see many lights on in buildings and no
23  one is in occupancy at the time.  These
24  are very easily implemented.  These are
25  conversion -- conservation-implementing
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 2  devices that could be used and done
 3  immediately.  This is not anything that
 4  has to, that costs money to do.  It's
 5  mandated.
 6      Number three:  As part, as part of
 7  the European policy that currently
 8  exists, 24-hour hall-lighting is
 9  minimized.  Motion sensors are
10  implemented for efficiency and energy
11  consumption.  Think about all the
12  hallways in New York State, this is
13  hallways, in New York State in every
14  building, residential as well as
15  commercial, that could be changed over to
16  motion sensor detectors in every hallway
17  that would eliminate the usage of
18  electricity when no one's in the hallway.
19  So this of course is a job creator
20  because, for the obvious reasons.
21      Another one, mandate building
22  retrofit upgrades in terms of insulation,
23  increasing air barrier, less fossil fuel
24  energy uses with additional solar panels
25  on roofs in every building.  If every
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 2  federal building, state building, would
 3  be outfitted with solar panels, one could
 4  only imagine the decrease in electrical
 5  usage.  This is also a job creator.
 6      Another:  Direct building owners
 7  through a mailing campaign with
 8  definitive steps to be taken regarding
 9  real conservation efforts.  This would be
10  accomplished with a menu of choices that
11  could be phased in within a certain time
12  frame.  For example, a list of ten
13  choices with a checklist of at least
14  three of the choices for the landlord to
15  be implemented within one year and
16  progressing on to accomplish additional
17  choices each year.  That's a terrific
18  suggestion because it would give every
19  landlord impetus to perhaps move forward
20  with conservation, because basically,
21  what could be done is tax incentives
22  predicated on the fact that there -- let
23  me just do one more, okay?  Promotion and
24  subsidies for solar panels on roofs would
25  substantially augment energy needs --
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 2  that's a job creator tore -- and a
 3  landlord reward system for accomplishing
 4  their conservation goals could be a
 5  percentage reduction of real estate
 6  taxes, not to mention a yearly reduction
 7  of yearly NOY expenses, always a tried
 8  and true incentive.
 9      So these are tried and true
10  incentives that could be taken to
11  mitigate the usage in a conservation form
12  to mitigate the energy usage in New York
13  State.
14      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
15      David Alicea, followed by Jordan
16  Christensen.
17      MR. ALICEA: Hi, how are you?
18      MR. RHODES: Hi.
19      MR. ALICEA: So my name is David
20  Alicea.  I'm from Sierra Club and Beyond
21  Coal Campaign.  I'm here representing
22  thousands of Sierra members and
23  supporters here New York City and across
24  the State, some of whom are h ere today.
25  I just want to say thank you for putting
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 2  this plan together and listening to us
 3  and being here all day.
 4      So in 2012, after the devastation
 5  of Super Storm Sandy, Governor Cuomo made
 6  it clear, climate change is real and we
 7  have to act.  Since then, the Governor
 8  has made a strong commitment to solar
 9  through NY SUN and this plan and its goal
10  of reducing greenhouse gas emissions 80
11  percent by 2050 shows that this governor
12  understands climate change is a serious
13  issue.
14      Unfortunately, this plan has more
15  questions than answers when it comes to
16  how you get to that point.  A real plan
17  must include enforceable interim steps to
18  reach 80 percent reductions by 2050 and
19  must reject any further investment in
20  fossil fuels.  New Yorkers have said it
21  time and time again.  We can't frack and
22  burn our way to a clean energy economy.
23  While the Governor's commitment to solar
24  is an encouraging start, this plan should
25  ramp up renewable energy and commit to a
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 2  goal of 50 percent by 2025, and pledge to
 3  continue our energy-efficiency programs.
 4      It also needs to do more than pay
 5  lip service to some of the best
 6  opportunities that we have to build a
 7  new, clean energy economy.  Right now,
 8  off the coasts of New York City and Long
 9  Island, there are two major offshore wind
10  proposals.  We need the State and
11  Governor Cuomo to prioritize wind energy
12  development and make sure these projects
13  start moving forward this year.
14      A couple of things that we've heard
15  between yesterday and today is, Oh,
16  people don't want wind.  Actually, in
17  fact, we have shared with the Governor's
18  office over 70 percent of New Yorkers are
19  willing to pay more for wind energy.  And
20  some people don't think it's actually
21  feasible but it is.  These projects start
22  construction this year, not only will
23  these help us meet our goals by reducing
24  emissions but will create jobs for much
25  needed investment across New York.  New
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 2  York has the manufacturing base, the
 3  educated work force, and the port
 4  infrastructure to become home to the
 5  American offshore wind industry.  This
 6  Energy Plan should be jumping at that
 7  opportunity to help make New York a real
 8  leader.
 9      This plan would also make sure we
10  move away from further investments in gas
11  infrastructure and protect our families
12  and water from fracking.  Further
13  spending on natural gas infrastructure
14  will lock-in reliance for fossil fuels
15  for decades, increase demand for fracking
16  in our state, and help fund the
17  devastating gas extraction occurring in
18  states.  Instead of wasting millions of
19  dollars on fossil fuels, we can use those
20  resources to invest in clean, renewable
21  energy like wind and solar.  The Sierra
22  Club is asking, Let's turn, not burn our
23  way to a clean energy future.
24      Again, we're encouraged by the goal
25  of 80 percent by 2050, action on climate
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 2  change can't wait until 2050.  Super
 3  Storm Sandy showed us all, our
 4  communities are at risk now.  Will Long
 5  Island's famed beaches or Coney Island's
 6  boardwalk still be there for our
 7  children?  Will families who've spent
 8  generations on Staten Island or the
 9  Rockaways be forced to move?  This is
10  what is at stake.  We need Governor Cuomo
11  and this Energy Plan to make sure we are
12  protecting our communities.  We need a
13  strong commitment on renewable energy and
14  a real plan that explains how we can get
15  there.
16      Thank you once again for your time.
17  I hope you take my statements and those
18  of all the people who've spoken today and
19  use those to revisit this Energy Plan.
20      MR. RHODES: Thank you.
21      Jordan Christensen followed by
22  James Shillitto, and again, anyone who
23  has a written statement you can provide
24  it to the reporter when you're done.
25  Thank you.
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 2      MS. CHRISTENSON: Hi, My name is
 3  Jordan Christensen.  I'm with Citizens
 4  Campaign For the Environment.  I will be
 5  providing written comments, however,
 6  these are all scribbled up.  So since the
 7  development of the 2002 State Energy Plan
 8  CC has been actively engaged in the state
 9  energy planning process.  We've
10  consistently worked for renewable energy
11  development and energy efficiency, and
12  reduced dependence on fossil fuels and
13  nuclear power.
14      Before I make specific comments on
15  the Energy Plan we would like to express
16  our disappointment that New York has not
17  included any hearing the Hudson Valley.
18  Hudson Valley represents significant
19  licensed generation facilities and over
20  18,000 green jobs, and has the ability to
21  significantly contribute to the New
22  York's renewable energy future.  Here in
23  New York City we're already statewide
24  energy efficient and renewable energy
25  generation with PlaNYC.  By permitting
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 2  commercial and residential energy
 3  efficiency creating renewable energy
 4  incentives and infrastructure, New York
 5  city has achieved a 90 percent reduction
 6  in greenhouse gas emissions since 2005.
 7  This is an impressive achievement and one
 8  that can only be accomplished with good
 9  planning and an aggressive implementation
10  plan.  On the state level, New York
11  currently meets 22 percent of the state
12  energy needs for renewable energy.
13  However, New York has not maximized its
14  renewable energy potential, and it's
15  still far from the RPS goal of generating
16  30 percent less electricity from
17  renewable sources by 2015.  Hydropower
18  provides only 17 percent of New York's
19  electricity, but significant investments
20  in wind and solar projects are needed in
21  order to meet carbon emission production,
22  and renewable energy goals.  According to
23  a report by a recently released report
24  issued by Solar Foundation, New York
25  ranks fifth in the country for solar
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 2  energy jobs, up from seventh rank last
 3  year.  Since the inception of the
 4  program, New York City has created over
 5  five thousand jobs in the solar industry
 6  with potential to grow.  In addition to
 7  its economic benefit, solar is able to
 8  meet peak summer demand and to stabilize
 9  the grid.  With planning doing solar
10  mapping and distribute energy, New York
11  City's solar power could provide up to a
12  fifth of the City's electricity by 2020.
13  Investment in solar energy incentives,
14  infrastructure and storage capacity
15  should be a priority in the New York
16  State Energy Plan.  While renewable
17  energy production increased over all, New
18  York's wind resources still remain
19  largely untapped.  We rank twelfth in the
20  nation for wind capacity, but there is
21  significant offshore wind capacity as
22  well as land-based wind potential in
23  almost every region in the state.  New
24  York has enough wind potential to supply
25  50 percent of the State's current
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 2  electricity needs.  Wind power could play
 3  a large role in the renewable energy
 4  future and wind energy, particularly
 5  offshore projects, should be part of the
 6  Energy Plan.
 7      While we support the planned
 8  assessment, New York should be moving
 9  away from coal and nuclear power.  These
10  outdated fossil fuels should not be
11  replaced with dirty gas.  Natural gas is
12  not a clean fuel and it's not sustainable
13  for the future of New York State.
14      We also support the rejection of
15  the relicensing Indian Point, however,
16  although nuclear power poses unnecessary
17  health and environmental risks, so does
18  fracturing.  Indian Point supplies 200
19  megawatts of power to Westchester and New
20  York City.  This energy load should be
21  replaced by clean, emission-free wind and
22  solar.  Joint Long Island-New York City
23  offshore wind projects proposed by Con
24  Edison and LIPA is slated to supply
25  300,000 megawatts of offshore wind
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 2  energy.  The project would have been a
 3  critical step toward replacing Indian
 4  Point with clean energy.  CC is
 5  disappointed the opportunities for wind
 6  power have been repeatedly shelved.  In
 7  order to have a practical commitment to
 8  renewable energy generation, the New York
 9  State Energy Plan must embrace offshore
10  wind as a key part of renewable energy
11  plan.
12      New York has demonstrated a
13  commitment to increasing energy storage
14  capacity, global incentives, and
15  promoting energy efficiency.  The New
16  York State Energy Plan has stated that
17  it's the foundation's plan to move
18  forward with these goals but that is
19  simply not true.  Replacing one fossil
20  fuel with another is not a good public
21  health plan.  It's a stopgap measure that
22  does not prepare us for a better future.
23  Yes, the fuel will run out.  New York
24  City should be capitalizing on
25  opportunities to move New York into a
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 2  sustainable renewable energy future.
 3  Thank you.
 4      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
 5      Frank Ippoliti, followed by Eugene
 6  Shapiro.
 7      MR. IPPOLITI: Good afternoon, my
 8  name is Frank Ippoliti and I am the
 9  business agent for Millwright Local Union
10  740 which is part of the New York City
11  and Vicinity District Counsel of
12  Carpenters and I have the privilege of
13  speaking on behalf of 25,000
14  highly-skilled members.  Thank you for
15  the opportunity to share our views on New
16  York State's proposed energy plan.  My
17  local installs, repairs, replaces
18  machinery in every industry locations
19  ranging from nuclear power plants, heavy
20  construction projects, real estate,
21  transportation and infrastructure needs
22  throughout New York State.  We also
23  represent a large number amount of
24  workers at Indian Point Power Plant who
25  are proud to be part of the plant's
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 2  strong track record of high performance
 3  and record safety, earning the NRC's
 4  highest safety designation, Green, for
 5  nine years in a row.
 6      Before going any further I would
 7  like to recognize the board for
 8  developing a solid blueprint for
 9  safeguarding our energy future.  There is
10  certainly much to like with the proposed
11  plan, including the development of new
12  wind energy, support for extracting
13  natural gas from Marcellus shale
14  formation, promoting a modernized and
15  smarter grid among other ambitious energy
16  goals; however, some components of the
17  Plan raise concern.
18      In 2009 New York set a goal of
19  reducing electricity consumption 15
20  percent by 2015.  According to the data
21  from the New York Independent System
22  Operator, NYISO, the State's consumption
23  grew by 2.56 percent.  The current call
24  to realign efficient policies must be
25  rooted in the reality that New York needs
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 2  more energy, not less.  With this in
 3  mind, stronger restrictions should be put
 4  in place to ensure that failing to reach
 5  efficiency goals do not occur solely at
 6  the expense of the ratepayer.  High
 7  energy taxes and flawed policy
 8  initiatives are only part of the reason
 9  New York has the highest electric prices
10  in the continental United States.  The
11  Plan falls short on addressing to view to
12  expand or maintain access to affordable,
13  reliable energy sources.  This includes
14  pipelines that deliver natural gas,
15  transmission upgrades that deliver cheap
16  electricity from upstate in western New
17  York to downstate, cloaks political plans
18  to close Indian Point, yet invites an
19  ill-advised 336 extension cord from
20  Canada to Queens to take our jobs and
21  treasure north of the board.
22      For the record, the New York City
23  District Council of Carpenters supports
24  the continued operations of Indian Point.
25  The facility produces 2,000 megawatts of
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 2  affordable, reliable baseload power with
 3  virtually zero emissions.  It is also
 4  responsible for hundreds of well-paid,
 5  high-skilled union jobs.  This is good
 6  for our economy and our environment.
 7      We oppose the Champlain Hudson
 8  Power Express project as it undermines
 9  the governor's energy highway goal of
10  becoming energy independent.  NYISO's
11  2012 New York State Transmission
12  Assessment and Reliability Study found no
13  reliability need that merited the
14  installation of this unnecessary project.
15  In fact, during the recent cold snap, New
16  York sent New York-generated power to
17  Pennsylvania, New Jersey, and Quebec as
18  each could not meet their demand for
19  energy.  New York should focus on
20  remaining a net energy exporter and not
21  allow itself to become dependent on
22  foreign energy sources.  Energy
23  dependency leads to higher electric
24  prices, job losses, and would reverse the
25  course of New York's economic recovery.
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 2      As you construct the final Energy
 3  Plan, I urge you to consider these
 4  arguments to fortify what is a largely
 5  positive plan.  As a region continuously
 6  growing and demanding more power, we must
 7  do what is necessary to address these
 8  issues.  Bolstering in-state power
 9  generation while safeguarding our current
10  baseload portfolio, including Indian
11  Point, are critical parts of this
12  efforts.  Thank you.
13      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
14      Eugene Shapiro.
15      MR. SHAPIRO: Well, it's
16  interesting to follow a fellow union
17  official as I'm a former official from
18  the Motion Pictures Editor's Guild.
19      I read your Draft Plan with great
20  interest because I don't come before you
21  with great energy and planning expertise
22  or experience.  So why do I come before
23  you?  I understand the complexities of
24  what you have to deal with and it reminds
25  me of the complexities from 45 years ago
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 2  seeing how a West African republic with
 3  ill-planning ended up destroying their
 4  food, land resource and water supply in
 5  the way they built a damn.  In the
 6  meantime, we compared it to the beaver,
 7  who needless to say, does a good job of
 8  damning.  I remember asking my colleagues
 9  the horrors of World War II and people
10  getting gassed to death, but somehow with
11  over 50 million dead bodies, mankind
12  recovered from that.  Now, what happens
13  with what we've heard about the water
14  supply?  Well, you made some mistakes,
15  are you going to fix that?  No.  You
16  destroy the water supply and it's gone
17  like it was in that part of West Africa.
18  Every once in a while, as a filmmaker, I
19  get jealous when I was watching Gasland
20  which I'm sure many people here have
21  seen, and he walks over to the water with
22  a lit match, turns on the water, and you
23  expect that match to be put out, and
24  instead it explodes.  That's our
25  next-door neighbor making the mistakes,
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 2  because coming out of the water is gas.
 3  Until the system is refined -- and I'm
 4  not denying the fact it could be studied
 5  and refined -- let's not jump the gun.
 6  This is one of the best water supplies in
 7  the world, accidentally, here in New
 8  York.  So I say to you, having watched
 9  that scene in Gasland, I think that
10  fracking is misspelled.  It's not
11  F-R-A-C-K-I-N-G.  It's S-U-I-C-I-D-E,
12  suicide.
13      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
14      Dr. Shyana Orum, and can I just
15  check on Helen Bentley or John Iglietta
16  have returned?  After, it will be Tassia
17  Rosa.
18      DR. ORUM: Thanks, thank you the
19  committee.  I'm actually a New Yorker but
20  I also have a little house in upstate New
21  York and in that home I use electric
22  power from wind farms.  My neighbor
23  across the street who just moved in is
24  getting solar panels on his roof, so I
25  know renewables are practical and they
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 2  work.
 3      I'm here today because of my
 4  experience working in New York City for
 5  many years with children and families.  I
 6  was the tutor of hospitalized children
 7  for the New York City Board of Education
 8  and some of the boroughs with a high air
 9  pollution such as the South Bronx and
10  central Brooklyn and I watched as
11  children, seven, nine, 13, 16 year-olds
12  were hospitalized, struggling to breathe.
13  I watched as their families were looking
14  on helplessly.  I saw those children lose
15  their opportunities for good education,
16  for advancement in life.  I even had the
17  unhappy experience of seeing one of our
18  promising young woman who managed to get
19  into a private high school, through her
20  hard work, die, in the intensive care
21  unit, from asthma.  And yet, this plan is
22  advocating for gas infrastructure
23  build-out that will increase air
24  pollution wherever it goes and in that
25  way sicken thousands of children and
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 2  adults now and in the future, and it
 3  can't be reversed.  That air pollution
 4  does not go away.  I'm very grateful to
 5  Pramilla for speaking about her family
 6  experiences in Minisink with the new
 7  compressor station there and I think it's
 8  a very telling description of what will
 9  happen all over, and because of that, I
10  want to read a press release that her
11  organization, her citizen organization,
12  put out last March regarding a blow-down
13  in Minisink last March.  It says, "This
14  week a blow-down event occurred in
15  Minisink, New York as Millennium pipeline
16  subsidiary of NiSource which has just
17  become part of Columbia Pipeline Group,
18  released unknown quantities of
19  high-pressure emission from two metering
20  stations in order to clear the line as
21  they connected the compressor station to
22  the main gas pipeline.  However,
23  Millennium failed to notice several of
24  the residents of Minisink of the code red
25  event.  Numerous residents have reported
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 2  nosebleeds, painful headaches, nausea,
 3  and stomach pain and dizziness this week.
 4  Although the blow-down events were
 5  scheduled for March 5th and 6th, Tuesday
 6  and Wednesday of last week, earlier this
 7  morning, which was the 11th, the local
 8  volunteer fire department was called when
 9  loud booms were heard at approximately
10      8:30 a.m., followed by noxious fumes.
11  The sounds and smells were perceptible
12  from a half-a-mile away.  The specific
13  cause is still unknown.  'We were shocked
14  and scared to hear this tremendous noise
15  coming from the compressor station,' said
16  Osha Conello (phonetic) a Minisink
17  resident."
18      If this was planned why weren't we
19  notified?  Millennium is bound by law to
20  report these events to residents of the
21  town, at least a few days before the
22  blow-down occurs.  However, Millennium
23  did not notify residents then, and
24  Pramilla has told us there is ongoing
25  smell of sulfur, and on Christmas Day, as
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 2  a holiday gift, Millennium managed
 3  another blow-down which caused this type
 4  of event which I've just read about.
 5      So if we're looking to the gas
 6  industry to provide safe and healthy
 7  power, I think we can forget it.  I think
 8  we have to realize that it's our
 9  representatives, our governor, our team,
10  to provide the Plan that will make sure
11  that this type of thing does not happen
12  all over New York State, and I believe we
13  can do it.  You know, so many people have
14  spoken today about all the options for
15  clean energy, renewables, and it's there,
16  it's available.  It needs to be done.
17  Going back to building up gas
18  infrastructure, such as pipeline, the
19  Spectra pipeline that is now in the West
20  Village that could blow up and cause a
21  blast zone all the way to 28th Street,
22  that's not what we need.
23      We're asking you to create a plan
24  that pushes renewables that gets rid of
25  fossil fuels and that brings us into the
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 2  future.  Let's get moving cause we can do
 3  it.
 4      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
 5      Tassia Rosa, followed by James
 6  Shillitto.
 7      MS. ROSA: Good afternoon, and
 8  thank you for this opportunity to testify
 9  today.  My name is Tassia Rosa.  I'm a
10  project coordinator for the New York
11  Public Interest Research Group of the
12  Borough of the Manhattan Community
13  College.  NYPIRG is the largest consumer
14  environmental consumer advocacy
15  organization, with 20 college campus
16  chapters across New York State, including
17  ten here in New York City.  NYPIRG
18  representatives will be speaking on
19  different topics at each of the scheduled
20  hearings of the Energy Plan, and will
21  submit formal written comments on a later
22  date.
23      I will focus my comments today on
24  how the Plan addresses mass transit.
25  Most of our students rely on New York
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 2  City's extensive network of subways,
 3  buses and railroads to get around.  For
 4  35 years NYPIRG's Straphanger's Campaign
 5  has been the leading advocate for decent,
 6  safe and affordable mass transit in New
 7  York City.
 8      According to the Metropolitan
 9  Transit Authority, MTA mass transit helps
10  New Yorkers avoid about 17 million metric
11  tons of pollutants, while emitting only 2
12  million metric tons, making it perhaps
13  single biggest source of greenhouse gas
14  avoidance in the United States.
15      The draft Energy Plan acknowledges
16  that mass transit is an important
17  energy-saving mechanism.  Mass transit
18  jobs make up about 62 percent of New
19  York's clean energy economy jobs and
20  public services.  But while the Plan
21  recognizes that increased investment in
22  transportation infrastructure is
23  critical, it fails to establish a clear
24  road map for funding transit projects or
25  maintaining and training existing
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 2  infrastructure.  Instead, the Plan
 3  laments in today's challenging fiscal
 4  climate, identifying the resources
 5  necessary to sustain or increase
 6  transportation investment is a major
 7  hurdle.
 8      This is troubling for three
 9  reasons:  First, Governor Cuomo has
10  routinely raided funds dedicated to mass
11  transit and used them for other purposes.
12  The governor's executive budget proposal
13  contains a raid of MTA dedicated funds
14  that could mean a rough ride for bus and
15  subway riders, workers and manufactures.
16  In the proposed budget $40 million in
17  dedicated transit funds which pay for
18  day-to-day operations, service and
19  maintenance would be diverted into the
20  general service debt fund.  With this
21  action, Governor Cuomo reneged on an
22  agreement the State made with the MTA in
23  2002, in which the State would pay for
24  $2.4 billion in MTA debt, while putting
25  the MTA unstable finances at risk.
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 2  Furthermore, the governor has twice
 3  thwarted attempts to safeguard existing
 4  transit funds.  The transit lock-box bill
 5  would have increased fiscal transparency
 6  and public accountability while
 7  protecting dedicated transit funds.  Its
 8  key provision required the State to issue
 9  a diversion impact statement in the
10  unfortunate event that state dedicated
11  transit funds are diverted.  The impact
12  statement details what effect the
13  diversion would have had on transit
14  service, safety, and maintenance.  The
15  state legislature unanimously passed such
16  legislation in 2011 and again in 2013,
17  legislation that was supported by over
18  200 organizations across the state, but
19  the governor neutered the 2011 bills and
20  vetoed the 2013 bill.
21      Finally, the MTA's 2015 through
22  2019 Capital Building Program, the Plan
23  that allows the MTA to purchase new,
24  energy-efficient rolling stock like
25  subway cars and buses, and also to begin
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 2  projects like a fully featured bus rapid
 3  transit network.  That has a ten to $15
 4  billion hold no one knows where the final
 5  budget will come from.  We need
 6  leadership to solve these funding
 7  problems and not pay them lip service.
 8      Finally, one of the initiatives
 9  outlined in the Plan is to increase
10  transportation alternatives and vehicle
11  diversity to harness the benefits of
12  decreased dependence on oil and a
13  cleaner, more connected and more flexible
14  transportation network.  However, the
15  initiative fails to recognize Bus Rapid
16  Transit as a tested, viable alternative
17  that utilizes green vehicles and can be
18  implemented wherever there is enough road
19  space, political will and public
20  engagement.  Instead, this idea which was
21  touted as a priority strategic plan in
22  the governor's 2100 Commission report,
23  gets hardly a mention.  Bus Rapid Transit
24  is the State's best chance of expanding
25  mass transit service quickly and cost
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 2  effectively to transit-starved
 3  communities across New York City and New
 4  York State.  New York City has its own
 5  slimmed-down version of Bus Rapid
 6  Transit, called Select Bus Service, which
 7  is living up to its promise of faster and
 8  more reliable trips.  Through extensive
 9  community exercises and a willingness to
10  work with and hear from the public, MTA
11  New York City Transit and the New York
12  City Department of Transportation have
13  made great strides bringing a new
14  generation of bus service to the streets
15  of New York.  We can do better and the
16  State should look to the MTA as a model
17  for green and alternative transportation
18  and work to emulate their successes with
19  other transit providers across the State.
20  Thank you so much again.
21      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
22  And if you would share the written
23  comments, that would be helpful.
24      James Shellitto, followed by
25  Michael Jay.
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 2      MR. SHILLITTO: Good afternoon.
 3  I'm James Shillitto.  I'm vice-president
 4  of the Utility Workers of America, Local
 5  1-2, speaking on behalf of our president,
 6  James Slevin.
 7      There is no doubt that the 2014
 8  Draft Energy Plan for New York contains
 9  very laudable goals and a view to New
10  York's energy future.
11      There is no doubt that the Plan
12  contains exciting ideas to meet our
13  growing demand for electricity in the
14  21st century.
15      There is no doubt that private
16  capital needs to sustain to help
17  stimulate this vision for a sustained
18  energy policy.
19      But what concerns me is that while
20  lip-service is paid to jobs and education
21  and training, there are no hard numbers
22  to help drive the Plan.  What is needed
23  in any energy map for our future is a
24  strong plan that has specific numbers of
25  good, middle-class jobs for the men and
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 2  women who will build, operate and
 3  maintain the grid of tomorrow.
 4      For too long New York and it's
 5  state-run economic development
 6  infrastructure have relied on spreading
 7  the wealth to already deep-pocketed
 8  investors without the concomitant
 9  creation of good-paying, steady jobs for
10  New York's workforce.  Sure, we help the
11  private sector by offering handsome
12  portions of the State's bond-cap to
13  fiance projects, and we extend to them
14  multiple tax-incentives to stay, yet it
15  is always done with fluid metrics that
16  demand very little evidence that the
17  financiers, many of whom call themselves
18  job creators, do create the jobs they
19  promise.
20      And then the Plan calls for these
21  investors to be self-reporting on their
22  progress.  Have we learned nothing from
23  the recent past?  Jobs, jobs, jobs.
24  Good-paying, steady, middle-class
25  building jobs are what is missing from
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 2  the equation of the 2014 Draft Energy
 3  Plan.  Ever since the global economic
 4  meltdown of 2008, stories emerge every
 5  day of corporate pillaging that takes
 6  place in the name of economic
 7  development.  Corporations already pay
 8  the lowest federal/state taxes in more
 9  than 60 years.  Executive pay for the top
10  ranks is at obscene levels which everyone
11  acknowledges but does nothing about.
12  Meanwhile, the middle class has been
13  stripped, laid off, and downsized, made
14  to take it on the chin.  It was manpower
15  that made New York the Empire State.  It
16  was manpower and its skilled, organized
17  workforce that helped made New York
18  become an industrial and economic power
19  in the 21st century.
20      Don't let the energy investors fool
21  you.  "Well, if we build it the jobs will
22  follow.  It's not true.  These projects
23  get nickel and dimed by anti-union
24  contractors and unqualified
25  subcontractors and out-of-state jobbers
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 2  who add nothing to the permanency of the
 3  jobs we need.
 4      So while we endorse the goals
 5  outlined in the Draft Energy Plan, we
 6  also take it with a grain of salt.  For
 7  it includes no real vision of the men and
 8  women who will perform the day-to-day
 9  tasks required.  It includes no vision of
10  good middle-class jobs that can be
11  created by smart energy investment.  It
12  contains no vision of real sweat, the
13  real toil, the real number of bodies that
14  will be needed.
15      Remember, without using these
16  investments to build a good workforce
17  with a strong middle class, there will
18  not be any ratepayers left to pay.
19  Everyone will have fled.
20      It was a strong middle class that
21  transformed this state and this country
22  after World War II.  And each time
23  another plan emerges that does not focus
24  on the key component of human capital,
25  and how it works, is doomed to be just so
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 2  much more pie in the sky.
 3      Tell us where the jobs are.  In
 4  addition, we'd like to confirm our strong
 5  opposition to the Champlain Hudson Power
 6  Express project and urge its denial.
 7  Electric power plants provide skilled,
 8  good-paying, sustainable jobs of
 9  thousands of hard working union members.
10  Rather than spurning investment to new
11  facilities, this proposal will curtail
12  infrastructure investments and undercut
13  the need of other in-state generation by
14  creating a one-way energy highway from
15  Quebec to Queens.  The result is the
16  exploitation of both jobs and dollars to
17  benefit Canada.  Updating and building
18  new electricity generation and
19  relicensing of Indian Point are important
20  for New York's energy future.  Thank you.
21      MR. RHODES: Michael Jay?  Faith
22  Steinberg followed, by Adele Bender.
23      MS. STEINBERG: My name is Faith
24  Steinberg and I'm a native New Yorker.  I
25  live on the upper west side.
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 2      We've heard a lot about natural gas
 3  today.  Whenever I hear natural I'm on
 4  the alert, because it's such an overused
 5  word.  Ain't nothing natural about
 6  pouring chemicals into the earth to get
 7  gas.  It ain't natural.  You know, poison
 8  ivy is natural, too.  I sometimes make
 9  the mistake of saying that humans are
10  killing our planet Earth but the --
11      MR. RHODES: Ms. Steinberg, you're
12  drifting off the mike, if you can speak
13  clearly.  I can hear you, but --
14      MS. STEINBERG: The reverse is
15  true.  The Earth is killing humans and
16  the Earth, being the wonderful organism
17  that it is, is telling us in its own
18  language that what we English-speaking
19  humans call storms, tsunamis, hurricanes,
20  cyclones, earthquakes, and on and on in
21  our ingenious manner.  How many of us
22  have died worldwide?  But the Earth is
23  still here.  Many living creatures have
24  been erased from the Earth but the Earth
25  is still here.  There's an echo system
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 2  and we think that we humans can outsmart
 3  Mother Earth but it's not true.  The
 4  Earth is reacting.  Instead of finding
 5  new sources rather than fossil fuels we
 6  must find more ways to conserve energy
 7  and become -- because we're becoming what
 8  the fable, the Sorcerer's Apprentice, is
 9  telling us.  Instead of the stupid, and I
10  use the word stupid because there's so
11  much information around that is being
12  ignored, so it's not ignorance of the
13  facts.  It's stupidity because of the
14  greedy people and they're poisoning our
15  land and habitats, we must find ways to
16  get sustainable energy and explore solar
17  energy, wind and water power.  That would
18  create lots of jobs.
19      Also I want to add to the woman's
20  list of ways to conserve energy.  I don't
21  mean to offend the men in our midst, but
22  during the summer, when we were having
23  record heat, men are dressed in ties and
24  it makes no sense, and the air
25  conditioning has to go up, and it's all
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 2  over the world, it's all corporate
 3  structures.  Women are putting on
 4  sweaters and men are dressed in their, in
 5  their leather shoes.  I forget what you
 6  call those shoes, but that's another way,
 7  I think it was Al Gore who said there are
 8  all kinds of little ways that we can
 9  conserve energy and I think that if we
10  want a world, the Earth, to be here for
11  humans, if we want humans to be here for
12  this Earth, then we have got to change.
13  We have really messed up the world and
14  now they want to go to the other planets
15  and see how they can mess them up.  Okay,
16  thank you.
17      MR. RHODES: Adele Bender followed
18  by Morgan Monzana, if I have that right.
19      MS. BENDER: Can you hear me?  My
20  name is Adele Bender.  I am a member of
21  the Gray Panthers and several other
22  organizations to Riverkeeper and so I'm
23  always very, very passionate about what
24  happens to our environment.  It's the one
25  Earth we know about that we have and what
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 2  scares me about going to the other
 3  planets, if we ever find life on another
 4  planet I hope we don't trash this planet.
 5  I'd like it to stay.  I'd like our planet
 6  to stay nice and healthy.
 7      One of the things I'd like to talk
 8  about, we're here about fracking.  About
 9  twenty-five years ago, I live two blocks
10  off Queens Boulevard in Forest Hills,
11  Queens, and about 20, 25 years ago my
12  husband and I, like two o'clock in the
13  morning, we felt a boom, a vibration, and
14  we didn't know what it was.  The next day
15  we found out it was a mini earthquake,
16  and this comes from all the way upstate,
17  and so it's not impossible if you're
18  going to have fracking, I don't know that
19  fracking will exacerbate a situation like
20  this, cause a situation like this, or if
21  there is another mini earthquake what
22  would happen with fracking, with the gas
23  coming all the way down from upstate.  My
24  common sense tells me, I get a little
25  nervous, I do think about it from time to
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 2  time, and I leave it to the scientists
 3  and the experts to look at a situation
 4  like this, and as I say, I am afraid of
 5  this fracking, and I think it is really
 6  important that the experts really search
 7  out alternatives and safer and healthier
 8  alternative to use to be able to avoid
 9  things like fracking because we need
10  clean air, we need clean water cause once
11  those chemicals are used for the fracking
12  and if the water is ruined, that's it.
13  You cannot straighten it out.  Everybody
14  is affected, rich poor and in between.
15  So I think we have to be very cautious
16  about this and use a lot of the good
17  alternative energies.  If I have to spend
18  a couple of more dollars on my Con Edison
19  bill, I think of the L'Oreal ad, I'm
20  worth it, and you're worth it and we're
21  worth it.  Thank you.
22      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
23  Morgan Montana, followed by Michael
24  Benjamin.  Is Michael Benjamin here?
25  Thank you very much, sir.
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 2      MR. BENJAMIN: Thank you.
 3      MR. RHODES: And following will be
 4  Merrill Macel -- I'm sorry.
 5      MR. BENJAMIN: I will submit my
 6  testimony to you later.  I will send you
 7  my testimony by e-mail later.
 8      MR. RHODES: Thank you.
 9      MR. BENJAMIN: Can you hear me all
10  right?
11      MR. RHODES: I can, yes.
12      MR. BENJAMIN: Good afternoon, my
13  name is Michael Benjamin.  I'm a former
14  state legislator from the Bronx.
15  Presently I'm with SHARE New York a
16  membership-based organization consisting
17  of individual and small businesses.  I'm
18  here today in support of relicensing
19  Indian Point Energy Center.  As a
20  legislator I visited IPEC on more than
21  one occasion.  I was impressed by the
22  operation and dedication of the
23  operators.  Nuclear energy is an integral
24  part of all of President Obama's all of
25  the above energy policy.  Electricity
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 2  generated by Indian Point is clean,
 3  affordable and reliable.  Our modern
 4  society depends on electricity for
 5  virtually everything.  At SHARE we
 6  believe the New York State Energy Plan
 7  should include a large investment in
 8  cost-effective energy management and
 9  awareness of programs.  The environmental
10  communities should have input before new
11  power plants are permitted to be built.
12  Continuing operation of Indian Point
13  would provide 20 to 40 percent of the
14  area's power needs and the development
15  environment of renewable energy, wind,
16  solar, hydroelectric power to address
17  growing power needs.  We believe that the
18  state Energy Plan should support programs
19  to lower energy bills and protect our
20  environment, strengthen energy building
21  codes, and expand programs that manage
22  power usage on the hottest days of the
23  year.
24      Low income areas in and around New
25  York City have a disproportionate number
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 2  of power plants damaging the health and
 3  quality of life in those areas.  Such
 4  communities must be involved in the
 5  decision-making process before any new
 6  power plants are constructed.  Two years
 7  ago an independent report commissioned by
 8  the City of New York found that if IPEC
 9  were to be closed New York City
10  ratepayers would pay an additional two to
11  $3 billion dollars in higher energy
12  costs.  The closing of Indian Point Power
13  Plant would place another billion dollars
14  on area residents.  That's nearly $3
15  billion in additional costs on New
16  Yorkers.
17      Irrational fears should not drive
18  state energy policy.  Nuclear power
19  plants are not the same as nuclear bombs.
20  IPEC will not and cannot explode.
21  Replacing Indian Point with dirtier coal
22  or gas-fired power plants will be
23  unhealthy.  The State Energy Plan must
24  insure the power is from safe,
25  reliability and renewable energy.  And
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 2  finally, $3 billion in additional
 3  unnecessary costs must not be passed onto
 4  overburdened ratepayers.
 5      Thank you for taking the time to
 6  hear my views.
 7      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
 8      Merrill Maceldonery (phonetic), I
 9  apologize.  Tula Tsalis, followed by
10  Elizabeth Mellen.
11      MS. TSALIS: I want to thank you
12  for the opportunity to speak today and I
13  would mainly like to address the people
14  out here.  I feel very, very privileged
15  to be here among you today.  I feel very
16  privileged to be here among you today.
17      I have been active throughout my
18  life in many, many ways and more recently
19  have been quiet until now.
20      I live in Warwick, New York, Orange
21  County, and I'm a member of Sustainable
22  Warwick and also Orange County Peace and
23  Justice Coalition which is beginning to
24  have some interest in these energy
25  issues, whereas before they were so
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 2  concerned about Iraq and Afghanistan.  I
 3  made a couple of -- I don't have a formal
 4  presentation.  I just made a few brief
 5  notes.
 6      In Orange County there is a plan to
 7  build a huge plant in a place called way
 8  Wawayander, right near Middletown.  I
 9  don't know how many of you know that
10  area.  I know that you do.  I just
11  learned this today and I learned a few
12  things today, and I'm very, very thankful
13  to you for educating me.  This plant,
14  which is, I forget what the size is, it's
15  going to be built, if it is built, by
16  Competitive Power Ventures, I've heard
17  them called competitive power vultures,
18  but I read somewhere that Competitive
19  Power Ventures who also, by the way,
20  wants to build a huge plant in Northern
21  California, had made some comments about
22  the fact that when the nuclear power
23  plant closes, which of course it must
24  close, then they will be in the perfect
25  position once the plant is built near
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 2  Middletown to provide the much-needed
 3  energy that the area needs.  There are
 4  other people who have come out about the
 5  fact that with energy conservation we're
 6  not going to need that level of energy
 7  production in that region.  I don't know
 8  if that's true there, but these things
 9  are being bounced around.
10      I'm here to say simply this:  This
11  is one of the most important issues right
12  now.  The decisions that we make today
13  and tomorrow regarding energy will make
14  the difference in the quality of our
15  lives and in the quality of the planet in
16  the years ahead.  Everyone here knows
17  that.  We've all expressed these facts,
18  figures, information.  I don't have to
19  say more on any of that, even if I knew
20  them which I don't have the details, but
21  I'm grateful to many of you who do have.
22  What I would like to see happen in New
23  York State is a full commitment toward
24  renewable energy as most of you do as
25  well, and for this to happen, we're going
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 2  to have -- we're going to need the kind
 3  of energy, human power energy, that
 4  occurred back in the late sixties and
 5  seventies when the environmental movement
 6  first became a reality and communities
 7  all over the country were involved, and
 8  that's how we got the laws that were put
 9  in place afterwards.  And for that to
10  happen today, those of us who are working
11  on this now must begin to form
12  coalitions.  Other groups, large and
13  small, some of you are so good at it,
14  you're professional, and sometimes those
15  who are professionals in the
16  environmental area tend to stay and work
17  together by themselves and don't
18  necessarily reach out to small
19  communities here and there.  That's what
20  I hope will happen.
21      There's a hearing to take place on
22  February 25 in Middletown, New York.
23  It's no longer a community college, it's
24  now a full four-year college, as I
25  understand, and I, I'm asking why, why is
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 2  there only one, only one public meeting
 3  to take place on this incredibly
 4  important issue in Orange County, when
 5  there should be many?  Not only in Orange
 6  County but everywhere.  The limitation of
 7  these meetings is a mistake and the only
 8  way to rectify that is to fight it.  It's
 9  the only way, because Governor Cuomo and
10  the State of New York will do what
11  governors do in order to get things done.
12  Sometimes they will try to limit
13  discussion and that must not happen.
14  Thank you.
15      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
16  Elizabeth Mellen, followed by Ann Basser,
17  I believe.
18      MS. MELLEN: I'm Elizabeth Mellen.
19  I live in Manhattan.  I'm a member of a
20  church which is also part of a network
21  called Interfaith Power and Light all
22  across the State, are concerned with
23  energy conservation and climate change.
24  I'm also a member -- I mean, contribute
25  to the Atlantic Chapter Sierra Club.  I
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 2  applaud all preceding comments pointing
 3  out the danger of fracking to our
 4  environment and to human and animal
 5  health.  I add my voice emphasizing our
 6  need to move away from natural gas and
 7  other fossil fuels to renewables.
 8      Fracking and the continued
 9  construction in the State of new
10  pipelines for compressed gas takes us in
11  the wrong direction if we care about
12  global warming.  Also, considering that
13  new pipelines are intended to lead to gas
14  exporting, the current profit motive as
15  opposed to the public's interest becomes
16  clear and evident.  On another note, with
17  a summer place in Susquehanna County,
18  Pennsylvania, a state which caved and
19  it's is just ten miles as the crow flies,
20  our place is, from Dimock, Pennsylvania.
21  I have witnessed the industrialization of
22  lovely, lovely countrysides.  The
23  degradation of roads, the influx of
24  workers from the southwest of the U.S.,
25  the rising housing costs for locals.  The
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 2  enormous fracking pads and compressor
 3  stations and the endless -- and the water
 4  truck stations for the trucks which suck
 5  millions of gallons of water from the
 6  tributaries of the Susquehanna River,
 7  that truck traffic and the enormous
 8  flatbed trucks carrying huge, heavy
 9  machinery are just a new phenomenon in
10  otherwise lovely countryside.  We are
11  subject there to the endless and
12  relentless PR propaganda of Chesapeake
13  and Cabot and other gas corporations
14  here.
15      We're here, we're doing good, we
16  contribute to the local hospital, we do
17  this, we do this, and it's endless.  The
18  proposed route of the Constitution
19  Pipeline is suppose to run from there to
20  Albany, runs throughout the property
21  adjoining ours where we walk each
22  morning.  That's close to home, but all
23  of this is very close to all our homes.
24  Do we want this kind of industrialization
25  of upstate New York countryside or will
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 2  we move more seriously to renewable
 3  sources of energy?  Thank you.
 4      MR. RHODES: Thank you.  Anne
 5  Basser, followed by Sheila Geist.
 6      MS. BASSER: Thank you, I don't
 7  have a lot of -- I don't have any
 8  prepared statement but one of the major
 9  issues that is not spoken about very
10  often with fracking is the billions of
11  gallons of water used in the fracking
12  wells and how that is not usable again.
13  It's contaminated.  There's been a media
14  blackout and a gag, gag orders by the gas
15  industry for people who've had their
16  water contaminated cannot speak about it.
17  It's leaking out.  A lot of people are
18  now finding out about it, so that's just
19  a huge, huge issue.  Obviously our water
20  is pure.  It's one of the best water
21  systems in the whole world and why are we
22  going to commit suicide, as someone
23  mentioned earlier.  I felt my own
24  personal experience of just two days
25  without clean water and it was one of the
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 2  scariest experiences I've had and I don't
 3  know if any of you up there have had
 4  that, but there was a blackout in 2004
 5  and then the high-rise building I was
 6  living in, the water couldn't get up to
 7  our apartments, and it was chaos.  People
 8  were at the delis buying bottled water,
 9  and I just have a glimpse of what it
10  would be like if our water system was
11  destroyed.  People would be killing each
12  other for clean water, and that's not a
13  very crazy scenario considering what
14  fracking is doing to water supplies.  So
15  do we want to get into that?  I don't
16  think so.  I don't want to, and I imagine
17  you and your families, children,
18  grandchildren, don't want to get into
19  that situation.
20      So ban fracking immediately.  We
21  should support alternative energy that's
22  been around for years and just not being
23  developed because the gas industry and
24  the oil industry won't make any profit on
25  it.  Thank you.
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 2      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
 3      Sheila Geist, followed by Ellen
 4  Weininger.
 5      MS. GEIST: Hello, I'm Sheila
 6  Geist.  I'm an at-large rights activist
 7  and I've been walking with -- I've been
 8  working with United for Action --
 9      MR. RHODES: United for Action, if
10  you can keep your mike up.
11      MS. GEIST: -- United for Action
12  and Shut Down Indian Point Now.  Most of
13  what I was going to speak about has
14  already been said this morning and
15  especially the presentation to the
16  speakers from Minisink, Food Water Watch,
17  Riverkeeper, and from the Sierra Club
18  have given the details of the dangers of
19  fracking and of methane, and also the
20  dangers from Indian Point from nuclear
21  reactors all over the State.
22      However, I'd like to focus on a few
23  details that are absent in your plan and
24  necessary if we're going to move toward
25  renewables and away from the natural gas
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 2  infrastructure and the LNG ports, and the
 3  need to close the nuclear plant and
 4  arrange for the decommissioning and the
 5  funding of the decommissioning of these
 6  plants.
 7      To start with, we need to work
 8  toward the option for clean, safe energy
 9  and the Sierra Club spoke about the need
10  for investing in more wind power,
11  especially land wind power and off-shore
12  wind power.  The problems that present
13  themselves in this regard right now is
14  the fact that they're proposing an LNG
15  port off the Rockaways, Port Ambrose.
16  That is the same place that the wind farm
17  is being proposed off the Rockaways, and
18  you can't have both.  The most important
19  thing is we get Port Ambrose vetoed and
20  the governor has the ability to do that.
21  He doesn't need anybody else.  Christie
22  could do it, too, but we need to get this
23  LNG port which just promotes gas for
24  export and is a dangerous terrorist
25  target.  This is, you know, right off our
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 2  beaches.  To go on with the wind power we
 3  need to invest in the projects off
 4  Montauk Point and off the Rockaways.  We
 5  have wind power upstate.  The question is
 6  we need to bring it downstate and we need
 7  investments in the smart grid.  So this
 8  is the part that I didn't see in the Plan
 9  and where the efforts have to go and the
10  funding.
11      In terms of both wind and solar
12  power we have the Jacobsen plan and the
13  possibilities for renewables, but that
14  can't be implemented as such.  It means
15  each community has to map what their
16  potential is for solar and wind, and then
17  do it, but the question is, where will
18  the funding come from for mapping these
19  communities?  And that I think is a state
20  responsibility, to put a plan in place so
21  that the communities can map their spaces
22  for what is feasible and then funding of
23  what comes after remains to be
24  determined.
25      With regard to Indian Point,
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 2  specifically, because it's clear, it's
 3  old and dangerous, and it's --
 4  Riverkeeper said it's on a fault.  It's
 5  two faults, and fracking is also
 6  considering causing earthquakes which
 7  many studies have shown recently.  So we
 8  can't afford to have this blow up in our
 9  face.
10      I'd like to give you an experience
11  of my own during Hurricane Sandy.  I was
12  living below Harlem on the west side, so
13  it's high ground, so I didn't have to
14  worry about being flooded out at the
15  moment.  I could pay attention to the
16  weather reports, and all through the
17  night I heard about the storm surges.  It
18  came within inches of flooding the fuel
19  ponds at Indian Point, within inches.
20  That was overlooked by most people
21  regarding flooding in the City, so it
22  hasn't gotten the attention.  One of the
23  things we're worried about is not only
24  the need to close Indian Point but the
25  funding of the decommission.  When I was
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 2  up at the hearings at Indian Point a few
 3  months ago it was clear they don't have a
 4  plan and they even propose a generic plan
 5  for all the plants that they didn't have
 6  to decommission until 60 years later
 7  after they closed the Plan.  So we need
 8  to put a plan in place, not only closing
 9  the nuclear plants, but also for funding
10  the decommission.  The first step is to
11  get the fuel, used fuel into dry pass
12  storage.  Right now these fuel ponds are
13  subject to flooding.  We don't need a
14  terrorist to blow it up.  I mean, a
15  hurricane could do it.  This is something
16  you have to build into your energy plan,
17  the funding of the decommission of these
18  plants and not later, now.  The permits
19  could be withheld for some.  These plants
20  are old, they're dangerous, Fukushima
21  must have taught us something.  To make
22  us safe, your plan lacks enough
23  protection for safety and health, and
24  that's my major criticism and that's the
25  least you can do, to remedy that.  Thank
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 2  you.
 3      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
 4      Ellen Weininger, followed by
 5  Catherine Skopic.
 6      MS. WEININGER: My name is Ellen
 7  Weininger.  I'm an environmental health
 8  educator and public health advocate in
 9  the educational outreach program for grad
10  students in environmental education.  Our
11  New York program is an environmental
12  health nonprofit that works closely with
13  leading medical and scientific experts on
14  environmental health issues.
15      I'm also a lifelong New York
16  resident and mother of three.  Thank you
17  for this.  Beyond photos and solar rays
18  and storm energy, efficiency, the
19  recently released plan to provide
20  specific steps for New York to meet
21  sustainable energy now and in the future
22  was not provided in the Energy Plan.
23  Just the opposite unfolded in the Plan's
24  projections with policies that are
25  submerged in fossil fuel developmental
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 2  production by promotion and sweeping
 3  expansion of fracking for methane gas and
 4  rolling out large-scale build-out on
 5  methane gas infrastructure.  This will
 6  result in significant increases in
 7  methane emissions which is in direct
 8  conflict with Governor's Paterson's Order
 9  No. 24, requiring that New York State
10  reduce its total greenhouse gas emissions
11  by 80 percent by 1990 levels.
12      Methane gas is not a clean fuel, it
13  is a fossil fuel, and you've heard that
14  it is 86 times more potent a greenhouse
15  gas than carbon dioxide over a 20
16  year-period, and 34 more potent over a
17  hundred years.  The Plan ignores this
18  crucial fact and offers to measure only
19  one single greenhouse gas, carbon
20  dioxide.  The Plan must include a total
21  reduction of greenhouse reductions with
22  benchmarks at consistent intervals and
23  must exclude further advancement in its
24  expansion of fracking for methane gas and
25  the build-out of its infrastructure in
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 2  New York or anywhere.
 3      Recent studies show significant
 4  methane leaks in existing aging
 5  infrastructure in Washington D.C.,
 6  Boston, and in New York City.  And you've
 7  heard about Dr. Mark Jacobsen's recently
 8  -- last year's peer-reviewed report with
 9  a team of scientists and comments that
10  provided a road map in New York to reach
11  100 percent renewables by 2030.  This
12  wind, water and sunlight plan provides a
13  roadmap to potential for portions and
14  amount of power provided by each
15  renewable resource and its footprint.
16  These energy solutions are already on the
17  shelf and meet can meet our energy needs
18  by 2030.  The report explains the
19  technical capacity that we have, the
20  economic feasibility that we have and the
21  benefits of the renewable energy
22  infrastructure that can transform New
23  York State by eliminating dependence on
24  polluting fossil fuels.  This means
25  reduction in greenhouse gas emissions,
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 2  energy independence and security, job
 3  growth, improve water and air quality,
 4  protection of public health, lower
 5  health-care costs, and stabilization of
 6  energy costs.
 7      This plan, this wind, water and
 8  sunlight plan would also reduce New
 9  York's electric power demand by 37
10  percent.  Just last week, Dr. Jacobsen
11  released the 50-state roadmap for this
12  plan.
13      New York cannot afford to bear the
14  burden of public health environment and
15  economic impact of increased greenhouse
16  gas emissions, water contamination and
17  air water pollution from the unwise and
18  unnecessary development and production of
19  methane gas and its hazardous
20  infrastructure and pipeline and polluting
21  compressor stations.  According to Mount
22  Sinai School of Medicine's recently
23  released report, New York State's
24  Children and the Environment,
25  environmentally-mediated disease
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 2  continues to spiral and take a huge toll
 3  on our most vulnerable population, our
 4  children.  Asthma has tripled in the past
 5  three decades and it's leading cause of
 6  hospitalization.  Hit affects 250,000
 7  children.  Air pollutants are known to
 8  contribute to that.  Birth defects are
 9  now the leading cause of infant death.
10  Birth defects have actually doubled
11  frequency.  Developmental disorders and
12  other learning disabilities affect one in
13  every six children.  Primary brain cancer
14  among children has increased in incidents
15  by nearly 40 percent from 1975 to 2004,
16  according to the National Cancer
17  Institute.  Childhood leukemia has
18  increased in incidents by over 40
19  percent.  Benzene and other solvents are
20  linked, and these are substances that are
21  found in the entire life cycle of shale
22  gas development and production.
23      According to the World Health
24  Organization, environmental exposures are
25  responsible for 35 percent of all
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 2  childhood disease and death worldwide.
 3  This all comes at a hefty price on
 4  families, schools, communities, health
 5  institutions and our society.  A recent
 6  analysis estimates that the cost of
 7  environmentally-mediated disease in New
 8  York's children alone leads up to over 4
 9  billion annually.  That figure accounts
10  for children and does not even begin to
11  factor in the adult population.
12      We've seen that recent proposal for
13  expansion of a pipeline by Spectra Energy
14  calculates that compressor station
15  emissions would include 81.4 tons per
16  year of nitrogen oxide, sulfur dioxide,
17  4.1 tons per year, volatile organic
18  compounds, 5.9 tons a year, that's just
19  one compressor station for one year.
20  Fives expanded compressor stations and
21  25 expanded metering stations, plus two
22  new metering stations on just one
23  pipeline, just do the math.  Start
24  multiplying the annual emissions per
25  station per year by all the stations that
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 2  currently exist, the ones about to be
 3  approved and those approved, plus the
 4  promotion of further expansion by this
 5  Draft Plan.  Cumulative impact of the
 6  entire life cycle of methane gas and its
 7  production and infrastructure are ignored
 8  in this plan, yet significantly increases
 9  greenhouse gas emissions.  Public health
10  and economic impacts are also absent from
11  the draft.  Significantly increased
12  exposure to polluted air, water,
13  industrialization of communities, toxic
14  emissions from industrial plants to
15  processing, storing and distributing LNG
16  and petroleum natural gas, station
17  pipelines, fueling stations, fuel pads,
18  truck traffic, higher level of radon gas
19  cause lung cancer in nonsmokers, toxic
20  radioactive fracking waste and its
21  constituent disposing landfills, waste
22  water treatment plant on roads and farm
23  land are not addressed.  Even though the
24  consequence of increasing more greenhouse
25  gas will mean greater toxic exposure
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 2  across New York State and elsewhere,
 3  whether or not fracking is permitted in
 4  New York.  Toxic radioactive fracking
 5  waste produced in billions of gallons per
 6  year has no safety disposal plan.  In
 7  fact, it poses an immediate public health
 8  threat even with New York's de facto ban
 9  on fracking.  Many New York counties
10  currently use this waste, toxic
11  radioactive waste by-products for
12  road-spreading applications, accepted in
13  landfills and waste water treatment
14  facilities.  Contamination from radium
15  226 and radium 228 can last thousands of
16  years.  Road-spreading applications,
17  truck accidents, leaks, spills; water
18  supplies are at risk from run-off,
19  containment encrosion and rupture.  Waste
20  water treatment plants can be permanently
21  damaged by these toxic chemicals, and
22  food supplies are at risk from the
23  run-off, contaminated water supplies,
24  radioactive.  More fracking means more
25  toxic radioactive waste, with no safe
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 2  disposal options.
 3      In closing, we need clean air to
 4  breathe, clean water to drink, and
 5  uncontaminated food to eat.  The current
 6  Draft of the New York State Energy Plan
 7  with promotion of methane gas
 8  development, and production and
 9  widespread expansion of its
10  infrastructure proceeds.  Greenhouse
11  gases will continue to escalate.
12  Contamination of our precious natural
13  resources and health are a certainty.
14  This Plan is unacceptable and New York
15  State can do better.  We have the tools
16  and the solutions on the shelf now to
17  reach 100 renewables by 2030.
18  Renewables, energy efficiency and
19  conservation, what's missing in this plan
20  is the political will to do so.  Thank
21  you.
22      MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.
23      Catherine Skopic.
24      MS. SKOPIC: Thank you for holding
25  this hearing, and I'm glad I was able to
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 2  join you at 1 o'clock.
 3      My name is Katherine Skopic and I
 4  am a mother, citizen, member of IMAK, and
 5  The Coalition of New Yorkers Against
 6  Fracking, and I'm the Anglican
 7  representative to the United Nations.
 8      Carbon free, nuclear free.  Never
 9  in human history have we faced a moment
10  such as this.  The possible extinction of
11  life due to human activity, the burning
12  of fossil fuels; the threat is real and
13  impending unless we change our ways.  We
14  have caused the problem and we can
15  prevent it from getting worse.  Why would
16  an intelligent civilization not do this?
17      Renewable energy sources such as
18  wind, solar, both thermal and photo
19  voltaic, hydro, geothermal, tidal, wave,
20  in-conduit hydro can provide intermittent
21  and nonintermittent energy to supply our
22  home and industrial energy needs.  The
23  technology exists.  More and more
24  manufacturing, installation and financing
25  entities are coming on board.  In light
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 2  of recent extreme weather events, more
 3  and more people are demanding renewables.
 4  Always seem to lack in this picture is
 5  the political will.
 6      That's why I'm here today, that's
 7  why everyone else was here today:  to
 8  encourage the political will to
 9  transition to renewable energy, to
10  encourage our New York State government
11  to move to renewable energy.  I can't
12  imagine there was a person in this room
13  who doesn't know that this is the morally
14  right thing to do.
15      Water is one of the most important
16  reasons to move to renewables.  The
17  process of horizontal slick water
18  fracturing uses enormous amounts of water
19  making it permanently unusable for life,
20  and at the same time threatens existing
21  reservoirs, aquifers and wells with
22  poisoning.  We just have to look to our
23  west to see the impact of no water.  It's
24  happening right now, and such
25  irresponsible extraction processes
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 2  destroy this precious, life-giving
 3  resource of water.  No responsible
 4  civilization would knowingly do this.
 5  It's short and long-term suicide.
 6      Accidents from fossil fuel
 7  extraction and transportation abound, be
 8  it in off-shore drilling, tanker
 9  accidents, pipeline explosions or train
10  derailments.  People are being killed,
11  and when any of this fuel is burned, we
12  all die, slowly or fast through extreme
13  weather events such as Sandy, forest
14  fires, drought, extreme heat and cold,
15  rising sea levels, forest loss, ocean
16  acidification, disease, global heating.
17  Future generations won't stand a chance.
18      You know the urgency of the
19  problem.  We urge you to act.  Initiate a
20  full and complete renewable energy plan
21  for New York State now.  Thank you.
22      MR. RHODES: Thank you.  May I just
23  check whether Helen Bentley is in the
24  room?  John Iglietta, Michael Jay?
25  Morgan Montana, and Merrill Maceldonery.
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 2      Are there any further speakers?
 3  Then seeing none, I'd like to extend
 4  thanks on behalf of all of us at Joan Jay
 5  College.  On behalf of the state Energy
 6  Plan Board, we've taken the development
 7  of this draft Energy Plan with great
 8  seriousness.  It's extremely important we
 9  hear comments and questions like yours as
10  we develop the final State Energy Plan.
11  You've given us much to think about and
12  made many excellent points.  Please
13  remember that written comments can be
14  submitted on our website up until April
15  30 at energyplan.ny.gov.
16      With that, I adjourn this session.
17  Thank you again.
18      (Time noted:  2:25 p.m.)
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
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 1                        HEARING
  


 2                MR. RHODES:  My name is John Rhodes
  


 3          and I am president and CEO of the New
  


 4          York State Energy Research and
  


 5          Development Authority and here today as
  


 6          Chair of the State Energy Planning Board.
  


 7                I'd like to introduce to you the
  


 8          other representative of the Planning
  


 9          Board joining me today, Catherine Draper,
  


10          who is with the office of Assemblywoman
  


11          Paulin.  Other Planning Board members had
  


12          to cancel for personal reasons at the
  


13          very last moment, but we have the
  


14          attention of all the agencies involved in
  


15          the State Energy Plan process.
  


16                We are guests today of John Jay
  


17          College and we wish to thank them.  As
  


18          guests, I ask that we all maintain
  


19          decorum and abide by their rules.  The
  


20          one rule that I know about is no posters
  


21          on poles, so I think we're good, but I
  


22          want to go on record with that one.
  


23                This is a hearing to accept public
  


24          comments on the 2014 Draft State Energy
  


25          Plan.  It was approved by the state
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 2          energy Planning Board on January 7, 2014,
  


 3          and made available on the Energy Plan
  


 4          website, energyplan.ny.gov.  The Plan was
  


 5          issued in accordance with Article 6 of
  


 6          the energy law.  Public notice of the
  


 7          issuance of the Plan and notice of this
  


 8          public hearing were published in the
  


 9          State Register on January 29, 2014.  The
  


10          Draft Plan consists of two volumes.  The
  


11          first volume provides fifteen key
  


12          initiatives to advance the state's energy
  


13          future.  The second volume addresses
  


14          energy uses, its sources and impacts and
  


15          provides detailed background that was
  


16          used to develop the overarching vision
  


17          and the initiatives in the first volume.
  


18                This is one of six public hearing
  


19          sessions that are planned to receive
  


20          public comments.  Future sessions are
  


21          scheduled on Long Island, Buffalo and
  


22          Syracuse.
  


23                Just quickly on the Plan, the Draft
  


24          Plan is a result of serious, thoughtful
  


25          work that envisions an energy system that
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 2          is clean, flexible, affordable, resilient
  


 3          and reliable.  The initiatives to achieve
  


 4          that vision focus on five areas:
  


 5          Improving energy affordability;
  


 6          unleashing the power of private sector
  


 7          financing; providing a more resilient
  


 8          flexible power grid; giving customers
  


 9          more control over their energy use; and
  


10          alining energy innovation with market
  


11          demand.
  


12                Accordingly, the Plan outlines
  


13          long-term policy goals, long-term action
  


14          items, and meaningful metrics.
  


15                Written comments on the Draft Plan
  


16          will also be accepted besides these
  


17          spoken comments today through April 30
  


18          and information on how to submit written
  


19          comments can be found on the Energy Plan
  


20          website.  If you decide to submit written
  


21          comments please do so as soon as possible
  


22          so they can be carefully considered.  All
  


23          comments, whether oral or written, will
  


24          be considered by the Energy Planning
  


25          Board as it works towards issuance of the
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 2          final Energy Plan and all comments count
  


 3          equally regardless of how they were
  


 4          received, whether written or in forums
  


 5          like this one.  The Energy Plan is
  


 6          targeted issuance of the final plan in
  


 7          the spring of 2014.
  


 8                The process today is simple.  Those
  


 9          who want to comment at this hearing have
  


10          been asked to sign in upon arrival.  Your
  


11          name will be called one at a time to
  


12          speak.  When your name is called please
  


13          come to the podium to provide your
  


14          statement.  As a matter of process, I
  


15          will also call the name of the following
  


16          speaker, so-to-speak, the on-deck person.
  


17          A court reporter is here today to provide
  


18          a transcript to the Planning Board of
  


19          everything that is said today.  It is
  


20          important that there be only one speaker
  


21          at a time so that the reporter can hear
  


22          clearly.  Speakers should address their
  


23          comments in the direction of the
  


24          microphone and please make an effort to
  


25          speak clearly and slowly.
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 2                It is also very important those in
  


 3          attendance be courteous to the speaker so
  


 4          that his or her comments can be
  


 5          transcribed accurately by the reporter.
  


 6                If you provide a statement and have
  


 7          a written version with you, it would be
  


 8          helpful if you would provide them either
  


 9          to us today, or following the hearing so
  


10          that we can provide those to the court
  


11          reporter to assist in providing the
  


12          transcript.
  


13                All speakers are asked to focus on
  


14          issues that pertain to the Draft Energy
  


15          Plan only.  Your comments should be as
  


16          succinct as possible so we can hear as
  


17          many as possible.  We have set a
  


18          five-minute deadline for that purpose,
  


19          but of course, after everyone has had a
  


20          chance to address the board, repeat
  


21          speakers may be afforded another time
  


22          should time permit.
  


23                Formal presentations such as power
  


24          point will not be allowed today.  Again,
  


25          the goal is to hear from as many of you
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 2          as possible.  As this is a statement
  


 3          hearing, the Planning Board is not
  


 4          entertaining questions.  This is an
  


 5          opportunity for us to receive feedback
  


 6          and hear from you on the Draft Plan.
  


 7          Those who want to comment but do not want
  


 8          to speak publicly, today or don't get a
  


 9          chance to do so, again, can submit
  


10          written comments on our website.  And
  


11          again, that is energyplan.ny.gov.
  


12                With that, I want to thank you
  


13          again, all, for coming here today and ask
  


14          if there are any questions about process
  


15          that we can take at this time?
  


16                Seeing no questions, I will call
  


17          our first speaker, Bob Wyman, to be
  


18          followed by Heidi Gogins.
  


19                MR. WYMAN:  Good morning.  My name
  


20          is Bob Wyman.  I'm a resident of the
  


21          upper west side, Manhattan.  Welcome to
  


22          Manhattan.  And first I'd like to thank
  


23          you for the work that's been done so far
  


24          on the draft, but I do hope that you will
  


25          consider it a draft as opposed to simply
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 2          a plan that will be issued that we
  


 3          comment on, because frankly, the Plan
  


 4          does need work.  The Plan starts off
  


 5          well, I think, by recognizing the
  


 6          significant magnitude of the challenges
  


 7          that present us in the energy realm.  It
  


 8          then goes on to call for bold solutions
  


 9          to match the magnitude of the challenges
  


10          that we face.  Unfortunately, the Plan as
  


11          written, the draft as written, doesn't
  


12          read as a plan presenting bold solutions.
  


13          I won't call it timid, but it seems very
  


14          much like business as usual, or just a
  


15          continuation of things that are already
  


16          in place.
  


17                Let me give just one example.  In
  


18          the supporting documents for the Plan it
  


19          mentions that NYSERDA, through the first
  


20          quarter of 2012, had incented somewhere
  


21          on the order of 200 geothermal systems in
  


22          the state for heating of homes.  But when
  


23          we look at what the potential is in the
  


24          state, if we just look, say at New York
  


25          City, we've got about a million, a little
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 2          over a million buildings in the City.
  


 3          Tremendous amount of buildings.  Studies
  


 4          by Professor Modi's students at Columbia
  


 5          have shown that somewhere on the order of
  


 6          800,000 of those buildings could in fact
  


 7          be heated fossil-fuel free, without oil,
  


 8          without natural gas, whatever, with
  


 9          geothermal heat pumps.  A bold plan would
  


10          say not simply that we acknowledge that
  


11          the fossil-fuel free or carbon-free
  


12          heating solutions are being installed at
  


13          the rate of maybe a couple of hundred,
  


14          maybe a thousand a year, but a bold plan
  


15          would say that rather than continuing the
  


16          old technologies that we know about, what
  


17          we really ought to be doing is putting
  


18          that money into building a future which
  


19          is fossil-fuel free.
  


20                Now, I think one of the things that
  


21          concerns me as well is when we look at
  


22          the Plan, the Plan seems overly focused
  


23          on electricity.  It seems to be almost an
  


24          electricity plan rather than an energy
  


25          plan, and one of the ways we see that is
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 2          if we look at the metrics.  A key metric
  


 3          in the affordability section is keeping
  


 4          electric bills low but unfortunately,
  


 5          that metric, keeping electric bills low,
  


 6          can potentially work against other things
  


 7          that we know should be done and that are
  


 8          supposedly encouraged by the Plan itself.
  


 9          For instance, if we were to switch from
  


10          using gasoline to electricity for our
  


11          automobiles we would in fact be
  


12          increasing our electric bills even though
  


13          we would be decreasing our energy bills.
  


14          Similarly, if a home switches from using
  


15          oil or gas to heat itself and switches
  


16          over to geothermal heat pumps, which are
  


17          fossil-fuel free, they would increase
  


18          their electric bill more dramatically
  


19          than decreasing their energy bill.  So I
  


20          would suggest that the metric of keeping
  


21          electric bills low is in fact
  


22          counterproductive.  It may be that we
  


23          want to keep the cost of electricity low
  


24          but the metric for an the Energy Plan
  


25          should not be focused on electric bills,
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 2          it should be focused on energy bills, for
  


 3          whatever the unit that's planned.
  


 4                I also would like to point out
  


 5          something which I think is a fairly
  


 6          dramatic misrepresentation, although it's
  


 7          a very common one of what geothermal heat
  


 8          pumps are all about.  I won't bore you
  


 9          with the technology, I think you
  


10          understand this stuff.  But in the
  


11          supporting documents it says geothermal
  


12          technology is an energy efficiency
  


13          technology.  A lot of people say that,
  


14          okay, but I think it's a fairly
  


15          significant misunderstanding of what
  


16          geothermal heat pump technology is all
  


17          about.  Yes, it's true that if you look
  


18          at the literature you'll see that these
  


19          heat pumps typically run at co-efficiency
  


20          performance of three to four, that means
  


21          efficiencies of 300 percent to 400
  


22          percent.  But when you look at something
  


23          which has an efficiency of 300 percent to
  


24          400 percent of heating you have to be
  


25          thinking there's more than efficiency
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 2          going on here.  If, for every kilowatt of
  


 3          energy that you put into the system you
  


 4          get 4 kilowatts power, 4 kilowatts of
  


 5          thermal energy equivalent, where did the
  


 6          other three come from?  Clearly, what is
  


 7          happening here is an amplification of the
  


 8          input power, but actually what's
  


 9          happening is the generation of renewable
  


10          energy.  That energy is coming from
  


11          somewhere.  It's typically renewable
  


12          energy.
  


13                So I think we should be thinking
  


14          about geothermal heat pumps as renewable
  


15          energy, not just simply as efficiency.
  


16          And we should recognize geothermal heat
  


17          pumps, the way their used, essentially by
  


18          taking heat out of buildings during the
  


19          summer when it's hot, storing it in the
  


20          ground so that it can be recovered in the
  


21          winter, essentially a solar thermal
  


22          technology which uses the building as a
  


23          solar collector rather than using panels
  


24          on the roof.  So I would suggest that in
  


25          the draft that hopefully you can address
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 2          the question of keeping energy bills low,
  


 3          whether or not electric bills are low,
  


 4          and also, please address the fact that
  


 5          geothermal heat pumps are not given the
  


 6          attention they should be given and also
  


 7          the technology is misrepresented as an
  


 8          energy technology when in fact it is a
  


 9          technology for generating renewable
  


10          energy.  Thank you very much.
  


11                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


12                Heidi Gogins, if I'm reading the
  


13          name correctly, and after that, Toby
  


14          Horn.
  


15                MS. GOGINS:  You're the first
  


16          person to pronounce my name correctly for
  


17          a long time.
  


18                MR. RHODES:  Compliments on your
  


19          handwriting.
  


20                MS. GOGINS:  Don't ask me to do
  


21          math.  I'm going to sort of face sideways
  


22          so I can see everybody and I can see you.
  


23                First of all, I want to say that
  


24          it's a beautiful looking plan, a lot of
  


25          nice pictures, a lot of nice feeling,
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 2          statements, but I feel like it's not a
  


 3          plan.  A plan at this point, where we
  


 4          stand with climate change, needs
  


 5          imagination, bold initiatives and a
  


 6          refusal to perpetuate the status quo and
  


 7          business as usual.  This document does
  


 8          not do that.  This document has a first
  


 9          volume, lots of pictures; volume two, and
  


10          volume two has a lot of forecasts in the
  


11          absence of planning, and the forecasts
  


12          seem to be based on what the current
  


13          reality is rather than where do we want
  


14          to go?
  


15                I want to know where volume three
  


16          is.  Volume three would have really
  


17          innovative ideas for moving away from the
  


18          kind of energy generation that we have
  


19          now.  There is much too big component of
  


20          natural gas in this plan and it's very
  


21          craftily -- I don't want to, you know,
  


22          that's a loaded word, but I think it's
  


23          kind of stated in a way that doesn't make
  


24          it clear.  First of all, natural gas is
  


25          not clean energy.  It is not renewable.
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 2          It is a fossil fuel.  I think what's
  


 3          important is nobody anywhere in this plan
  


 4          uses the word methane and I kind of want
  


 5          to know where the word methane is.
  


 6          Methane is the worst greenhouse gas than
  


 7          cO2.  If you use a time line of the next
  


 8          50 years switching to methane doesn't do
  


 9          anybody any good and it just makes a lot
  


10          of people sick and causes a lot of
  


11          environmental damage.  Um, what's going
  


12          to be an endangered thing in the next 50
  


13          years is water, water, and we're not
  


14          lacking for energy, we're not lacking for
  


15          ways of generating energy from
  


16          renewables.  They're doing it in Germany,
  


17          they're doing it all over the world.
  


18          They're not doing it as much as they
  


19          should.  But we need to be leading.  New
  


20          York State should be leading and setting
  


21          an example, not perpetuating the bad
  


22          policies of the other countries or other
  


23          states.  Basically, this document
  


24          predicts fracking in New York State,
  


25          volume two page 88, which I think is
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 2          criminal.
  


 3                (Applause.)
  


 4                SPEAKER #2:  So what is clean
  


 5          energy?  It's not shale gas, whose
  


 6          extraction, transportation and processing
  


 7          releases high levels of methane and
  


 8          causes air and water contamination.
  


 9                I want to give you my copy of a
  


10          little plan that was done at Stanford and
  


11          Cornell by Professors Jacobson -- let's
  


12          see, let me read all these guys, Bob
  


13          Howarth, Mark Delucchi.  This was a
  


14          peer-reviewed fantastic 2030 plan which
  


15          shows how New York State can completely
  


16          move to renewables by 2030.  No -- I'll
  


17          just read you, Won't the transition be
  


18          expensive?  No, many forms of renewable
  


19          energy are already cost effective
  


20          compared to fossil fuels, even without
  


21          considering the cost to health and global
  


22          warming.  What do we want to spend money
  


23          on?  We can spend it now or put it off,
  


24          and we'll going to have to spend it
  


25          anyway to mitigate damage and pay for
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 2          cleanups like for Sandy.  I think this is
  


 3          a question of what do we believe in and
  


 4          do we have the guts, and the balls,
  


 5          excuse my language, to do what we know is
  


 6          right.  What we know is right.  This is a
  


 7          moral issue.  It's not political.  It's
  


 8          not, you know, what's the easiest thing
  


 9          to do.  We managed to convert from,
  


10          unfortunately, horses to cars in about 20
  


11          years, you know.  So it's not we can't do
  


12          big technological innovation.  People are
  


13          doing it, they're doing it, so we need to
  


14          do it, and I'd like to be proud to be a
  


15          New Yorker and say that we led the way
  


16          for the country.
  


17                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


18                Toby Horn, followed by Christopher
  


19          Raup.
  


20                MS. HORN:  Good morning, my name is
  


21          Toby Horn.  I'm a real estate broker and
  


22          I'm representing myself as an individual
  


23          citizen of New York City.
  


24                We are a visual society.  We use
  


25          Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, so it only
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 2          holds, so it's only reasonable when you
  


 3          talk about renewable energies we talk
  


 4          about wind and solar, but there is
  


 5          another renewable energy we should be
  


 6          talking about and that's geothermal
  


 7          ground source heat pumps.  Lester Brown
  


 8          and Jeffrey Sacks have acknowledged
  


 9          geothermal ground source heat pumps and
  


10          believes that we should be including them
  


11          in our dialogue.  Renewables are being
  


12          addressed now but we don't have the
  


13          complete picture, okay?  We really need
  


14          to discuss the geothermal source ground
  


15          pumps in our dialogues and hopefully,
  


16          after today it will be addressed.
  


17                Fossil fuels have been around for
  


18          150 years.  I think their time is up and
  


19          we need to discuss renewables.  They say
  


20          we can get a cleaner fossil fuel.  In my
  


21          opinion that's like saying you can be
  


22          like a little bit pregnant rather than
  


23          just being pregnant.  My opinion, there
  


24          is no such thing as a cleaner fossil
  


25          fuel.  We need to get rid of all the
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 2          fossil fuels.  We need to adjust the
  


 3          renewables and we need to do it now
  


 4          because if we want our planet to exist we
  


 5          need to change our way of thinking and
  


 6          start addressing solar, wind and geo
  


 7          thermal, and geothermal, and to me, it's
  


 8          ground source heat pumps.  I hope
  


 9          everyone looks it up and starts
  


10          investigating their other alternatives.
  


11          Thank you.
  


12                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


13                Christopher Raup followed by Jill
  


14          Weiner.
  


15                MR. RAUP:  Good morning.  My name
  


16          IS Christopher Raup, manager of State
  


17          Regulatory Affairs for Con Edison.  Thank
  


18          you for the opportunity to provide these
  


19          remarks on behalf of Con Edison and
  


20          Orange & Rockland Utilities.  Our company
  


21          is supportive of the development of the
  


22          State Energy Plan as a road map to meet
  


23          the future energy needs of the people of
  


24          New York.
  


25                Con Edison serves 3.1 million
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 2          electric customers and 1.1 natural gas
  


 3          customers in New York City and
  


 4          Westchester, as well as 1,700 steam
  


 5          customers in Manhattan.  Our Orange and
  


 6          Rockland affiliate serves 300,000
  


 7          electric customers and 130,000 gas
  


 8          customers in Rockland, Orange and
  


 9          Sullivan Counties in New York.  Last year
  


10          Con Edison and O&R served 43 percent of
  


11          the state's peak electric load.
  


12                Con Edison supports the stated
  


13          focus of the State Energy Plan, on energy
  


14          affordability; enhancing resilience and
  


15          flexibility of the electric grid;
  


16          customer choice; energy innovation
  


17          aligned with market demand; and using
  


18          private sector financing to achieve clean
  


19          energy goals.
  


20                While we support the focus of the
  


21          Plan, the details of its implementation
  


22          are important.  We'd like to suggest some
  


23          principles to guide implementation so
  


24          that the Plan achieves benefits for our
  


25          customers.
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 2                The first principle we'd like to
  


 3          emphasize is affordability.  We note the
  


 4          focus of the Plan and we appreciate it.
  


 5          The affordability of energy is critical
  


 6          to our customers despite changes to how
  


 7          customers use energy and the type of
  


 8          energy they choose.  We should avoid
  


 9          incentive structures that shift costs
  


10          from one group of customers to another.
  


11          Incentives should encourage technologies
  


12          that benefit all customers, and should
  


13          have a goal of affordability for all
  


14          customers.  Affordability should also
  


15          consider reliability, resiliency and
  


16          clean energy needs.
  


17                Taxes and fees have a major impact
  


18          on affordability; 30 percent of a typical
  


19          Con Edison bill is comprised of taxes and
  


20          fees.
  


21                We oppose to using the utility bill
  


22          to collect general revenues, as this
  


23          reduces affordability.  Moreover, such
  


24          policies encourage customers to make
  


25          decisions simply to avoid these charges.
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 2                Finally, the last principle we
  


 3          emphasize is reliability.  Reliability:
  


 4          Reliability electrical service is very
  


 5          important to our customers.  We have very
  


 6          strong reliability performance and are
  


 7          taking steps to improve that performance
  


 8          in extreme weather, to strengthen our
  


 9          systems and to improve our ability to
  


10          restore customers when weather affects
  


11          service.  This includes for our overhead
  


12          system, making investments in selective
  


13          underground distribution circuits, and
  


14          for our underground system making
  


15          investments in elevating equipment and
  


16          flood barriers.
  


17                Con Edison and O&R should be
  


18          considered partners when implementing the
  


19          many initiatives in the Plan because we
  


20          bring special skills and experience to
  


21          the table.  We interact with our
  


22          customers every day.  Our customers
  


23          talked to us 15 million times in 2013 and
  


24          we are taking steps to improve our
  


25          communications with them, including using
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 2          mobile applications, social media and
  


 3          expanding the use of e-mail and text
  


 4          messaging.  We understand the challenge
  


 5          of building the infrastructure.  We are
  


 6          integrating customer resources into our
  


 7          system and are planning for the future
  


 8          handled by forecasting savings from
  


 9          demand side management.  This includes
  


10          extensive experience helping our
  


11          customers with energy efficiency measures
  


12          and we're actively considering what the
  


13          utility of the future will look like and
  


14          how our customer choices will impact the
  


15          future business model.
  


16                While the Plan puts forth numerous
  


17          initiatives I'd like to highlight just a
  


18          few that are significant to Con Edison
  


19          and our cases.  Updating the electric and
  


20          gas deliver systems to insure service
  


21          quality and reliability, we strongly
  


22          support this initiative and as noted
  


23          previously, we're making significant
  


24          investments in our energy delivery system
  


25          to enhance reliability and resiliency.
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 2                Facilitating new energy business
  


 3          models:  We support this initiative and
  


 4          in particular, we support providing
  


 5          flexibility to utilities to provide a
  


 6          variety of services to customers, to own
  


 7          or operate distributed resources, or
  


 8          both.
  


 9                Realign energy efficiency policies
  


10          to accelerate the pace of deployment:  We
  


11          support reexamining policies regarding
  


12          the State's energy efficiency programs,
  


13          and are working closely with the State to
  


14          increase the effectiveness of our
  


15          programs.  Energy efficiency continues to
  


16          be the least-cost method of moving to a
  


17          clean energy future, and we believe
  


18          streamlining policies will result in
  


19          better programs for our customers.
  


20                And finally, establishing the New
  


21          York Green Bank to mobilize private
  


22          sector capital:  We generally support
  


23          this recommendation.  The development of
  


24          the Green Bank could be significant, in
  


25          particular, it's vision of moving state
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 2          support for renewable energy from
  


 3          incentive-based programs to
  


 4          financing-based programs.  But we should
  


 5          take care that the Green Bank addresses
  


 6          the credit needs of all customer
  


 7          segments.  Returning to the focus on
  


 8          affordability, the State should seek ways
  


 9          to complete the Green Bank's
  


10          capitalization without increasing fees on
  


11          customer bills.
  


12                In closing, we look forward with
  


13          our customers in New York State in the
  


14          implementation of the Plan.  Working
  


15          together, Con Edison can consider and
  


16          meet the State's objectives in providing
  


17          our customers with a strong energy
  


18          infrastructure that is safe, reliable,
  


19          clean and affordable.  Thank you.
  


20                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


21                Jill Wiener?
  


22                MS. WEINER:  It's Jill Wiener,
  


23          W-I-E-N-E-R.  I work with the all
  


24          volunteer grassroots Catskill Citizens
  


25          For Safe Energy.  I live in Sullivan
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 2          County, the New York side of the Delaware
  


 3          River basin.  This is my closest hearing.
  


 4          I'm two hours from home.  I did take a
  


 5          bus to reduce my carbon footprint, an
  


 6          hour to get to the bus.  So, I'm going to
  


 7          start off speaking on behalf of the 53
  


 8          organizations that requested an extension
  


 9          of the public comment hearing on this
  


10          plan and offer our thanks for that
  


11          extension, but we still do have some
  


12          outstanding requests, and I have about
  


13          five of them.
  


14                So, one further hearing, further
  


15          scheduled hearing should be changed to
  


16          evening hours to make them more
  


17          accessible to the public.
  


18                Two, providing the reference and
  


19          unpublished, so attainable greenhouse gas
  


20          inventory and draft energy efficiency and
  


21          renewable resource potential documents.
  


22          Um, so this plan as it is, is now
  


23          incomplete.
  


24                Providing public information
  


25          session so that clarifying questions can
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 2          be asked and hopefully answered.  We also
  


 3          request additional hearings in the Hudson
  


 4          Valley, Finger Lakes.  These are two
  


 5          areas that are -- you were mandated to do
  


 6          six hearings, but there's no reason not
  


 7          to do more.  The identity also of the
  


 8          public members of the energy Planning
  


 9          Board are unknown and we think that we
  


10          should know who those people are; and
  


11          frankly, this plan should be presented in
  


12          its entirety with all relevant documents
  


13          publicly available, and until it is it's
  


14          really unreasonable to close a comment
  


15          period.  The public and our climate
  


16          actually deserve a lot more, and I have a
  


17          letter with further details that I'll
  


18          hand over to you, Mr. Rhodes.
  


19                So the New York State Energy Plan
  


20          is a report with goals but by definition
  


21          it is not a plan.  There's no road map to
  


22          get us to the stated goals to reduce
  


23          greenhouse emissions by 2050 from the 80
  


24          percent -- I'm sorry, by 80 percent from
  


25          1990 levels.  The document is really like
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 2          a New Year's resolution, to lose 15
  


 3          pounds by February 10, but to eat
  


 4          chocolate and chips and sit on the couch
  


 5          and wait for the pounds to melt away, I
  


 6          can assure you it didn't work, it never
  


 7          does.  And it's good to have goals.  But
  


 8          the goals must be properly spelled and
  


 9          I'm going to go back to the diet
  


10          metaphor.  We cannot cut our carbon
  


11          emissions and replace those missing
  


12          calories with more fat from methane shale
  


13          gas.  We just cannot.  It will not work
  


14          for our fragile climate.  Our collective
  


15          pants are splitting here and we need a
  


16          real diet and it may not be all that
  


17          pleasant, but we need it.  We cannot rely
  


18          on a swap-out.  We cannot substitute
  


19          these carbon for shale gas and think
  


20          we're going to achieve a result that will
  


21          benefit our system.  In fact, we are
  


22          going to make things much, much worse for
  


23          the carbon, and beyond the climate, it
  


24          makes it worse for the public health
  


25          social structure and the economy for







32


  


 1                        HEARING
  


 2          communities that are forced to host
  


 3          fracking, fracking infrastructure, and
  


 4          the suggested new converted power plants
  


 5          that will run on frack shale gas.  The
  


 6          document does refer to natural gas as
  


 7          clean, as a clean source of energy.  It
  


 8          is not.  Um, natural gas, which we should
  


 9          officially really start to refer to as as
  


10          frack gas or shale gas, is methane.
  


11          Methane is a scientifically proven potent
  


12          greenhouse gas and it's really simply
  


13          math.  Fracking equal methane, methane
  


14          equals climate change.  There was
  


15          something in the document, we were happy
  


16          to see it and I am not still calling it a
  


17          plan.  It is a document.  I'm happy to
  


18          see that the state has its eye on ramping
  


19          up renewables and efficiency by
  


20          strengthening building codes and audits,
  


21          but there seems to be some sort of
  


22          schizophrenic disconnect in this document
  


23          promotes the using of frack shale for
  


24          home heating and as a transportation
  


25          fuel.  Um, Adam Brandt, a leading author
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 2          of "Methane, Leaks from North American
  


 3          Natural Gas Systems," says that switching
  


 4          from diesel to nat gas, that's not a good
  


 5          policy from a climate perspective, and we
  


 6          agree there are alternatives including
  


 7          fast-charging electric buses.  By
  


 8          suggesting conversion to natural gas for
  


 9          home heating the State is promoting an
  


10          unsustainable energy with price swings,
  


11          and as we've seen from recent propane
  


12          shortages, possible unreliable access.
  


13          The State is also basically making a
  


14          sales pitch for the industry creating
  


15          more nat gas customers.  Additionally,
  


16          plan marginalizes and crowds out the
  


17          renewable energy sector.
  


18                There is a plan to convert New York
  


19          State to energy infrastructure.  My
  


20          friend, Heidi, gave you the short
  


21          version.  I have the full report here,
  


22          and we can do this.  It's feasible,
  


23          economic, healthy and sustainable.
  


24                Finally, and I'm just about done.
  


25          Port Ambrose is an LNG terminal that's
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 2          proposed for the coastal waterways off
  


 3          Long Beach.  It's a project of Liberty
  


 4          Natural Gas represented by an executive,
  


 5          Roger Whelan.  It's also sponsoring an
  


 6          import terminal off the coast of
  


 7          Rockaway.  Mr. Whelan, on behalf of
  


 8          Liberty, publically states that Port
  


 9          Ambrose will be an import terminal here
  


10          as well.  It doesn't take much
  


11          imagination to come to the conclusion
  


12          that it's going to be an export terminal
  


13          here.
  


14                This terminal will increase the
  


15          pressure to frack if it's an export to
  


16          frack New York and to increase dangerous
  


17          fracking in other communities on the
  


18          Marcellus fault and if Port Ambrose is an
  


19          import terminal, it will bring more
  


20          methane into the greater metro area.
  


21          Methane has no place in the Plan for New
  


22          York unless the Plan is to harm the
  


23          climate and I'll speak directly to the
  


24          governor:  Governor Cuomo, you have the
  


25          ability and responsibility to veto Port
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 2          Ambrose under maritime law and we want
  


 3          you to do that immediately.
  


 4                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 5                MS. VAN DOLSON:  Good morning, my
  


 6          name is Susan Van Dolson.  I'm with two
  


 7          groups, Westchester for Change, an
  


 8          all-volunteer grassroots organization,
  


 9          and Stop the Algonquin Pipeline
  


10          Expansion, also an all-volunteer
  


11          grassroots organization.
  


12                Just about sixteen months ago New
  


13          York City was hit with a storm that
  


14          devastated much of the region.  Its
  


15          short-term and long-term impact is
  


16          imprinted on the minds of all of us.
  


17          Many New Yorkers thought living through
  


18          such a tremendous storm would finally
  


19          help policy-makers to move New York State
  


20          away from reliance on fossil fuel, both
  


21          because of the impact on climate and
  


22          because of the acute need to create a
  


23          more locally distributed power system.
  


24          It's very disappointing that the New York
  


25          State Draft Energy Plan does not provide
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 2          a solid pathway away from reliance on
  


 3          fossil fuels, nor does it provide some
  


 4          concrete goals that show a commitment to
  


 5          the future.  For example, the Draft Plan
  


 6          doesn't specify how the State will
  


 7          achieve a goal set by Governor Paterson
  


 8          to reduce emissions 80 percent by 2050.
  


 9          Though the Draft provides some incentive
  


10          to develop some renewable energy, and to
  


11          create some local distribution system,
  


12          these gains are undermined by an
  


13          increased dependence on methane gas and
  


14          fossil fuels.  The Draft Plan operates on
  


15          a false premise that methane is clean.
  


16          Methane emissions from shale gas and
  


17          construction projects are significant
  


18          contributors to climate change.  Methane
  


19          is 72 times more powerful than cO2 and
  


20          greenhouse gas.  The final plan should
  


21          require measurement and tracking of all
  


22          autopsy greenhouse emissions, including
  


23          those from the full life cycle shale gas
  


24          development.  There should have been a
  


25          specific schedule for the reduction of
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 2          total greenhouse gas emissions with
  


 3          benchmarks at regular intervals.  There
  


 4          are multitudes proposed gas
  


 5          infrastructure projects that require
  


 6          permits to be granted by New York State
  


 7          agencies.  The New York State Energy
  


 8          Board should be taking a holistic
  


 9          approach when evaluating these projects
  


10          by looking at long-term economic and
  


11          health impacts for new and expanded
  


12          pipelines, gas-fired power plants,
  


13          storage facilities and liquified natural
  


14          gas plants.  New York's energy policy
  


15          should not be predicated on facilitating
  


16          the gas company's needs to move the gas
  


17          from the Marcellus shale region to and
  


18          through New York, then for export to the
  


19          global market where gas will command a
  


20          higher price.  Gas infrastructure imposes
  


21          health and safety risks to New Yorkers,
  


22          adds to climate change, and ties up
  


23          investment dollars that could be better
  


24          used for wind, water and solar projects.
  


25          This plan does not take into account the
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 2          health and safety impact and associated
  


 3          costs from all these projects.
  


 4                One gas pipeline project is the
  


 5          Williams Transco Rockaway Lateral which
  


 6          is proposed to cross an extremely
  


 7          vulnerable area of the City exactly where
  


 8          Sandy took aim.
  


 9                Another ill-conceived project is
  


10          the Port Ambrose off the coast of Long
  


11          Beach.  LNG facilities are a terrorist
  


12          target, explosive hazard.  Governor Cuomo
  


13          has the power to reject the LNG facility
  


14          and the PSC should and could streamline
  


15          the creating of a wind farm proposed for
  


16          the same area.
  


17                Government Cuomo's Draft Energy
  


18          Plan called for Indian Point nuclear
  


19          facility not to be relicensed.  What did
  


20          they suggest instead?  They called for a
  


21          gas-fired power plant such as the CPV
  


22          power plant that's near the end of its
  


23          permitting process.  A PSC hearing will
  


24          be held next Tuesday in Middletown.  This
  


25          polluting plant is not needed and should
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 2          be rejected.  It promotes fracking.  It
  


 3          is not clean.  To support this you should
  


 4          go to the Riverkeeper's website press
  


 5          release about extending comission by the
  


 6          Natural Resource Defense Council by
  


 7          Synapse.  The press release states that
  


 8          Indian Point can be shut down without any
  


 9          -- one additional cubic foot of natural
  


10          gas.  This plan should not include
  


11          gas-fired power plants and associated
  


12          infrastructure.  In contrast to these gas
  


13          infrastructure projects, Dr. Mark
  


14          Jacobson, a visionary scientist and
  


15          economist has proposed solutions project,
  


16          which you heard about, which provides a
  


17          road map for New York State to produce
  


18          one hundred percent of our energy for
  


19          electricity, transportation, heating and
  


20          cooling, using wind, water and solar for
  


21          efficiency and conservation.  This plan
  


22          reduces energy demand by 36.4 percent.
  


23          It creates 254,000 jobs that would last
  


24          for at least 40 years.  The Plan also
  


25          predicts 2,500 less air pollution deaths
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 2          and savings of energy health and climate
  


 3          costs at $4,100 per person.
  


 4                In conclusion, I would like to
  


 5          state that I object to the fact that some
  


 6          components of this energy plan were not
  


 7          released in time for these hearing.  How
  


 8          fair is that for the public?  Are we
  


 9          ready to believe that the public's
  


10          opinion will be taking serious?  I'm here
  


11          today to say that New Yorkers deserve
  


12          better.  Governor Cuomo can be a leader
  


13          in the nation by proposing an energy plan
  


14          to reject the increased use of climate
  


15          change and fossil fuels.  New York lived
  


16          through Sandy.  We are tough.  We can
  


17          prove to the world we don't need frack
  


18          gas and that we embrace energy policy
  


19          that promotes economic growth powered
  


20          without fossil fuel.  The decision-making
  


21          and commitment to succeed must begin
  


22          today, not 10 years from now and not 20
  


23          years from now.  We don't have time to
  


24          wait.
  


25                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
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 2                Amy Allen, to be followed by Susan
  


 3          Filgueras.
  


 4                MS. ALLEN:  Amy Allen, Westchester
  


 5          County Association.  Westchester County
  


 6          Association is a business membership
  


 7          organization focus on the economic
  


 8          vitality of Westchester County and the
  


 9          surrounding region.
  


10                We recognize that energy policy is
  


11          a critical component of the instate
  


12          economy affecting business and our entire
  


13          community.  That is why it is important
  


14          for the State to have an energy plan that
  


15          creates pragmatic solutions to meet the
  


16          short and long-term needs for heating
  


17          homes, fueling businesses and driving job
  


18          creation.  The creation of an energy plan
  


19          is an important step for New York State
  


20          creating low-cost, reliable and
  


21          environmentally conscious energy requires
  


22          policy and infrastructure improvement
  


23          that encourages private investment in an
  


24          instate generation using a range of fuel
  


25          sources.
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 2                Electric infrastructure in New York
  


 3          State is currently insufficient to
  


 4          exploit our present instate generating
  


 5          capacity.  While downstate businesses and
  


 6          residential ratepayers face high prices
  


 7          due to high demand, upstate generators
  


 8          operate at partial capacity because there
  


 9          is no ability to move their surplus
  


10          capability.  The result is that the
  


11          downstate utility import expensive
  


12          out-of-state power through overpriced
  


13          transmission patchwork projects.
  


14                Despite the State's attempt to
  


15          reduce energy consumption it has actually
  


16          increased in recent years, and while
  


17          conservation and great efficiency are
  


18          critically important, there are
  


19          fundamentally two ways to meet this
  


20          growing demand:  One, is in ways that
  


21          send our money out of state and benefit
  


22          others; or two, by facilitating the
  


23          economic benefits of the energy
  


24          production here at home.  At present, the
  


25          State bypasses upstate generators to
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 2          bring power downstate from Canada, via
  


 3          the Champlain Hudson Power Express, CHPE,
  


 4          bypassing instate generators in favor of
  


 5          rescuing Hydro-Quebec investors from the
  


 6          expensive boondoggle of their own does
  


 7          not amount to sound energy policy.  It is
  


 8          imperative that the State cease its pet
  


 9          project to build the CHPE and focus on
  


10          pragmatic strategies achieving our
  


11          larger, common goals of creating
  


12          inexpensive, reliable energy for New York
  


13          State with minimal environmental impacts.
  


14                The reliability and affordability
  


15          of electricity throughout New York State
  


16          should be the first priority of any
  


17          sensible state energy plan.  This means
  


18          creating a regulatory environment that
  


19          facilitates private investment, keeps New
  


20          York money in the state, and continues to
  


21          lower our carbon output.  It also means
  


22          lowering our electrical infrastructure to
  


23          move electricity between regions while
  


24          growing the economy and creating jobs.
  


25          While these solutions aren't simple, they
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 2          will provide consistency for businesses
  


 3          an increase reliability.
  


 4                The Westchester County Association
  


 5          thanks the State for this opportunity to
  


 6          contribute to the state's energy plan.
  


 7                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 8          Susan Filgueras, followed by Paulette
  


 9          Osborne.
  


10                MS. FILGUERAS:  I have a lot to
  


11          say.  This is my second trip.  I was in
  


12          Brooklyn yesterday because I have an
  


13          awful lot to say and five minutes doesn't
  


14          do it.  I'm from Rockland County, the
  


15          town of Stony Point, and we are one of
  


16          the towns that's part of the community
  


17          reconstruction zone program by the
  


18          government that got beaten up by the
  


19          hurricane, the October snowstorm.  We are
  


20          also one of the counties that is a host
  


21          community to energy infrastructure and
  


22          one of the comments I made yesterday is
  


23          that there is no meeting scheduled for
  


24          Rockland, Orange, Putnam, Green, Duchess,
  


25          and we're the counties that host the
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 2          infrastructure in New York State.  We
  


 3          need to be heard.  Um, and after
  


 4          listening to everybody today I thought,
  


 5          oh boy, I'm going to get up here and say
  


 6          this, but I am.  We need to build in New
  


 7          York, for New York by New York and create
  


 8          New York jobs.  We lost two power plants
  


 9          in Rockland County.  Rockland County is a
  


10          hair's breath from bankruptcy.  The
  


11          people who own those plants realized that
  


12          it's cheaper to operate them as a loss,
  


13          sell off their air emissions credits and
  


14          I don't know what they're doing with
  


15          their water intake credit, and charge the
  


16          towns back a tax certiorari.  Do you know
  


17          Rockland County is paying $11 million a
  


18          year in interest.  We haven't touched the
  


19          principal, because they claim their
  


20          property is not worth what it once was.
  


21          We need businesses that come to New York
  


22          that mean to build in New York to become
  


23          New York to support one of the greatest
  


24          labor forces we've got and it's one of
  


25          the best.  We can build it bigger,
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 2          better, with far more experienced people
  


 3          than almost anywhere else in the world,
  


 4          and I believe that, because my uncle, my
  


 5          brother, my cousin, my father, my mother
  


 6          need jobs.  We can't export.
  


 7                I did bring you some new pictures.
  


 8          Rockland County is host to this tiny
  


 9          little island up near Bear Mountain
  


10          called Iona Island.  It's a bird
  


11          sanctuary, and as the bird sanctuary it
  


12          is an eagle sanctuary.  I'm sorry, I
  


13          apologize, I couldn't print them out for
  


14          everybody.  The American Bald Eagle nest
  


15          in Iona Island and right now they've come
  


16          out of their nest and they're
  


17          magnificent.  The Power Express is going
  


18          to blast underneath Iona Island so that
  


19          they can bring their extension cord from
  


20          Quebec to Queens.  I brought you another
  


21          picture, did a small history lesson last
  


22          night.  Stony Point is home to one of the
  


23          most resounding wins in a battle in the
  


24          Revolutionary War.  The Champlain Hudson
  


25          Power Express plans to dig our
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 2          revolutionary heros up, to tear that
  


 3          cemetery asunder and put their extension
  


 4          cords.  They've told their job supervisor
  


 5          they won't, but the documents they
  


 6          submitted to the Public Service
  


 7          Commission, the Department of Energy, and
  


 8          the Army Corps of Engineers show the
  


 9          installation going through my cemetery.
  


10          These are the people who fought and died
  


11          for my right to stand here.  They fought
  


12          and died for your right to be elected and
  


13          sit here.  They fought for Governor
  


14          Cuomo's right to be elected Governor and
  


15          we're going to dig them up?  I object to
  


16          that.
  


17                The Champlain Hudson Power Express
  


18          promised jobs.  The Department of Energy
  


19          was very clear, 26 jobs.  They promised
  


20          construction jobs.  They're going to
  


21          import their labor, their construction
  


22          labor, because the machinery they're
  


23          using is highly sophisticated and needs
  


24          an educated labor force.
  


25                They promised savings -- oh, wait,
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 2          that's not to the enduser, that's to the
  


 3          producer, to Blackstone, the very people
  


 4          who bankrupted the Merritt, Bowline,
  


 5          Lovett plants, the two plants that
  


 6          bankrupted Rockland County and we're
  


 7          paying them $11 eleven million not to do
  


 8          anything with that very valuable
  


 9          resource.
  


10                To end, I've been reading,
  


11          studying, following the New York State
  


12          Energy Highway.  Now we got the New York
  


13          Energy Plan.  I didn't know about the
  


14          hearing because I don't read the Federal
  


15          Register with my coffee.  Education,
  


16          listening to every one of these people,
  


17          education and engaging the public is so
  


18          important, and if we can't be heard we're
  


19          the people who have to pay the bill.
  


20          We're the host community.  We are the
  


21          people whose property will be eminent
  


22          domain for a Canadian transmission line,
  


23          no jobs, taking our taxes, and they're
  


24          going to dig up our American heroes.
  


25          Please, somebody hear us.  Thank you.
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 2                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 3                Paulette Osborne followed by Laura
  


 4          McGill.
  


 5                MS. OSBORNE:  I yield my time to
  


 6          someone else.
  


 7                MR. RHODES:  Are you Laura?
  


 8                MS. McGILL:  Yes.  I also want to
  


 9          say a few things but I'm going to yield
  


10          my time, too.
  


11                Anyway, anyway, I'm just here.  I'm
  


12          a volunteer.  I go out.  I feel like I'm
  


13          out everyday trying to do some rally
  


14          against fracking, Sierra Club, Food and
  


15          Water Watch.  I'm worried about the wine
  


16          in upstate New York, to add a little
  


17          levity to this, so that's my big concern.
  


18          I think anybody who votes on this plan or
  


19          has anything to do, including Governor
  


20          Cuomo, before they do anything they
  


21          should take a trip to Dimock,
  


22          Pennsylvania.  I went there and was very,
  


23          very affected by what I saw and I think
  


24          that everybody sits in their ivory tower
  


25          and thinks it's not going to happen to us
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 2          and it's not going to happen in New York
  


 3          State, but it is.  The water, all the
  


 4          water that's used for fracking, it's just
  


 5          a waste of water because these are not
  


 6          renewable, this is not renewable energy.
  


 7          So I saw this and like I said, I would
  


 8          hope that anybody that's in power, I
  


 9          don't know if you've been to Dimock,
  


10          Pennsylvania.  There's other places but I
  


11          think that's about the closest, I wish
  


12          that somebody, or the people we met
  


13          there, that they have their water that
  


14          looks yellow.  I mean, I wouldn't touch
  


15          it let alone -- I don't know, I wouldn't
  


16          touch it.  I have a picture of me holding
  


17          it but to think that that could happen
  


18          here, when I live in New York City and we
  


19          have the best water, I feel, in the
  


20          United States.  I lived out in L.A. for a
  


21          while, we couldn't take it out of the
  


22          tap.  We had to filter it, and to think
  


23          that's going to be, plus everything else
  


24          that's going to be affected.  Like I
  


25          said, I'm very emotional and not as well
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 2          read or eloquent as the other people that
  


 3          have spoken, but I really, really suggest
  


 4          that you also watch Gasland and Gasland 2
  


 5          and also go to Dimock, Pennsylvania.  If
  


 6          anybody has anything else to say they can
  


 7          use the rest of my time.
  


 8                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 9                Betty Trentlyon, if I have that
  


10          right, followed by Eric Weltman.
  


11                MS. TRENTLYON:  I'll pass.
  


12                MR. RHODES:  Is that Betty
  


13          passing?  Eric Weltman, or Wolfrin
  


14          followed by Karen Cherry.
  


15                MR. WELTMAN:  My name is Eric
  


16          Weltman and I'm a senior organizer with
  


17          Food and Water Watch, a national
  


18          non-profit organization out of their
  


19          Brooklyn office.  I'm here to urge
  


20          Governor Cuomo to ban fracking, lead New
  


21          York in a transition to renewable energy,
  


22          as well as to veto the proposed Port
  


23          Ambrose liquified natural gas facility.
  


24                In October 2012 Hurricane Sandy
  


25          slammed New York devastating communities
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 2          across the region.  Even today, many
  


 3          victims of this climate disaster are
  


 4          struggling to pick up the pieces and put
  


 5          their homes and neighborhoods back
  


 6          together.
  


 7                The question today, the question
  


 8          today is whether governing Cuomo will be
  


 9          a leader in preventing further climate
  


10          catastrophe.  The question today, the
  


11          question today is whether Governor Cuomo
  


12          will lead New York in a transition to
  


13          renewable energy or deepen our reliance
  


14          on the dirty fossil fuels that caused
  


15          tragedies like Hurricane Sandy.
  


16          Unfortunately, Governor Cuomo's current
  


17          Draft Plan would maintain New York's
  


18          dependence on fossil fuel.  It would
  


19          enable a massive dole out of pipelines,
  


20          compressor stations, storage facilities,
  


21          power plants and other infrastructure and
  


22          it would rely on fracking in other states
  


23          and stimulate the demand for even more
  


24          fracking.  Already, New York's landscape
  


25          is becoming littered with dirty dangerous
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 2          infrastructure projects, from a
  


 3          compressor station in Minisink to the
  


 4          pipeline here in Manhattan and even more
  


 5          being proposed, such as the storage
  


 6          facility in Seneca Lake and liquified
  


 7          natural gas terminal off of Long Island.
  


 8          These projects risk public safety, our
  


 9          communities and the environment and
  


10          enable fracking which threatens our
  


11          water, our air, our food, and our
  


12          climate.
  


13                The threat of further climate
  


14          catastrophe is particularly stark here in
  


15          New York City.  Burning natural gas
  


16          releases dangerous levels of carbon
  


17          dioxide.  More problematic, fracking for
  


18          natural gas releases massive amounts of
  


19          methane.  Methane is an extremely potent
  


20          greenhouse gas, 333 times more efficient
  


21          in trapping heat than carbon dioxide over
  


22          a hundred years, and about a hundred
  


23          times more potent than carbon dioxide
  


24          over 20 years.
  


25                The simple truth, the simple truth
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 2          is Governor Cuomo can not lien on climate
  


 3          change and allow fracking in New York.
  


 4          The simple truth, the simple truth is
  


 5          Governor Cuomo cannot lien on climate
  


 6          change and rely on frack gas from other
  


 7          states.  If he has any hope, if Governor
  


 8          Cuomo has any genuine, realistic
  


 9          expectation of attaining his goal of an
  


10          80 percent reduction in greenhouse gases
  


11          he cannot, must not, allow fracking in
  


12          New York.  The bottom line, this is the
  


13          bottom line:  New York should not spend
  


14          another dime on deepening our dependence
  


15          on natural gas or enabling fracking here
  


16          or anywhere.  Not one more dime, not one
  


17          more dime, not even one more penny on
  


18          deepening our reliance on natural gas.
  


19                Governor Cuomo should ban fracking
  


20          in New York.  He should veto the Port
  


21          Ambrose LNG facility and use the full
  


22          extent of his authority to stop other
  


23          infrastructure project, and he should
  


24          lead, Governor Cuomo should lead on
  


25          preventing climate change by producing a
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 2          plan that transitions New York to a
  


 3          clean, renewable energy future.  The here
  


 4          plan today does not do that.
  


 5                MR. RHODES:  Karen Cherry, followed
  


 6          by Gregory Grant.
  


 7                MS. CHERRY:  Good morning.  My name
  


 8          is Karen Sherry.  I am a Brooklyn
  


 9          resident and leader of Brooklyn, New
  


10          York.  On behalf of the residents and
  


11          children and family I stand here today in
  


12          support of relicensing Indian Point
  


13          energy center.  As a rate payer it is
  


14          important to me that the cost of the
  


15          powerful -- the power is affordable.
  


16          Right now it is anything but affordable.
  


17          In fact, New York State and New York City
  


18          practically has almost the highest power
  


19          costs in the nation.  If we continue to
  


20          pile on costs by imposing clean and
  


21          affordable energy plants, how can we
  


22          expect New York to thrive in this cold
  


23          weather?  We can't.  The State Energy
  


24          Plan must assure the power is safe,
  


25          reliable and affordable sources of
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 2          energy.  Additional unnecessary costs
  


 3          must not pass onto already overburdened
  


 4          New York City residents.
  


 5                In closing, New York City needs
  


 6          more power plants to produce clean, clean
  


 7          and affordable power, not fewer.  For
  


 8          these reasons I strongly urge you to
  


 9          insure continued operation at Indian
  


10          Point energy center.  Thank you for your
  


11          consideration.
  


12                MR. RHODES:  Gregory Grant,
  


13          followed by Reverend Robinson.
  


14                MR. GRANT:  I'm Gregory Grant and
  


15          I'm a resident of Brooklyn, New York.
  


16          Thank you for taking the time to hear my
  


17          views on New York Draft Energy Plan.  In
  


18          the cold weather we experienced last
  


19          month natural gas and electricity bills
  


20          skyrocketed, rising 20 percent on
  


21          average.  For renters, homeowners and
  


22          businesses across the City this is an
  


23          unsuspected cost that can cause
  


24          significant budgeting problems.  Many of
  


25          the residents in our communities can
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 2          barely afford to feed their families.
  


 3          The energy produced by Indian Point,
  


 4          however, represents stability in an
  


 5          unpredictable climate.  It is vitally
  


 6          important to keep Indian Point open as it
  


 7          is one of the resources with reliable
  


 8          output and stable prices.  In particular,
  


 9          the price of the energy produced by
  


10          Indian Point does not change with the
  


11          weather.  I cannot stand by as opponents
  


12          of Indian Point force Brooklyn families
  


13          to pay higher rent, outrageous energy
  


14          bills for the products they need.  New
  


15          York must move towards making sure that
  


16          our people in the City have reliable
  


17          energy.  Relicensing Indian Point is the
  


18          first goal of making this a reality and
  


19          New York State must adopt its position in
  


20          its energy plan.
  


21                MR. RHODES:  Please.  Reverend
  


22          Robinson, followed by Marty Rajandran.
  


23                REVEREND ROBINSON:  Good morning,
  


24          thank you, good morning.  We thank you
  


25          for allowing us to come today before you
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 2          to have remarks in regards to relicensing
  


 3          Indian Point.  I think that safe,
  


 4          healthy, affordable, reliable energy is
  


 5          very important for the residents of the
  


 6          City of New York.  We all know when fuel
  


 7          costs go up and natural gas goes go up
  


 8          electrical costs go up.  We have to think
  


 9          about it.  Just the other day I got an
  


10          oil delivery.  When I bought my home ten
  


11          years ago, I was paying $300 for four
  


12          hundred gallons of oil.  Now I'm paying
  


13          $420 for four hundred gallons of oil.
  


14          That's why we need safe, healthy, clean,
  


15          performable, reliable energy.
  


16                Like I said, I'm here today for
  


17          support of Indian Point.  Thank you, sir,
  


18          and have a nice day.
  


19                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


20          Marty Rajandran, followed by Rachelle
  


21          Bradt.  Please have some decorum and
  


22          respect.  I know there are some different
  


23          views here but it's the last few speakers
  


24          that are the only ones who received this
  


25          treatment.
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 2                MS. RAJANDRAN:  Thank you.  My name
  


 3          is Marty Rajandran.  I'm a New York City
  


 4          resident.  I'm not an expert.  I work
  


 5          with some of the groups here as a
  


 6          volunteer, but my comments are not really
  


 7          technical ones.  I'm just here as a
  


 8          concerned New York resident.
  


 9                I moved back to New York two years
  


10          ago living out of the country for many
  


11          years.  I made a choice to come back to
  


12          the City.  But to be frank, sometimes I
  


13          wonder if I made the right choice.
  


14          Before I returned I never heard of
  


15          fracking or Indian Point.  Within my
  


16          first couple of days of living in the
  


17          City I saw something on television that
  


18          really shocked me.  It was an energy
  


19          announcement.  There is an incident at
  


20          Indian Point.  You will get further
  


21          instructions on what to do, and then it
  


22          said it's a test.  Well, to be frank, I
  


23          did not know what Indian Point was so I
  


24          had to Google it and look it up and see
  


25          what this is all about.  To see that we
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 2          are living within 50 miles of a 40
  


 3          year-old nuclear power plant that has
  


 4          outlived its usefulness and needs to be
  


 5          replaced.  I understand that even now
  


 6          part of the plant has not been relicensed
  


 7          because it is old and it's dangerous.
  


 8          This plant has been spewing nuclear waste
  


 9          into the Hudson River for years.  They
  


10          are storing nuclear waste on site because
  


11          according even to the federal government,
  


12          there is no place to save -- for safe
  


13          nuclear waste disposal, and we have
  


14          nuclear waste right on our shoreline.
  


15                The other thing is evacuation, of
  


16          course, anything can happen but there is
  


17          no evacuation plan so we are living
  


18          within 50 miles of a very dangerous
  


19          situation as we know, and Fukushima can
  


20          happen here.  It can happen here and we
  


21          have to say no.  I'm happy that Governor
  


22          Cuomo does want to close it, but I'm out
  


23          here looking at it for two years and I
  


24          don't see any real action happening.  We
  


25          know that this would cause hardship so
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 2          there needs to be a plan.  What's the
  


 3          Plan?  To close Indian Point now and
  


 4          replace it with some renewable energy
  


 5          option so that we keep our rates low.
  


 6          This would be my fear and my concern.
  


 7                On fracking, well, I've seen the
  


 8          movies Gasland 1 and 2 and I've learned a
  


 9          lot about fracking and among my concerns
  


10          on fracking is that it uses huge, vast
  


11          amounts of water that then become
  


12          unusable to us and as other people have
  


13          said, this is not something that we can
  


14          afford to in the future.  We need to have
  


15          clean water for our children and our
  


16          grandchildren and fracking is not going
  


17          to provide this to our hour children.  In
  


18          addition, we have to be concerned about
  


19          what it does to the land and to the air,
  


20          and we are increasingly finding what it
  


21          does.
  


22                New York is naturally a green
  


23          state.  It's one of the reasons why I
  


24          came back here.  I hope that we invest in
  


25          renewable energy resources available and
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 2          that we are hearing about today, and that
  


 3          we give incentives for green and that we
  


 4          divest from fossil fuels immediately.
  


 5          Thank you.
  


 6                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 7                Rachelle Bradt, followed by
  


 8          Priscilla Bassett.
  


 9                MS. BRADT:  Good morning, I'm
  


10          Rochelle Brant.  I'm a member of
  


11          Riverside Church Loved Earth community.
  


12          I'm a member of Riverside Church Beloved
  


13          Church community.  We see the issue of
  


14          climate change as a moral issue that
  


15          everybody should be making their top
  


16          priority and of course, our government.
  


17          First of all, there are misconceptions
  


18          about natural gas and nuclear power as
  


19          being clean.  That has to be debunked.
  


20          Those sources of energy are not clean.
  


21          In fact, they are deadly, both of them
  


22          are deadly.  The gas is deadly for water
  


23          and air, and the nuclear can lead any
  


24          moment into a catastrophe none of us will
  


25          survive.  That is why there is no
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 2          evacuation plan, because we cannot be
  


 3          evacuated.  So you have to consider that
  


 4          fact if you want to save a few dollars on
  


 5          your bill.  On the other hand, this
  


 6          report that has been referred to I would
  


 7          like Governor Cuomo to look at the report
  


 8          by an engineer, by Professor Mark
  


 9          Jacobson of Stanford and also Professor
  


10          Ingraffea of Cornell University who have
  


11          their life experience is specifically
  


12          energy engineering technology.  They have
  


13          spent 20, 30 years of their working life
  


14          to produce a plan how we, as United
  


15          States, can be a leader in technology
  


16          that we have been in the past, to move
  


17          away from fossil and nuclear fuels,
  


18          period.  We cannot have another solution.
  


19          Any other solution is unrealistic because
  


20          there will be no planet to live on.
  


21                So, these engineers conclude their
  


22          report which is in all details, costs are
  


23          accounted for.  They put the factor and
  


24          health costs and they come up with a
  


25          general plan that's very specific and
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 2          amounts for New York State 50 percent
  


 3          wind, 26 percent solar, 24 percent tidal
  


 4          geothermal hydroelectric for the
  


 5          production of electricity.  This is only
  


 6          electricity, but electricity being the
  


 7          biggest source of pollution and the one
  


 8          that is the easiest where we can replace
  


 9          gas to fuel our power plants with gas, is
  


10          absolutely absurd and backwards.  This is
  


11          an old, outdated technology, and
  


12          interesting, go back to when Con Edison
  


13          started -- I mean, Mr. Edison, Thomas
  


14          Alva Edison, the genius, who brought us
  


15          the light bulb almost didn't happen
  


16          because the gas industry of New York
  


17          wanted to sabotage the idea that they
  


18          could do without gas and they almost made
  


19          it impossible to go the first
  


20          implementation of light bulbs because
  


21          they were afraid they would no longer be
  


22          able to use their gas infrastructure, and
  


23          now we're right back at the same problem.
  


24                Governor Cuomo, you are a leader,
  


25          leader of our state.  Make New York State
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 2          the Empire State and an example of the
  


 3          United States to set an example that
  


 4          technology can make us survive.  We have
  


 5          no other choice.
  


 6                MR. RHODES:  Priscilla Bassett,
  


 7          followed by Joan Farber.
  


 8                MS. BASSETT:  Good morning, I have
  


 9          sat here wondering whether I should pass
  


10          and then I remembered that I read about a
  


11          week ago that there was a suit filed
  


12          against the State of New York, against
  


13          the governor, against Commissioner
  


14          Martens by a group of landholders in
  


15          upstate New York including residents of
  


16          my county, Sullivan County.  I thought
  


17          today I'd be the only person here from
  


18          Sullivan County and who am I?  Not the
  


19          man in the street, I'm an old lady on a
  


20          country road in Neversink, New York in
  


21          Sullivan County, and we have Jill Weiner
  


22          who is, who has spoken before me so
  


23          eloquently and with so much factual
  


24          information.  What can I say?  I can say
  


25          that I've been part of an effort in my
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 2          county and in our communities writing
  


 3          letters, going to public hearings,
  


 4          lectures, being out on the street,
  


 5          calling for no fracking.  We oppose
  


 6          fracking now and in the future.  The
  


 7          social well-being of our communities, of
  


 8          our county, the health, the environmental
  


 9          costs of horizontal hydraulic fracturing
  


10          outweigh the promise of jobs that the
  


11          landholders who filed that suit are
  


12          concerned with.  We too are concerned
  


13          with jobs but not at the price of the
  


14          health of our country, of our county.
  


15                According to the Times Herald
  


16          Record, Commissioner Martens has recently
  


17          said that there will be no fracking until
  


18          at least April, 19 -- I mean, excuse me,
  


19          2015, 15.
  


20                Now, on behalf of my family and
  


21          other landholders up there in Sullivan
  


22          County, and certainly Orange County with
  


23          this new development with a pro fracking
  


24          facility being built, there are just too
  


25          many risks, too high a price to pay for







67


  


 1                        HEARING
  


 2          endangering our land, water, air, and our
  


 3          social well-being in our communities.
  


 4          New York's Energy Plan, and this is my
  


 5          chance to say this, because we're having
  


 6          this public hearing, I may sound off
  


 7          target somewhat but I'm not, because this
  


 8          is the issue.  New York's Energy Plan
  


 9          must make our state a national renewable
  


10          energy leader and unequivocally say no to
  


11          fracking.  Our health, our environment
  


12          and our social quality of life require
  


13          it.
  


14                Now, as a postscript, I want to say
  


15          in my small community, Grahamsville, New
  


16          York, Sullivan County, we have nearby
  


17          Sullivan County Community College which
  


18          is heated and cooled by geothermal pumps.
  


19          We have the Daniel Pierce Public Library,
  


20          likewise, geothermal.  So thank you very
  


21          much.
  


22                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


23                Joan Farber, followed by Sam
  


24          Tatnall.
  


25                MS. FARBER:  My name is Joan Farber
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 2          and I'm a resident of New York City and
  


 3          Hancock, New York, which is right in the
  


 4          middle of the Marcellus shale.  I too am
  


 5          very concerned about the central place in
  


 6          your plan of natural gas.  The earth and
  


 7          the life that supports it are all we have
  


 8          and are.  Hydro fracking for natural gas
  


 9          threatens to poison on a large scale all
  


10          we need for life, namely, the air and the
  


11          water that sustains it.  We know how bad
  


12          this is Colorado, New Mexico and now in
  


13          Pennsylvania, and the illness and
  


14          pollution we know about there is the
  


15          result of a relatively short-term effect.
  


16          That is to say, we know about the nerve
  


17          damage and the cancers because they have
  


18          already occurred.  We don't know about
  


19          the long-term impact of large
  


20          unretrievable amounts of poisoned water
  


21          circulating deep under the Earth or about
  


22          the potential genetic changes in humans
  


23          and animals because of these toxins
  


24          released into streams, wetlands and
  


25          aquifers, however, we do know from the
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 2          Department of Environmental
  


 3          Conservation's own report that the waste
  


 4          water that is returned to the surface
  


 5          from hydrofracking is radioactive beyond
  


 6          the legally safe limits and the available
  


 7          water treatment facilities are not
  


 8          suitable for handling that.  How much
  


 9          more do we need to know before we say
  


10          that natural gas should not be done in
  


11          New York State.
  


12                MR. RHODES:  Sam Tatnall followed
  


13          by Audrey Ahearne.
  


14                MR. TATNALL:  I'm Sam Tatnall, New
  


15          York City resident.  I'm trained as a
  


16          physicist and software engineer and in
  


17          part my training says one should apply
  


18          logic wherever possible in one's
  


19          life-style.  So I look at this problem of
  


20          hydraulic fracturing and I see not only
  


21          the problem of releasing methane and the
  


22          carbon dioxide that will be generated by
  


23          the burning of it, but I'm really fearful
  


24          of poisoning the aquifer or streams, our
  


25          environment and it's something that







70


  


 1                        HEARING
  


 2          cannot be cleaned up by a Superfund
  


 3          cleanup.  We can't go back and say, Oh,
  


 4          oh, we made a mistake, let's go and fix
  


 5          it.  Once these poisons are put in the
  


 6          ground, that's it.  We cannot go back.
  


 7          So I am very much opposed to
  


 8          hydrofracking and I want to go on record
  


 9          as saying so, and I think that we have to
  


10          find alternative sources of energy which,
  


11          in the long-term, will allow us to
  


12          sustain our lives.  And I just want to
  


13          say that I have colleagues who are
  


14          smarter than I am who say, Oh, it's not a
  


15          problem.  I mean, Yes, we have some
  


16          climate change but how do you know it's
  


17          caused by human activity?  Well, it's
  


18          quite obvious to me that the kind of
  


19          change that has occurred in the last ten,
  


20          twenty years is not normal.  It's not
  


21          something which it's ever been recorded
  


22          before in history so that we must be
  


23          responsible for the climate change that
  


24          is going on, and we must change our ways.
  


25          So I just want to add that emphasis,
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 2          thank you.
  


 3                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 4                Deidre Ahearne followed by Chris
  


 5          Coppa.
  


 6                MS. AHEARNE:  I'm a New York City
  


 7          resident here in Manhattan and I am a
  


 8          volunteer with 350NYC and we act for
  


 9          environmental justice.  I'm attending
  


10          these hearings today because I'm
  


11          passionately concerned about what kind of
  


12          future we're creating.  The President
  


13          said climate change is a fact and when
  


14          our children's children look us in the
  


15          eye and ask we did all we could to leave
  


16          them a safe and more stable world with
  


17          new sources of energy, I want to be able
  


18          to say yes, we did.  Well, how can we not
  


19          believe that this statement should be
  


20          viewed as a rhetorical device for
  


21          politicians, but rather as a call for all
  


22          citizens to hold our elected officials
  


23          accountable for their votes and actions
  


24          with regard to energy policy.  Right now
  


25          we are also experiencing the daily impact
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 2          of climate change with major weather
  


 3          disruptions all over the world.
  


 4          Scientists report measurable impacts on
  


 5          biodiversity, sea-level change, and ocean
  


 6          acidification due to climate change.
  


 7          Communities across the United States are
  


 8          grappling with the environmental
  


 9          devastation and chronic health impacts
  


10          that the aggressive exploitation of
  


11          fossil fuels has produced.  Global
  


12          economies are floundering under the
  


13          weight of these natural disasters and
  


14          public emergency reserve funds, such as
  


15          FEMA, are seriously depleted.  The
  


16          decisions that New York State makes now
  


17          with regard to energy policy can
  


18          contribute to this continued disgraceful
  


19          degradation of our planet or it can
  


20          continue to reverse the conditions that
  


21          caused climate change.
  


22                Specifically, I want to address
  


23          these areas from the Plan:
  


24                We need to update our aging
  


25          transmission and distribution systems
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 2          with new technologies and efficiencies.
  


 3          The Governor's Energy Highway Initiative
  


 4          is a good concept but how this is
  


 5          implemented is critical.  Grid
  


 6          modernization will eliminate the
  


 7          transmission constraints from upstate to
  


 8          downstate and rebalance the supply/demand
  


 9          gap.  However, the Hudson River Capacity
  


10          Zone must be strongly rejected.  This
  


11          financial construct, designed by FERC and
  


12          ISO is just a way to manipulate market
  


13          prices by creating a Capacity Zone.  It
  


14          will place a surcharge on ratepayers in
  


15          order to provide incentives to the
  


16          electricity generators to construct new
  


17          gas-fired power plants.  This will
  


18          undermine the purpose of grid
  


19          modernization and thwarting the
  


20          introduction of renewable sources by
  


21          investment in power plants.
  


22                Secondly, New York State must turn
  


23          away from dirty it and dangerous energy
  


24          and rapidly increase investments in
  


25          renewable energy and energy efficiency
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 2          now.  The Energy Plan must commit to
  


 3          extending the State's renewable energy
  


 4          target to insure that 50 percent of New
  


 5          York's electric energy comes from
  


 6          renewable energy sources by 2025, with a
  


 7          target of a hundred percent renewables by
  


 8          2035.  To accomplish that, the governor's
  


 9          Energy Plan must commit to doubling New
  


10          York's land-based wind capacity and
  


11          invest in offshore wind this year.
  


12          Specifically, the State can purchase
  


13          offshore wind power to power Long Island
  


14          from a project under development east of
  


15          Montauk point, and move forward
  


16          immediately with a project proposed by
  


17          the New York Power Authority in the New
  


18          York wind energy area off the Rockaways.
  


19          Governor Cuomo must say no to the
  


20          proposed Port Ambrose LNG offshore export
  


21          terminal.  New York State must invest in
  


22          wind turbines not LNG tankers.  This plan
  


23          cites overreliance on the expansion of
  


24          natural gas, however, New York must ban
  


25          fracking now, and must move away from
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 2          further increased investments in any and
  


 3          all forms of infrastructure, gas
  


 4          infrastructure, in order to protect our
  


 5          families from fracking.  Such
  


 6          infrastructure investments only diverts
  


 7          our resources away from where they are
  


 8          needed and sends a mixed message.  We
  


 9          must not collude with the notion that
  


10          natural gas is a clean energy.  It is a
  


11          dangerous and toxic pollutant at every
  


12          stage of the production cycle and it
  


13          contributes to the acceleration of global
  


14          warming, mainly through the release of
  


15          methane gas, not to mention the danger of
  


16          earthquakes that we're seeing in places
  


17          like Oklahoma.  We must recognize that
  


18          the harms to a conversion to natural gas
  


19          will bring to Minisink, Waywayanda,
  


20          Seneca, Port Ambrose, etc., and take
  


21          steps to move away from that path.
  


22          Increasing New York's reliance on natural
  


23          gas commits New York to significant
  


24          investments in unsustainable gas
  


25          infrastructure that will lock-in reliance
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 2          on fossil fuels for decades to come and
  


 3          open New York up to the destructive and
  


 4          devastating practice of hydraulic
  


 5          fracturing which has disseminated nearby
  


 6          states, and significantly it will
  


 7          crowd-out opportunities for increased
  


 8          renewable resources which should be the
  


 9          single-minded focus of our future Energy
  


10          Plan.  A bold, decisive and aggressive
  


11          investment in all forms of renewable
  


12          energy now will secure our energy future
  


13          and generate employment in the region.
  


14                In summary, Governor Cuomo has an
  


15          opportunity to lead New York towards a
  


16          rational policy shift in favor of
  


17          renewable energy sources and to reduce
  


18          the investment of taxpayers' money in the
  


19          very coal, oil and gas industries that
  


20          are the major source of carbon pollutants
  


21          in the atmosphere.  Every energy decision
  


22          must be judged by the extent to which it
  


23          contributes to climate change through
  


24          increased carbon and methane emissions or
  


25          provides a solution to the climate
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 2          emergency.  The Governor must step up to
  


 3          the challenge and instruct his energy
  


 4          team to reject projects and plans that do
  


 5          not meet his litmus test.  The voters and
  


 6          the children of the future will take note
  


 7          of his actions.  Thank you.
  


 8                MR. RHODES:  Thank you.
  


 9                Chris Coppa followed by Gregory
  


10          Grant.
  


11                MS. COPPA:  Chris Coppa from Staten
  


12          Island.  It took me about two hours to
  


13          get here, and I just want to say I want
  


14          to -- I'm against fracking now and in the
  


15          future.  I think it's damaging to the
  


16          environment, the climate, the water, the
  


17          earth, everything, and it's really bad.
  


18          It's damaging to our health, and really,
  


19          it's pollution.  So everyone has said it
  


20          so I'm not going to reiterate what has
  


21          already been said.  But I wanted to say
  


22          my peace.  Thank you.
  


23                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


24                Gregory Grant, followed by Rebecca
  


25          Smith.
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 2                Rebecca Smith, in that case,
  


 3          followed by Ruth Hardinger, please.
  


 4                MS. SMITH:  Good morning, my name
  


 5          is Rebecca Smith.  I'm representing -- my
  


 6          name is Rebecca Smith, thank you for
  


 7          getting my name right.
  


 8                I'm representing Damascus Citizens
  


 9          For Sustainability.  The Energy Plan
  


10          demonstrates a bias for natural gas
  


11          energy that is not based on fact.  We
  


12          will show that mounting evidence now
  


13          indicates that methane gas leakage rates
  


14          throughout the natural gas lifetime make
  


15          gas energy a driver for climate change,
  


16          not a cleaner fuel that slows it down.
  


17                The 2013 gas -- in 2013 Gas Safety,
  


18          Inc. released three studies on fugitive
  


19          methane emissions in Manhattan.
  


20          Commissioned by Damascus Citizens for
  


21          Sustainability, these reports show that
  


22          Manhattan exists in a cloud of elevated
  


23          levels of methane produced almost
  


24          entirely by pipeline leaks.  Methane is a
  


25          greenhouse gas far more potent than
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 2          carbon dioxide.  Comparable testing in
  


 3          other cities throughout the nation show
  


 4          similar findings.
  


 5                Emissions were measured using a
  


 6          cavity ring-down laser spectrometer
  


 7          driving over 160 miles of Manhattan
  


 8          streets.  The results indicate 8.6
  


 9          billion cubic feet a year of methane is
  


10          leaked from Manhattan and lost to the
  


11          atmosphere.  The 2013 Intergovernmental
  


12          Panel for Climate Change makes methane 84
  


13          times more potent a greenhouse gas than
  


14          carbon dioxide over a 20 year-period.  In
  


15          global warming terms, Manhattan's yearly
  


16          methane emissions are equivalent to
  


17          14,112000 metric tons of carbon dioxide.
  


18          What is that like?  It's like almost 3
  


19          million more cars in Manhattan a year, or
  


20          a 3.6 coal plants.
  


21                Methane is odorless and colorless.
  


22          It's lighter than air and easily escapes
  


23          when given the opportunity.  While
  


24          natural gas burns about half as dirty as
  


25          coal, mounting evidence shows gas to be
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 2          worse than other fossil fuels precisely
  


 3          because of its propensity to leak every
  


 4          stage from drill site to distribution.
  


 5                How much can the system leak before
  


 6          methane leaks make it worse than burning
  


 7          coal?  At the drill site for many 3.2
  


 8          percent is the limit.  At the drill
  


 9          site -- these are really low numbers --
  


10          2.3 percent that was registered in
  


11          Denver, Julesberg Fossil formation.
  


12                Transport:  This is the low number,
  


13          1.4 percent.
  


14                Distribution:  The Manhattan study
  


15          estimates more than five percent.
  


16          Measured leaks from Manhattan alone lost
  


17          2.8 percent of the entire Con Edison
  


18          system while representing only one-third
  


19          of its customers.  If the entire customer
  


20          base leaked only half as much as
  


21          Manhattan the rate would be 5.72 percent.
  


22          If we add altogether the lower estimates
  


23          for drill site transport and distribution
  


24          we have a 9.2 percent emissions.
  


25                The Draft Energy Plan fails to
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 2          provide adequate measurements for methane
  


 3          in the atmosphere.  Appendix 1 from the
  


 4          Emissions from Energy does not reference
  


 5          methane.  Appendix 4, Historical Trends
  


 6          for air Pollutants lists eight different
  


 7          results for pollutants.  Nothing about
  


 8          methane.  It cites 2011 NYSERDA as giving
  


 9          a 1.7 percent emissions rate from
  


10          transmission and distribution alone.  The
  


11          Manhattan report shows more than five
  


12          percent at distribution.
  


13                Ultimately, it is impossible to
  


14          know exactly how much methane is leaked
  


15          from complex processes over the natural
  


16          gas life cycle nationwide.  However, it
  


17          is certain that there are many
  


18          opportunities for leakage in the system.
  


19          The enormous disappointments of the
  


20          Manhattan and other urban emissions
  


21          studies is that they provide actual
  


22          measured data of leakage at distribution.
  


23          That means not EPA estimates of estimates
  


24          of estimates.  It means data.  We cannot
  


25          expect industry to fix all these leaks or
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 2          operate within the safety tolerances of a
  


 3          laboratory.
  


 4                So what's the down side of taking a
  


 5          risk on natural gas?  Enormous.  The New
  


 6          York State Energy Plan that we're
  


 7          discussing today states the following:
  


 8          "Rising atmospheric greenhouse gas
  


 9          concentrations are rapidly approaching
  


10          the level at which scientists project
  


11          that severe consequences are likely."
  


12          Because extreme global warming is a life
  


13          or death conscience, responsible policy
  


14          cannot approve natural gas as an energy
  


15          source.  The time to replace fossil fuels
  


16          with renewables is now.  New York State
  


17          must aggressively transition out of
  


18          natural gas and other fossil fuels and
  


19          make a real commitment to renewable
  


20          energy.  Thank you.
  


21                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


22                Ruth Hardinger, followed by
  


23          Pramilla Malick.
  


24                MS. HARDINGER:  My name is Ruth
  


25          Hardinger.  Hello, can you hear that?
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 2          First of all, thank you for this hearing.
  


 3          This comment period is really too short
  


 4          and extension to April is not enough.
  


 5          This comment period needs to be extended
  


 6          for six months, total.
  


 7                Three days ago John Kerry compared
  


 8          climate change to a weapon of mass
  


 9          destruction.
  


10                Methane is a short-lived climate
  


11          forcing greenhouse gas.  You heard a lot
  


12          about it.  Last fall the IPCC, the
  


13          Intergovernmental Panel for Climate
  


14          Change, stated that if we emphatically
  


15          reduced these emissions we could slow
  


16          down human-caused climate change
  


17          imperiling our pressure Earth.
  


18                What does it mean that methane is a
  


19          potent greenhouse gas?  By comparison to
  


20          weight, it's actually moved from 86 -- to
  


21          86 pounds and even predicting up to a
  


22          hundred pounds, 86 pounds of methane is
  


23          like one pound of carbon dioxide.
  


24          Methane functions like weight.  Sun's
  


25          rays land on the ground, methane holds
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 2          that heat down 86 times more than carbon
  


 3          dioxide in the first 20 years of its
  


 4          presence.
  


 5                On page 55 of the New York State
  


 6          plan it brings up the United Nations plan
  


 7          to, short-lived climate forcers
  


 8          collaborating with industry.  It implies
  


 9          that after 20 years methane goes away,
  


10          which is not correct.  Methane degrades
  


11          and converts into carbon dioxide and
  


12          continues to have global warning
  


13          potential for a century or more.  The
  


14          United Nations and New York State should
  


15          stop development and address the vast
  


16          amount of abandoned wells leaking methane
  


17          in New York State and everywhere, plus
  


18          the oceans.  That's methane leaks.
  


19                Slick marketing of shale gas as a
  


20          clean natural gas is pervasive in this
  


21          plan.  Where's the evidence that it's
  


22          clean?  And maybe 50 percent less carbon
  


23          dioxide when burned is not an effective
  


24          climate change advantage.  Is this what
  


25          we're basing policies on?  The IPCC says
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 2          by 2050 if we continue using shale gas
  


 3          temperatures will rise at least 2 degrees
  


 4          centigrade which is almost 4 degrees
  


 5          Farenheit.
  


 6                Shale gas is not clean for health
  


 7          and environment and it's escalating
  


 8          climate instability.
  


 9                Making gas safe is not a realistic
  


10          goal.  It will cost at least a million
  


11          dollars a mile to replace urban
  


12          distribution lines.  New York City has
  


13          over 4,320 miles of pipeline.  There are
  


14          over 2.5 million miles of pipeline in the
  


15          United States, and half of them are over
  


16          50 years old.  In what time frame are
  


17          these leaky lines going to be replaced?
  


18          And cutting pipes causes more emissions.
  


19          The so-called green completion wells
  


20          would still produce .4 percent leakage at
  


21          best, so multiply that times by how many
  


22          hundreds of thousands of wells?
  


23          Continuing adding more short-lived
  


24          climate-forcing gas to the atmosphere, it
  


25          does not address toxic and methane
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 2          migration caused by faulty installations
  


 3          or fractured well casings.  And there's
  


 4          venting.  And there is venting, leakage
  


 5          and flaring.  North Dakota has already
  


 6          flared 35 percent of its production.
  


 7          There is no way this is sustainable.
  


 8                Neither industry or EPA has taken
  


 9          substantive methane emissions
  


10          measurements.  Their reports on methane
  


11          quantities are largely based on business
  


12          deduction allowances for leakage and
  


13          estimates, not actual measurements.  The
  


14          elevated methane levels measured in the
  


15          fugitive emissions studies such as the
  


16          New York City report, Washington D.C. and
  


17          Boston, while they may appear to be small
  


18          amounts, add up to amounts that escalate
  


19          climate change.  These emissions are part
  


20          of the newly understood status that
  


21          natural gas is worse than coal for
  


22          climate change.  Gas efforts will provide
  


23          huge amounts of money to the industry, it
  


24          will not benefit life.  Is that the goal?
  


25                While the purpose of this New York
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 2          City plan is to figure out a better way
  


 3          to provide energy, the report pushes
  


 4          substantiated health problems about
  


 5          hydrofracking for gas, pushes them into
  


 6          the background.  Widely documented water
  


 7          contamination, the lack of safe places to
  


 8          dispose of radioactive waste from
  


 9          drilling, endocrine disruptors causing
  


10          birth defects in wildlife and now
  


11          documented in human births are only three
  


12          examples of the many tragic events.  Also
  


13          asthma and other respiratory diseases are
  


14          caused by ground-level ozone which is a
  


15          product of methane.
  


16                Many scientists say that we don't
  


17          have 20 years to address global warming.
  


18          Digging up the earth and spending
  


19          trillions of money or more on
  


20          infrastructure that will only support gas
  


21          extraction for a few decades is a losing
  


22          strategy.  New York Plan should delete
  


23          use and infrastructure development of
  


24          natural gas from this agenda and focus on
  


25          building renewable energy and increasing
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 2          efficiency.
  


 3                Our government must use the
  


 4          precautionary principle and take
  


 5          precautionary measures.  We have no time
  


 6          for an expensive fix, false fix, that
  


 7          will fail to solve these fossil fuels
  


 8          problems that are causing man-made
  


 9          weapons of mass destruction.  New York
  


10          State, don't go backwards.
  


11                MR. RHODES:  Pramilla Malick,
  


12          followed by --
  


13                MS. MALICK:  I actually, I know a
  


14          lot of people.  I would like to address
  


15          some of these issues to the members of
  


16          the board that are here.  So I'm going to
  


17          face them and I apologize.
  


18                My name is Pramilla Mallick and I'm
  


19          here to testify on behalf of myself as a
  


20          citizen of this great state and on behalf
  


21          of two grassroots, all-volunteer
  


22          community organizations from the lower
  


23          Hudson Valley, Protect Orange County and
  


24          Stop Minisink Compression Station.
  


25                I'd like to thank the Planning
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 2          Board for giving me the opportunity to
  


 3          comment on these proceedings.  I am here
  


 4          today specifically to comment on
  


 5          initiatives 6, 8 and 9 in the Plan which
  


 6          explicitly promotes the acceleration and
  


 7          expansion of natural gas, including oil
  


 8          to gas conversion and infrastructure for
  


 9          gas transmission and distribution.
  


10          Although it remains undecided if New York
  


11          State will allow high-volume hydraulic
  


12          fracturing, our state has already seen a
  


13          steady expansion of gas infrastructure in
  


14          the past few years in order to facilitate
  


15          the transportation of shale gas from
  


16          Pennsylvania to downstate markets such as
  


17          New York City.  Unfortunately, my
  


18          community of Minisink in Orange County
  


19          has been on the front lines of that
  


20          expansion and our experiences over the
  


21          past few years served as a critical
  


22          warning for our elected officials and
  


23          regulators that such a path is filled
  


24          with great risks that must be identified
  


25          and understood before we take one further
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 2          step in this direction.  I wish I could
  


 3          say that our experiences are atypical.
  


 4          But based upon accounts from other
  


 5          communities across the country, they are
  


 6          all too common.  And because this plan
  


 7          will have permanent and irreversible
  


 8          impacts upon my community and other
  


 9          communities in the lower Hudson Valley, I
  


10          would like to reiterate with the woman
  


11          from Rockland County had requested, that
  


12          you hold public hearings in the lower
  


13          Hudson Valley so that my neighbors can
  


14          also come before you and testify.  It is
  


15          important for you to know the
  


16          implications for New York residents and
  


17          communities when you propose a policy
  


18          that will have both immediate as well as
  


19          long-term impacts and indeed, Article 6,
  


20          the Article 6 energy law which is the
  


21          basis for these proceedings, mandates
  


22          that you consider and address these
  


23          issues, specifically 6-104.2K calls for
  


24          quote, An assessment of the impacts of
  


25          the implementation of a plan upon
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 2          economic development, health, safety and
  


 3          welfare, environmental quality and energy
  


 4          costs for consumers, specifically
  


 5          low-income consumers.  These are some of
  


 6          the issues I will testify on today.
  


 7                Minisink is a small middle-class
  


 8          community about an hour outside New York
  


 9          City.  In 2006 it was unfortunate to lie
  


10          directly in the path of one of New York's
  


11          largest pipeline, the Millennium
  


12          Pipeline.  From 2006 onwards the
  


13          residents of Minisink, as well as New
  


14          York residents all along the 182 mile
  


15          pipeline have been under siege by this
  


16          predatory and irresponsible company which
  


17          has little or no regulatory oversight or
  


18          restraints.  In 2006 during construction
  


19          the company tore up farmland and private
  


20          lawns, creating permanent damage to
  


21          irrigation and drainage systems.  Their
  


22          unfulfilled promises to repair the damage
  


23          disappeared into a 1-800 voice mail.
  


24          During construction several faulty wells
  


25          were identified by a routine inspection
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 2          and ordered repaired.  Instead of
  


 3          repairing the wells, they buried them
  


 4          deep in the ground where they remain to
  


 5          this day leaking methane, a far more
  


 6          potent greenhouse gas than cO2, along
  


 7          with radioactive condensate, into our
  


 8          farmlands, our wetlands and other
  


 9          sensitive terrain.  We in Minisink can
  


10          frequently smell the foul odor of sulfur,
  


11          and then there is the constant and ever
  


12          present hum from the high-pressure
  


13          pipelines.
  


14                In 2011 they targeted our
  


15          communities again.  This time for 12,260
  


16          horsepower gas compressor station
  


17          allegedly to serve the increasing demand
  


18          for New York City as Con Edison promoted
  


19          oil to gas conversion.  This plant was
  


20          sited smack in the middle of a
  


21          residential area with 200 homes within a
  


22          half-mile of the facility on protected
  


23          farmland, as well as on a national
  


24          historic site.
  


25                Our community is a District 2
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 2          agricultural area which should be free
  


 3          from even the most benign industrial
  


 4          development.  It was approved by FERC,
  


 5          the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission,
  


 6          despite being in complete violation of
  


 7          our local zoning laws because an
  


 8          interstate project preempts local zoning
  


 9          pursuant to the Natural Gas Act,
  


10          therefore, it's important to understand
  


11          that interstate pipeline facilities
  


12          render home rule moot and meaningless.
  


13          New York is a home-rule state and this is
  


14          a core principle here, yet this Draft
  


15          Energy Plan directly conflicts with that
  


16          principle.  This plan would result in
  


17          greater consumption of natural gas which
  


18          is contingent on greater interstate
  


19          pipeline capacity.  Furthermore, all
  


20          pipelines require compressor stations
  


21          every 40 to a hundred miles and metering
  


22          stations are usually positioned every ten
  


23          miles, each becoming a new source of
  


24          pollution emitting highly toxic
  


25          carcinogens and neurotoxins along with
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 2          radioactive particles.  As minor sources
  


 3          they are individually permitted and as a
  


 4          result, evade many air quality
  


 5          regulations, but their cumulative effects
  


 6          are many times greater than that of other
  


 7          major sources of emission that would
  


 8          require a Title V permit.  I am going to
  


 9          submit, along with my testimony for the
  


10          record, a report on public health impacts
  


11          of the Minisink Compressor Station
  


12          presented by Wilma Subra, a former EPA
  


13          scientist.  Although the State health
  


14          commissioner, Dr. Shah, is reviewing
  


15          health impacts from the extraction
  


16          process of fracking, he is not addressing
  


17          the health impacts from the
  


18          infrastructure, which is already under
  


19          way in New York State.  This, despite the
  


20          fact that many of those same studies he's
  


21          currently reviewing identify adverse
  


22          health impacts from gas infrastructure.
  


23          In fact, study after study in the past
  


24          year, including the Colorado School of
  


25          Public Health study, identified air
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 2          pollution as one of the greatest public
  


 3          health risks emanating from natural gas
  


 4          development.  An even more recent
  


 5          Colorado study which was looking at fetal
  


 6          health, found a great incidence of birth
  


 7          defects among populations living near all
  


 8          types of natural gas development,
  


 9          including infrastructure.  All the toxins
  


10          identified in this study are currently
  


11          spewing out of the compressor station in
  


12          Minisink.  The study states, quote, Some
  


13          of these pollutants, example, toluene,
  


14          xylenes, and benzene are suspected
  


15          mutagens and are known to cross the
  


16          placenta and expose a developing fetus.
  


17          It goes to add, Currently, there are few
  


18          studies on the effects of air pollution
  


19          or natural gas development on birth
  


20          outcomes.
  


21                Another report released just a few
  


22          days ago by the Weather Channel that
  


23          looks at impacts in the Eagle Ford Shale
  


24          region also identifies emerging evidence
  


25          of health impacts from natural gas







96


  


 1                        HEARING
  


 2          infrastructure, the growing problem of
  


 3          air pollution and the difficulty in
  


 4          monitoring those impacts.  Quote, Plumes
  


 5          of contaminated air move with the wind.
  


 6          Some of the chemicals break down in
  


 7          sunlight or react with other pollutants
  


 8          to form new compounds.  The evidence
  


 9          disappears quickly while the health
  


10          effects may linger, end quote.
  


11                It's alarming that the symptoms
  


12          described in this report on the Eagle
  


13          Ford region, nosebleeds, rashes,
  


14          headaches, nausea and respiratory
  


15          difficulties are the same things that's
  


16          now being experienced in Minisink and the
  


17          same symptoms now reported in
  


18          Pennsylvania.  It's the same chemicals
  


19          and the same symptoms.  We are on the
  


20          precipice of a public health catastrophe
  


21          and you have a legal and moral obligation
  


22          to reject any plan that creates any risks
  


23          to public health and safety anywhere, be
  


24          it New York, be it Pennsylvania, be it
  


25          Ohio, be it anywhere.  Air and wind do
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 2          not recognize any political borders.  The
  


 3          interstate board is actually meaningless
  


 4          to the pollutants that travel in air and
  


 5          wind.  The use of natural gas also
  


 6          presents the issue of volatility in two
  


 7          important ways.  First and foremost, from
  


 8          a public health perspective natural gas
  


 9          is highly volatile.  In the past year
  


10          alone there have been over 30 major
  


11          pipeline incidents.  And in fact, the
  


12          Millennium Pipeline, parent company
  


13          NiSource, was the owner of the recent gas
  


14          pipeline explosion in Sissonville, West
  


15          Virginia that melted a portion of an
  


16          entire higher along with several homes.
  


17          Compressor stations are especially
  


18          volatile because of the large number of
  


19          valves that results in excessive leaking.
  


20          Again, catastrophic for climate change
  


21          with methane in the 20-year term being at
  


22          least 86 times worse than cO2.  And
  


23          please find attached to my testimony a
  


24          list of compressor station explosions and
  


25          fires just within the past year.
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 2                Although our compressor station is
  


 3          relatively new, it connects to the
  


 4          Windsor Compressor Station in Windsor,
  


 5          New York, which has been plagued by
  


 6          problems, and on every such occasion the
  


 7          entire Millennium Pipeline that connects
  


 8          to it, including our compressor station,
  


 9          needs to be emptied releasing large
  


10          quantities of methane and other chemicals
  


11          and hydrocarbons into the atmosphere.  In
  


12          the station's permit they allege only
  


13          four blow down events in a year, but
  


14          because of all the problems, they have
  


15          had four in just two months.  None of
  


16          these are calculated by the State when
  


17          they calculate greenhouse gas emissions,
  


18          or other air quality assessments.
  


19                The volatility is intrinsic to the
  


20          gas and the volatility combined a with
  


21          high-leakage rates and extremely high
  


22          operating pressures in these pipelines
  


23          make all natural gas pipelines an extreme
  


24          public hazard.  And it is critical to
  


25          know these safety concerns are never
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 2          addressed in the federal siting process.
  


 3          There is no binding regulation of
  


 4          agreement that compels FERC to consider
  


 5          issues of safety when siting an
  


 6          interstate facility, and indeed, they
  


 7          don't.  And the Pipeline and Hazardous
  


 8          Material Safety Administration is not
  


 9          involved in the siting process at all.
  


10          In our case, we had a prominent pipeline
  


11          engineer, Richard Kuprewics, testified
  


12          that the Minisink Compressor Station
  


13          would create too much pressure on the
  


14          pipeline creating a high risk of
  


15          explosion greater than San Bruno
  


16          explosion that killed eight people in
  


17          California.
  


18                I remind you that there are 200
  


19          families with hundreds of young children
  


20          living within a half mile of this
  


21          facility.  This testimony was ignored by
  


22          FERC.  When the same information was
  


23          brought to the attention of PHMSA they
  


24          responded that they do not maintain
  


25          records on the maximum allowable pressure
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 2          on the pipeline and deferred to the New
  


 3          York Public Services Commission who then
  


 4          stated they could not locate those
  


 5          records.  This is consistent with a
  


 6          pattern of complete lack of any type of
  


 7          oversight over these facilities.
  


 8                On Christmas Eve and Christmas
  


 9          morning, again, a noxious odor filled the
  


10          air in Minisink.  This was yet again
  


11          unscheduled, undocumented and unaccounted
  


12          for release.  When I contacted our county
  


13          emergency response office to request
  


14          information on what had been released and
  


15          the amount, I was told no report was
  


16          filed, no report was requested, and next
  


17          time just call the company.
  


18                Already some of my neighbors in
  


19          Minisink have been forked to leave their
  


20          homes.  The same is happening in Green
  


21          County, Pennsylvania where a recent
  


22          Chevron well exploded and burned for five
  


23          days.  The same is happening in Dimock,
  


24          Pennsylvania, Windsor, New York, Hancock,
  


25          New York.  People are being forced to
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 2          leave their homes.  Because of fracking
  


 3          we have a new phenomenon in the United
  


 4          States America, internally displaced
  


 5          persons.
  


 6                And finally, there is the issue of
  


 7          greenhouse gas emissions.  Former
  


 8          Governor Paterson signed executive order
  


 9          24 which requires New York State to
  


10          reduce total greenhouse gas emissions by
  


11          80 percent to 1990 levels.  Meeting this
  


12          goal would be entirely impossible with
  


13          further development of natural gas, which
  


14          would again necessitate interstate
  


15          facilities.  Once again, Minisink serves
  


16          as a telling example of what to expect in
  


17          such a scenario.  During the siting
  


18          process of the compressor station the
  


19          community of Minisink was able to
  


20          identify an alternative plan which would
  


21          have still met the company's stated
  


22          needs, yet require the compressor station
  


23          half the size on property already owned
  


24          by the company.  It was rejected by both
  


25          the company and FERC on the false basis
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 2          of costs.  But what would that have meant
  


 3          for New York State?  It would have meant
  


 4          50 percent less greenhouse gas emissions,
  


 5          24 hours a day, seven days a week, 50
  


 6          percent less global warming potential.
  


 7          Yes again, due to federal preemption, New
  


 8          York State has no ability, and in fact
  


 9          desire, to select the project that would
  


10          be more consistent with our stated goal.
  


11                MR. RHODES:  Ms. Malick, I'm sorry,
  


12          your time has been up for some time.
  


13          Would you --
  


14                MS. MALICK:  Who is the next
  


15          speaker?
  


16                MR. RHODES:  I'm sorry?
  


17                MS. MALICK:  Who is the next
  


18          speaker?
  


19                UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I yield my
  


20          time.
  


21                MR. RHODES:  Okay, the next speaker
  


22          yields her time, okay.
  


23                MS. MALICK:  Again, New York State,
  


24          again, has no ability and again, no
  


25          desire to attempt to meet that executive,
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 2          the goal of that executive order because
  


 3          the project was able to receive all the
  


 4          State permits it needed.
  


 5                On the issue of price volatility,
  


 6          the U.S. Energy Information
  


 7          Administration just issued a report a few
  


 8          days ago which said, quote, Natural gas
  


 9          prices will rise in the near term in part
  


10          due to increased demand by industrial
  


11          customers and eventually, demand for
  


12          exports from liquified natural gas, LNG,
  


13          facilities.  The clarity of this
  


14          statement is in sharp contrast to the
  


15          ambiguity on the subject of LNG exports
  


16          on cost analysis in the Draft Energy
  


17          Plan.  Analysts and industry are equally
  


18          clear on this forecast as well.  Again,
  


19          Minisink serves as a telling example.
  


20          Millennium's parent company, NiSource,
  


21          along with the shipper, Mitsui
  


22          Corporation, have both announced publicly
  


23          to their shareholders that they will soon
  


24          have access to international markets
  


25          though export facilities.
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 2                So lest you fool yourself into
  


 3          believing you can regulate our state out
  


 4          of this enormous quagmire or some tool
  


 5          will solve the problems created by
  


 6          natural gas, I'm here to tell you that no
  


 7          such animal exists.  Regulations are
  


 8          meaningless because the State could never
  


 9          have the manpower to enforce them, given
  


10          the thousands of miles of pipelines.
  


11          State-of-art tools, such as smart pigs
  


12          have proved remedial at best.  I submit
  


13          here a recent article headlined "Pipeline
  


14          leak detection still doesn't work," and
  


15          we know this because they are constantly
  


16          picking the pipeline in Minisink trying
  


17          to find the faulty wells that they buried
  


18          a few years ago and they have not been
  


19          able to do that.  Neither the technology
  


20          nor the regulations did defy the laws of
  


21          physics and chemistry and for that matter
  


22          biology.  These problems are intrinsic to
  


23          the gas through its complete life cycle.
  


24                My community, Minisink, is in many
  


25          ways the paper upon which this plan is
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 2          being written.  Initiative 8 calls for
  


 3          quote, Accelerate, securing of critical
  


 4          infrastructure to insure the safety,
  


 5          security and reliability of an
  


 6          increasingly complex and interconnected
  


 7          energy system including transportation,
  


 8          liquid fuels, electricity and natural gas
  


 9          infrastructure, end quote.  All of this
  


10          is already converging upon my once
  


11          pristine community in anticipation of
  


12          this plan, with now an imminent gas-fired
  


13          power plant hoping to connect to the
  


14          compressor station by yet another
  


15          unscrupulous company, Competitive Power
  


16          Ventures.  All this in a community which
  


17          provides much of the food and dairy
  


18          products consumed by NYS.  And you know,
  


19          they refer to us in the permitting
  


20          process as host communities, and I'm here
  


21          to tell you we are not host communities.
  


22          We are communities being held hostage.
  


23          This is neither safe, secure nor
  


24          reliable, but we do have an alternative
  


25          path forward.  Luckily, we're not in a
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 2          situation where we must necessarily
  


 3          assume those risks.  Luckily, renewables
  


 4          as documented in the Jacobson study
  


 5          reference many times today, along with
  


 6          efficiency and conservation programs can
  


 7          meet all of our energy needs.  It's a
  


 8          false perception.  There's more than
  


 9          enough capacity in the system.  We have a
  


10          distribution problem, we don't have a
  


11          capacity problem, and rather than creat a
  


12          new unnecessary capacity to give a market
  


13          to fracking companies in Pennsylvania who
  


14          have no market, we ought to be converting
  


15          the energy that we have today into
  


16          renewables, which would not endanger
  


17          public health and safety, and luckily, we
  


18          do not need to have sacrifice zones such
  


19          as Minisink.  A policy which merely
  


20          trades oil, coal or nuclear for natural
  


21          gas, is merely trading poisons and
  


22          trading victims.  It's not a policy or a
  


23          plan.  It's merely a pretext and
  


24          posturing.  Thank you.
  


25                MR. RHODES:  Thank you.  Just a
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 2          process comment.  The reason for the time
  


 3          limit is that we keep getting requests to
  


 4          speak, they keep coming in, and as a
  


 5          courtesy to all of the people who have
  


 6          shown up, I will try to abide by the
  


 7          proposition that if you have more to say
  


 8          we can resume at the end but would like
  


 9          to go through the list out of respect for
  


10          the people that keep submitting their
  


11          names.
  


12                (Recess.)
  


13                MR. RHODES:  Can we have Barbara
  


14          Harris?  Everybody please take your seat
  


15          or find a way to pay attention to our
  


16          resuming speaker.
  


17                MS. HARRIS:  As you'll see I
  


18          crossed out much of my talk because it's
  


19          been said and if you haven't heard it
  


20          yet --
  


21                MR. RHODES:  Excuse me, please,
  


22          it's important that we have one
  


23          conversation, so out of respect for Ms.
  


24          Harass, please.
  


25                MS. HARRIS:  My name is Barbara
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 2          Harris and I'm a member of a grassroots
  


 3          organization as many of us are.  It's
  


 4          called the Alliance for a Green Economy,
  


 5          New York City.  There's also an Alliance
  


 6          for a Green Economy in New York State,
  


 7          and our short name is AGREE, and I think
  


 8          in this room we have many, many groups,
  


 9          all many grassroots, that agree with us
  


10          and have given incredibly passionate and
  


11          educational information to you, and I am
  


12          not the technical person to have reviewed
  


13          your documents.  One of our members, Bob
  


14          Alpert, spoke yesterday in Brooklyn so
  


15          his remarks are on the record, but I just
  


16          wanted to talk about my part here.
  


17                AGREE is a local coalition
  


18          promoting a citywide transition to
  


19          renewable energy with sustainable energy
  


20          sources.  We support the closure of
  


21          Indian Point for environmental, safety
  


22          and public health reasons, and I'll give
  


23          away my age, but I was up in Cortland in
  


24          Buchanan with Pete Seeger 40 years ago,
  


25          we said, Don't build Indian Point here,
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 2          it's the least place one could think of
  


 3          putting up a nuclear plant.  It's not
  


 4          what we need.  It's not what the people
  


 5          want.  We should still be singing but
  


 6          fortunately we are here we're here --
  


 7          thank you -- to speak out to close down
  


 8          Indian Point, which is our main focus.
  


 9                Earlier there was an incident, sort
  


10          of a little incident in the room where
  


11          the microphones didn't work.  That was
  


12          simply rectified by getting the right
  


13          technical person and plugging a few
  


14          things in.  Yesterday, from the freedom
  


15          tower, icicles fell, not expected, and it
  


16          was very dangerous and they closed the
  


17          streets and Wall Street and they closed
  


18          streets to the subway.  They quickly put
  


19          up scaffolding so people wouldn't be
  


20          hurt, and it was chaos.  Okay, those were
  


21          incidences that were taken care of.
  


22          Indian Point is old, it's worn out, it's
  


23          leaky, it's on a fault, it's ready to go,
  


24          its license is up.  Why was its license
  


25          extended?  If you're driving a car and
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 2          your license is up you're not driving a
  


 3          car.  If you even have one light out on a
  


 4          car you're going to get a violation.
  


 5          Indian Point is a violation.  It's
  


 6          against the best interests of any of our
  


 7          citizens.  There's no evacuation plan,
  


 8          it's all been said.  They talked about
  


 9          already the Jacobson plan, we have enough
  


10          energy to 2020, there are many resources
  


11          and renewables and alternatives.  People
  


12          are looking at, we've been talking about
  


13          renewables forever, and now's the time.
  


14          It's actually the time.  You see world
  


15          conditions, you see what's happening, you
  


16          see our weather and you see an old plant,
  


17          Indian Point whose time has come, and we
  


18          don't want to wait anymore.  We're
  


19          relying on you, we're relying on Governor
  


20          Cuomo, and I think his heart's there.  He
  


21          just needs to put his power there to say
  


22          Entergy should be over.  They're closing
  


23          down in other areas.  They should not be
  


24          here.  We have to think of the people's
  


25          needs before corporate needs and people's
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 2          concerns, and our concerns.
  


 3                I have the gray hair, as others in
  


 4          the room.  We're thinking about the next
  


 5          generation and our kids and if we don't
  


 6          do it when will it get done?  It has to
  


 7          get done.  We have to close down Indian
  


 8          Point.  Replacement power is available,
  


 9          alternatives.  We have so many friends:
  


10          we have wind, we have air, we have water,
  


11          and we have geothermal.  Actually, this
  


12          has been an educational experience for
  


13          me.  I'm a retired educator and I can't
  


14          tell you how much I've learned today from
  


15          the other speakers.  They've got it down.
  


16          This state is concerned.  How many groups
  


17          are there?  How many concerns are there?
  


18          You know, I'm so used to being a teacher
  


19          I'm expecting someone to respond and
  


20          raise his or her hand.  That's what we
  


21          need, that response.  We need that
  


22          positive response that you hear us, that
  


23          you're ready to go, and you have the
  


24          resources.  I live in New York City.  I
  


25          was born in the Bronx, raised in the
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 2          Bronx, I'm educated until the City, I
  


 3          live here now.  It's a city that can be
  


 4          green and it's a city ready for
  


 5          renewables and they are there in our
  


 6          power and our money and our finances and
  


 7          in our hearts to make that happen.  So
  


 8          Alliance For a Green Economy urges you,
  


 9          the State, the government; those in
  


10          power, those who have say so, those who
  


11          have the power of the pen and the
  


12          intellect to shut down Indian Point now
  


13          and work for renewables, let's get them
  


14          chucking.  They'll create more jobs, more
  


15          money.  They'll create a good spirit and
  


16          a clean environment and what we must do
  


17          for our next generations.  Thank you very
  


18          much.
  


19                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


20                Philip Misegaas, followed by David
  


21          Anderson and believe me, we are hearing
  


22          you, thank you.
  


23                Mr. Anderson is passing.
  


24                Philip Misegaas.
  


25                MR. MISEGAAS:  My name is Philip
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 2          Misegaas director of the Hudson River
  


 3          Program at Riverkeeper.  Riverkeeper's
  


 4          been working for over 40 years to help to
  


 5          restore the Hudson.  We've been working
  


 6          for over 40 years to protect and restore
  


 7          the Hudson River and also to protect the
  


 8          drinking water supply for over 9 million
  


 9          New York City resident.  And I have a few
  


10          comments.  In the interest of time we
  


11          will be filing written comments as well.
  


12                To begin with, the Plan's
  


13          greenhouse plan reduction targets are a
  


14          good start, but New York must establish a
  


15          2018 target to get on the path to meeting
  


16          the 80 2050 goal.  New York should
  


17          establish near and midterm targets to
  


18          help achieve a year over year economy
  


19          wide greenhouse gas reductions to meet
  


20          Governor Cuomo's long-term goals.  The
  


21          2018 target of 14 percent reduction from
  


22          2011 levels and 20 percent reduction by
  


23          2021 would insure the State is on the
  


24          appropriate path to comply with long-term
  


25          emissions reduction goals.
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 2                In addition, the term carbon should
  


 3          be clarified in the Energy Plan and
  


 4          referred to as cO2 equivalent.  Other
  


 5          greenhouse gases such as methane, which
  


 6          has been mentioned prominently here
  


 7          today, are more potent than cO2 and
  


 8          science has illustrated that a
  


 9          comprehensive approach greenhouse gas
  


10          reductions is necessary to mitigate
  


11          climate change.  Extending and expanding
  


12          the State's renewable energy and
  


13          energy-efficiency programs is critical to
  


14          meeting greenhouse gas targets.  The
  


15          Draft Plan includes a state commitment to
  


16          2020 to energy efficient programs which
  


17          are currently set to expire 2015.  All
  


18          this time is essential to provide certain
  


19          commitment for utilities and others.
  


20          This commitment must be coupled with
  


21          targets and dollar budgets to capture all
  


22          cost-effective energy efficiency across
  


23          sectors, and that includes Con Edison
  


24          that mentioned the great cost
  


25          effectiveness of energy efficiency.
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 2                In addition, the final plan must
  


 3          scale up renewable energy.  The Draft
  


 4          Plan includes a draft commitment to 2025
  


 5          to a renewable energy portfolio.  The
  


 6          Plan should direct the PSC, the Public
  


 7          Service Commission, to issue an order by
  


 8          the year-end 2014 that targets meeting
  


 9          half of the State's electricity demand
  


10          with renewable energy by 2025.
  


11                Moving onto to hydrofracking and
  


12          natural gas, the Plan should not endorse
  


13          expanding access to natural gas but
  


14          should promote an aggressive transition
  


15          to renewable energy sources to reduce
  


16          reliance on fossil fuels.  Expanding the
  


17          use of natural gas puts communities at
  


18          risk.  Our Riverkeeper supports New
  


19          York's efforts to reduce the use of
  


20          petroleum products for heating buildings.
  


21          We cannot support replacing those
  


22          products with natural gas.  Recent
  


23          increases in U.S. production of natural
  


24          gas have been made possible through the
  


25          use of hydrofracking which has been
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 2          discussed prominently here today and
  


 3          which we all know can be devastating for
  


 4          communities.  Fracking can cause
  


 5          emissions of a number of harmful
  


 6          pollutants, including volatile organic
  


 7          compounds and carcinogens, and as our
  


 8          neighbors in Pennsylvania have seen,
  


 9          fracking carries the risk of brown ground
  


10          and water contamination from construction
  


11          spills and improper waste water disposal.
  


12          Natural gas is not a clean fuel.  Methane
  


13          emissions associated with natural gas
  


14          extraction production, processing,
  


15          transport and infrastructure contribute
  


16          to climate change.  These methane
  


17          emissions can undercut the climate and
  


18          reduction of cO2 from the use of natural
  


19          gas because methane is at least 72 times
  


20          more potent as a greenhouse gas than cO2
  


21          over a 20 year-period.  A number of
  


22          resent studies shown and have found that
  


23          the amount methane currently emitted into
  


24          the atmosphere from the natural gas
  


25          supply change has been consistently
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 2          underestimated by regulators and high
  


 3          enough in combination with GHC emissions
  


 4          from other sectors to push us towards the
  


 5          climate's tipping point in the next 20 or
  


 6          30 years.
  


 7                Finally, on the natural gas issue,
  


 8          increasing use of natural gas can delay
  


 9          transition to renewable resources giving
  


10          the massive infrastructure investments
  


11          that are beginning to happen, they should
  


12          be diverted to renewables and not wasted
  


13          on natural gas.
  


14                Finally, I want to make a comment
  


15          about Indian Point.  I think I'm doing
  


16          okay on time.
  


17                UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  About a
  


18          half-a-minute.
  


19                MR. MISEGAAS:  Half-a-minute, okay,
  


20          that's all I need.
  


21                Riverkeeper is actively opposing
  


22          the relicensing of Indian Point, support
  


23          the State's efforts in that regard, and I
  


24          think it's important to note that Indian
  


25          Point has already been denied a couple of
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 2          key federal permits from the State of New
  


 3          York that they would need to get
  


 4          relicensed.  So while we appreciate that
  


 5          Energy Plan considers the potential
  


 6          closing of Indian Point, we think it
  


 7          should go a step forward and actively
  


 8          clarify that the plant is likely to close
  


 9          in the near future, it will not get the
  


10          permits it needs and as the Public
  


11          Service Commission process is under way
  


12          and there are plans under way and well
  


13          under way to replacing Indian Point's
  


14          power in time and affordably the Energy
  


15          Plan should reflect that reality.  Thank
  


16          you.
  


17                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


18          Dr. Susan Spieler, followed by Beth
  


19          Ackerman.
  


20                DR. SPIELER:  Thank you for the
  


21          opportunity to speak with you.  I'm here
  


22          in many capacities.  One is that I feel
  


23          like most everybody who has spoken here
  


24          today has spoken for me.  The only part
  


25          of what was said is that I don't agree
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 2          with renewing Indian Point because I
  


 3          think it's way too dangerous for all of
  


 4          us in New York City and New York State
  


 5          and the country.  We don't need another
  


 6          Fukushima closer to home.
  


 7                Thank you.  So I'm a clinical
  


 8          psychologist in Manhattan on the upper
  


 9          west side and resident of Manhattan on
  


10          the upper west side, so I'm going to
  


11          speak in my capacity as a clinical
  


12          psychologist.  You might ask yourself,
  


13          what does this have to do with the
  


14          purpose of today's event?  Well, as a
  


15          psychologist I volunteer sometimes with
  


16          the New York City Medical Reserve Corps
  


17          when there's a crisis and everybody knows
  


18          Super Storm Sandy was a major crisis in
  


19          New York.  I went and spent time in an
  


20          energy shelter that was created after
  


21          that event and what I learned was very
  


22          profound.  The people who are most
  


23          affected by Super Storm Sandy in an
  


24          immediate sense were people who were
  


25          poor, who were on the edge already
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 2          functioning and I want to speak to my
  


 3          memory of an experience with a particular
  


 4          family, but there were many I could be
  


 5          speaking about today.
  


 6                This shelter was in a very large
  


 7          public school.  It was only open for the
  


 8          weekend, so people were flooding in from
  


 9          all over New York, Queens, Long Island.
  


10          I don't know how they got there, but they
  


11          were there, and there were many who were
  


12          already homeless before the storm, but
  


13          then there were the people who were given
  


14          shelter in other homeless shelters and I
  


15          want to speak about the family, a single
  


16          mom with two daughters.  She had lost her
  


17          job and therefore they had wound up in a
  


18          shelter in Chinatown.  So picture
  


19          children uprooted from Queens moving to
  


20          Chinatown before the hurricane.  So after
  


21          the hurricane their shelter in Chinatown
  


22          was evacuated to the shelter I volunteer
  


23          at in Manhattan.  They wanted -- the
  


24          children wanted to know where they were
  


25          going the next day.  They already
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 2          understood the instability of their lives
  


 3          and might not know where they were going
  


 4          the next day.  They were traumatized
  


 5          because of several layers of climate
  


 6          change, because as we all know, Hurricane
  


 7          Sandy was related to climate change.
  


 8          Nine-try seven percent of the scientists
  


 9          agree climate change is real.  We already
  


10          know that.  So we're not even touching on
  


11          the trauma or the cost of that on the
  


12          children and the adults who are uprooted
  


13          and the poor are uprooted first.  They
  


14          don't have the connections that upper-
  


15          and middle-class people often do.  I know
  


16          that people who lived in nicer places
  


17          than these shelters and they had people
  


18          they could stay with.  But they couldn't.
  


19          It was opened temporarily.  I want to
  


20          know what happened to these people.  They
  


21          are probably not stable.
  


22                The girl I spoke to in that family
  


23          was in high school.  She had come from
  


24          Queens, started school late in Chinatown
  


25          and now again was uprooted.  She did not
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 2          know what they where she would be.  She
  


 3          didn't know what she should tell here
  


 4          peers starting in a new school and not
  


 5          wanting to tell anybody she was homeless.
  


 6          This is a shameful thing to have to
  


 7          report to your peers in high school, as
  


 8          we all know.  So there's a whole story
  


 9          that is yet to be told about the mental
  


10          health hazards of all these crises and we
  


11          need stability.  We need New York State
  


12          to lead in renewables so we do not have
  


13          accidents, hurricanes, and explosions
  


14          from trains that are parked outside.
  


15          I've seen photographs of trains carrying
  


16          liquid natural gas.  They're just sitting
  


17          there in Albany waiting to be exploded.
  


18          I don't understand how New York State can
  


19          possibly tolerate this, and I just want
  


20          to make a shout-out again to Sane energy
  


21          project, I don't know if they're here
  


22          anymore.  They were here before.  They're
  


23          a wonderful group that's part of a group
  


24          that I'm a member of which is called the
  


25          New York City Grassroots Alliance which
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 2          is an alliance of more than 30
  


 3          environmental and climate change
  


 4          nonprofits that are working
  


 5          collaboratively.  When do you ever see
  


 6          collaboration between so many groups, to
  


 7          do beautiful work in New York City and to
  


 8          connect with other groups outside of New
  


 9          York?
  


10                Thank you for your time, thank you.
  


11                MR. RHODES:  Thank you.
  


12                Beth Ackerman, followed by Fay
  


13          Muir.
  


14                MS. ACKERMAN:  Hi, this must be the
  


15          softer end of the story here.  My talk
  


16          will be somewhat reminiscent of yours,
  


17          Susan.  Beloved earth.  Beloved.  When
  


18          you stop to think about it, we all love
  


19          the Earth, yet a gas intensive Energy
  


20          Plan is shortsighted benefitting gas
  


21          companies and lobbyists, yet not
  


22          benefitting life, Earth, children,
  


23          grandchildren.
  


24                I represent, with my friend,
  


25          Rachelle Bradt, Riverside Church's
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 2          grassroots committee on climate change.
  


 3          And we are called Beloved Earth.  Our
  


 4          church's tradition believes that we, as
  


 5          humans, are charged with being the
  


 6          caretakers of the planet.  And this is
  


 7          why our congregation voted overwhelmingly
  


 8          two months ago to support a total ban on
  


 9          fracking in New York State.  We believe,
  


10          or at least I do, that miraculous things
  


11          can happen.  In this case it would not
  


12          only be sensible but miraculous when
  


13          Governor Cuomo listens to the people of
  


14          this great state and hears that his
  


15          political legacy is connected to his
  


16          action on this Energy Plan.
  


17                I grew up summers in the Finger
  


18          Lakes and when I look out on that
  


19          precious resource, the giver of life,
  


20          water, I know, yes, we are all connected
  


21          and that includes watching and acting and
  


22          speaking with love.  To turn away as
  


23          quickly as possible from fossil fuels.  I
  


24          can see a future when we all, together
  


25          with the Energy Planning Board, quickly,
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 2          without wasting another life-giving
  


 3          moment, transition to renewable energy.
  


 4          In the words of another great
  


 5          American-borne faith tradition, the
  


 6          Hopis, we are the ones we've been waiting
  


 7          for.
  


 8                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 9                Fay Muir, followed by Helen
  


10          Bentley.
  


11                MS. MUIR:  Good afternoon, I'm here
  


12          representing my great-grandson.  His name
  


13          is Jaethan.  He turns seven months this
  


14          week.  I'm skipping the technicalities OF
  


15          THIS Energy Plan to ask how much longer
  


16          can we survive the self-serving
  


17          cost-benefit insanity of the fossil fuel
  


18          industry and its apologies.  I'm going to
  


19          quote from my venerable colleague, David
  


20          Ferguson, who cannot be here today.  As a
  


21          general matter truth reads easily.
  


22          Fracking's tortured logic makes no
  


23          attempt to account for the cost of
  


24          externalities that extractive industries
  


25          universally assume as a perennial
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 2          entitlement; the huge cost of health
  


 3          care, suffering and lost productivity;
  


 4          the vast loss in perpetuity of such
  


 5          essential and irreplaceable resources as
  


 6          water; the cost of ruined communities
  


 7          boomed until they bust; the enormous cost
  


 8          of capital invested in disruptive,
  


 9          soon-to-be obsolete infrastructure.
  


10          Resources desperately needed to fund
  


11          existing and technologies to prevent such
  


12          devastation as we still can from global
  


13          warning.  The incalculable cost of
  


14          continuing to cannibalize the plant,
  


15          scrapping the bottom of the fossil fuel
  


16          barrel with increasing dangerous and
  


17          costly technologies to aggrandize the few
  


18          at the expenses of the many, devouring
  


19          the planet that sustains us, self-serving
  


20          like a cancer that will in the end
  


21          consume the very society that supports
  


22          it.  Evidently, the only technology the
  


23          industry trusts is that which boosts its
  


24          bottom line.
  


25                Fracking's treatise hardly warrants
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 2          even the thin veneer of objectivity,
  


 3          decrying subsidies for renewables while
  


 4          soft peddling the horrendous subsidies
  


 5          enjoyed by oil and gas, the wealthiest
  


 6          industry the world has ever seen, and
  


 7          citing problems with intermittent
  


 8          renewables, such as storage, as if they
  


 9          were insurmountable for a society that
  


10          cracked the atom and got to the moon and
  


11          back.  Nowhere is there ever mentioned
  


12          the critical dire contribution of methane
  


13          to global warning or such ancillary costs
  


14          as the environmental degradation of the
  


15          mining and transportation of whole hills
  


16          of silica sand for fracking, nor the
  


17          continued devastation of exploding
  


18          trains.  Somehow they can't explain why
  


19          the trains explode.  I wouldn't be
  


20          surprised if it's the chemical in the
  


21          fracked crude, pipeline spills and the
  


22          poisoning of West Virginia, thank you,
  


23          David.
  


24                In concluding, please consider
  


25          these truths to remain self-evident.  Our
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 2          future depends on the widespread
  


 3          development of renewable energy.  Your
  


 4          plans for our energy future is severely
  


 5          lacking in this regard and needs further
  


 6          insight to change the dynamics to favor
  


 7          renewable energy in a comprehensive
  


 8          manner which gives the sustainability
  


 9          this state needs.  So I end also with the
  


10          question, Will you be culpable in fossil
  


11          fuel abomination to foster greed, or will
  


12          you be part of the solution?  Our state's
  


13          future depends on your choice.
  


14                MR. RHODES:  Helen Bentley,
  


15          followed by Francisco Gomez.
  


16                Francisco Gomez, would you go now?
  


17          If Helen Bentley reappears she can go
  


18          after.
  


19                MR. GOMEZ:  Hello, you guys can
  


20          hear me?  This is actually my first time
  


21          speaking.  My name is Francisco Gomez.
  


22          I'm a student at Birmingham Community
  


23          College and after-school teacher's
  


24          assistant in the elementary school.
  


25                I came all the way from the south
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 2          Bronx today to ask you to ban fracking.
  


 3          I traveled all the way to John Jay
  


 4          because I greatly understand that the
  


 5          environment is at stake.  It's an
  


 6          environment that we all share.  In those
  


 7          states who have nurtured the energy boom,
  


 8          which are Pennsylvania, Ohio, West
  


 9          Virginia and Texas has had hundreds and
  


10          hundreds of complaints about well-water
  


11          contaminations.  Oil, gas drilling and
  


12          pollution was confirmed in numbers of
  


13          them.
  


14                I'm here personally to emphasize
  


15          that, like everybody else here, I like
  


16          drinking water.  I don't want my water
  


17          contaminated because I kind of
  


18          biologically need it as well.  To those
  


19          who might not know about what fracking
  


20          can do, fracking can make water
  


21          flammable.  I also don't like flammable
  


22          water.  I'm not going to be funny, to be
  


23          honest.  A lot of consumption is based on
  


24          water, such as tea and coffee.  I see you
  


25          guys drinking coffee, you guys drinking
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 2          water.  I understand people like their
  


 3          local Starbucks coffee hot, but I don't
  


 4          think they like their coffee to be on
  


 5          fire.
  


 6                Another point I want to make is,
  


 7          let's say the State does let fracking
  


 8          proceed and a disaster happens, just like
  


 9          West Virginia, who is going to pay to
  


10          clean it up?  Is it going to be the oil
  


11          companies who I believe are getting tax
  


12          breaks from all this profit or the
  


13          taxpayers which is everybody in this
  


14          room?
  


15                Um, I would like to end my speech
  


16          with a quote from Margaret Mead.  She
  


17          quotes, We won't have a society if we
  


18          destroy the environment.  Thank you very
  


19          much.
  


20                MR. RHODES:  So I believe Frank
  


21          Rimler had to leave, or he's here?  Josh
  


22          Cole followed by Gusti Bogok.
  


23                MR. COLE:  My name is Josh Cole.
  


24          I'm here to testify on behalf of New York
  


25          State Senator Brad Hoylman.  He could not
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 2          make it, so I want to welcome everyone to
  


 3          the 27th Senate District which Senator
  


 4          Hoylman represents.
  


 5                I want to thank the board for the
  


 6          opportunity to submit testimony here
  


 7          today and for the board's hard work in
  


 8          developing this plan, given the
  


 9          complexity of New York State's unique
  


10          energy needs and resources.
  


11                I would also like to thank the
  


12          board for adhering to the commitment
  


13          previously set by the State to reduce
  


14          greenhouse gases up to 80 percent 2050.
  


15          The Plan contains valuable tools, such as
  


16          the extension of the Renewable Portfolio
  


17          Standard, and the Energy Efficiency
  


18          Portfolio Standard, for meeting that 80
  


19          percent reduction goal.
  


20                These mechanisms represent
  


21          environmentally progressive policy at its
  


22          best, allowing for the public sector to
  


23          encourage and guide the private sector
  


24          toward the common good.
  


25                This plan is a first step in
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 2          establishing a path to reducing our
  


 3          reliance on some of the more conventional
  


 4          fossil fuels which contribute to climate
  


 5          change, and establishes contingencies for
  


 6          the shuttering of the Indian Point power
  


 7          plant.  This operation presents
  


 8          well-known risks to residents throughout
  


 9          New York State, including the Senator's
  


10          constituents here in Manhattan.
  


11                That being said, the Senator is
  


12          concerned by the Plan's reliance on the
  


13          expanded use of natural gas, especially
  


14          in order to compensate for the reductions
  


15          of other fuels and the potential
  


16          reduction of nuclear power production.
  


17                While consumption of natural gas
  


18          may offer lower levels of carbon dioxide
  


19          emissions over more widely used fossil
  


20          fuels such as coal and oil, the fact
  


21          remains that natural gas is a fossil fuel
  


22          itself, and its use also contributes to
  


23          the greenhouse gas emissions which drive
  


24          climate change.  Methane, the primary
  


25          component of natural gas, is emitted into
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 2          the air during the extraction process.
  


 3          According to the Intergovernmental Panel
  


 4          on Climate Change, methane is 34 times
  


 5          more effective in trapping heat in our
  


 6          atmosphere over a 100-year period than is
  


 7          carbon dioxide.  Even more alarming, a
  


 8          recent study by researchers at Harvard
  


 9          University has found that the level of
  


10          atmospheric methane is substantially
  


11          higher than previously believed.  Given
  


12          these statistics, it is hard to see how
  


13          natural gas represents a more responsible
  


14          choice for empowering our state.  There
  


15          are also emerging concerns regarding the
  


16          release of radon through the use of
  


17          natural gas.  We believe we should have
  


18          answers about the quantity and safety of
  


19          radon being emitted before we further our
  


20          reliance on the use of natural gas.
  


21                Switching from a harmful energy
  


22          source to a seemingly less harmful
  


23          source, especially when more responsible
  


24          energy options are available, is bad
  


25          long-term policy.  Furthermore, given the
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 2          finite supply of natural gas, the
  


 3          potential for unpredictable variations in
  


 4          consumer prices, and the cost and scale
  


 5          of the additional infrastructure needed
  


 6          to deliver and use such fuel, increasing
  


 7          our reliance on natural gas would seem to
  


 8          be a shortsighted investment.
  


 9                All of this is, of course, in
  


10          addition to the externalities of the
  


11          natural gas extraction process, which
  


12          reeks its own havoc on the environment
  


13          destroying landscapes, tainting water
  


14          supplies, and contributing to
  


15          asthma-inducing ozone, just to name a
  


16          few.  While the DEC has studied the
  


17          catastrophes associated with natural gas
  


18          drilling in Pennsylvania and around the
  


19          nation, the agency has not developed a
  


20          regulatory framework to insure New York
  


21          will not suffer a similar fate.  As such,
  


22          Senator Hoylman is a staunch opponent of
  


23          permitting hydraulic fracturing, and is a
  


24          cosponsor of legislation to prohibit
  


25          fracking anywhere in New York State.  We
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 2          owe it to the generation of tomorrow to
  


 3          be more vigilant with our energy choices
  


 4          today.
  


 5                In 1931, well before our current
  


 6          did he pay the on fossil fuels, Thomas
  


 7          Edison likened our reliance on
  


 8          non-renewable energy sources to chopping
  


 9          down the fence around our house for fuel,
  


10          when we should be using nature's
  


11          inexhaustible sources of energy:  sun,
  


12          wind and tied.  More than 80 years later,
  


13          in light of our scientific understanding
  


14          of how our energy consumption affects the
  


15          planet, his words are especially
  


16          prescient.  We appreciate the New York
  


17          State Energy Planning Board being
  


18          judicious in our current policy so that
  


19          80 years from now we will not have
  


20          destroyed our house altogether.
  


21          Therefore, we urge the board to explore
  


22          opportunities to harness new energy
  


23          technologies and further reduce our
  


24          reliance on fossil fuels, including
  


25          natural gas.
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 2                Thank you very much for your time
  


 3          and for your consideration of our
  


 4          comments.
  


 5                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 6          Before you get started, please come up.
  


 7          There was a question raised earlier and
  


 8          there will be up on the website for you
  


 9          in the room, asking about the membership
  


10          of the Energy Planning Board, in
  


11          particular the public members.  They are
  


12          Assemblywoman Amy Paulin appointed by the
  


13          assembly.  The Senate appointed Tom
  


14          Coakley, who is a retired professor at
  


15          St. Lawrence University, and the Governor
  


16          appointed James Winebrake who is at RIT,
  


17          those members and the agency members are
  


18          all on the website.  Thank you.
  


19                Back to you, thank you.
  


20                MS. BOGOK:  Thank you, John, and
  


21          thank you for getting my name right.
  


22                So my name is Gusti Bogok, I'm the
  


23          co-chair of the Sierra Club Atlantic
  


24          Chapter Gas Drilling Task Force.  I also
  


25          am affiliated with several local
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 2          environmental groups in New York City
  


 3          including Sane Energy Project, and thank
  


 4          you for this opportunity to speak.
  


 5                New York's Energy Plan has the
  


 6          potential to be a road map for stemming
  


 7          the tide of climate chaos, cleaning up
  


 8          harmful pollution and making New York a
  


 9          national leader in renewable energy.  But
  


10          Governor Cuomo's plan must go further.
  


11                To protect families from the
  


12          escalating effects of climate destruction
  


13          the Plan must set a path to immediately
  


14          phase-out outmoded, dirty and dangerous
  


15          fuels, such as coal, gas and nuclear, and
  


16          shift towards clean renewable energy
  


17          solutions of the future.
  


18                If New York were truly serious
  


19          about combatting climate change it would
  


20          not attempt to frack and burn its way to
  


21          a stable climate.  Rather, New York would
  


22          commit to retiring dirty, aging and
  


23          uneconomical coal and oil plants and move
  


24          away from gas when replacing highly
  


25          polluting fossil fuel energy generation.
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 2          Converting dirty coal and oil plants will
  


 3          do nothing to reduce the State's carbon
  


 4          footprint when the life cycle greenhouse
  


 5          gas footprint of shale gas is considered.
  


 6          Emissions from methane are a hundred
  


 7          times more potent than from coal or
  


 8          diesel oil within the first 20 years.
  


 9                The benefits of utility scale
  


10          efficiencies resulting from proposed grid
  


11          modernization in the Governor's Energy
  


12          Highway Initiative have been entirely
  


13          overlooked in the Energy Plan itself.
  


14          Upgrading the grid with new technologies
  


15          will save energy and eliminate the need
  


16          to refurbish aging fossil fuel power
  


17          plants or build new ones.
  


18                However, FERC has authorized
  


19          electricity surcharges on all ratepayers
  


20          through the creation of a new Capacity
  


21          Zone, a financial construct designed to
  


22          support existing power plants and fossil
  


23          fuel industries producing frack gas.
  


24          Capacity Zone surcharges will increase
  


25          electricity rates far above current rates
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 2          and market conditions.  Requiring a
  


 3          utility to purchase from the Capacity
  


 4          Zone makes a failed plant artificially
  


 5          profitable and shifts the financial
  


 6          burden to ratepayers, effectively
  


 7          quashing long overdue renewable energy
  


 8          initiatives.  Therefore, FERC's Capacity
  


 9          Zone ratepayer surcharges must be
  


10          scrapped and the governor's Energy
  


11          Highway Initiative robustly implemented.
  


12                Also, New York must halt further
  


13          investments in gas infrastructure such as
  


14          pipelines, compressor stations and LNG
  


15          storage and export facilities and abandon
  


16          the risky transport of crude and tar
  


17          sands oil by rail and barge.  We've been
  


18          calling some of these trains bomb trains
  


19          which, indeed they are, or the
  


20          exportation of huge volumes of precious
  


21          water supplies to enable fracking in
  


22          Pennsylvania.  Trading gas for water is
  


23          foolhardy and these kinds of projects
  


24          pose grave risks to the health,
  


25          livelihoods and vital resources of
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 2          adjacent communities.
  


 3                Building out shale gas
  


 4          infrastructure in New York State will
  


 5          lock-in reliance on finite fossil fuels
  


 6          for decades to come, and thwart
  


 7          opportunities to scale-up renewable
  


 8          energy in time to avoid runaway climate
  


 9          change.  Ratepayers will be subject to
  


10          fluctuating prices and New York's
  


11          communities burdened with the devastating
  


12          effects and clean-up costs of hydraulic
  


13          fracturing.
  


14                So I have one minute remaining.
  


15          I'm going to skip a lot of this, but
  


16          focus on something that a lot of people
  


17          have overlooked which is the energy
  


18          reduction.  We have to get serious about
  


19          the energy reduction program.  Energy
  


20          reductions programs are the most
  


21          cost-efficient way to address energy
  


22          supply issues and New York must implement
  


23          programs to reduce consumption,
  


24          especially those that reduce energy
  


25          embedded in the products we consume.







141


  


 1                        HEARING
  


 2          Embedded energy accounts for a whopping
  


 3          40 percent of the energy we use.  So the
  


 4          Plan must counteract wasteful behavior in
  


 5          the public and private sectors and expand
  


 6          the categories within the Extended
  


 7          Producer Responsibility policy to mandate
  


 8          a quote, Design for recovery, law on all
  


 9          products.  To quote DEC's own Beyond
  


10          Waste Plan, New York State's Beyond Waste
  


11          Plan sets forth a new approach for New
  


12          York State focusing on end-of-the-pipe
  


13          waste management techniques to looking
  


14          upstream and more comprehensively at how
  


15          materials that would otherwise become
  


16          waste can be more sustainably managed
  


17          through the State's economy.  To this
  


18          end, the Energy Plan must give emphasis
  


19          and teeth to New York's Beyond Waste
  


20          Plan.  Finally, New York should electrify
  


21          its vehicle fleet so that reductions in
  


22          power sector carbon emissions will be
  


23          compounded in the transportation sector,
  


24          to help stabilize the climate and chart
  


25          New York State well on course toward a
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 2          sustainable, renewable energy future.
  


 3                MR. RHODES:  John Miglietta,
  


 4          followed by Mav Moorhead.  Is Mav
  


 5          Moorhead here?
  


 6                MS. MOORHEAD:  I am.
  


 7                MR. RHODES:  Thank you.
  


 8                MS. MOORHEAD:  Thank so much for
  


 9          having this hearing.  I'm Mav Moorhead.
  


10          I'm with NYH2O, it's a volunteer group.
  


11          We started working against the idea of
  


12          hydrofracking fracturing in 2009 and have
  


13          been working extensively toward that
  


14          goal.
  


15                I sent to David Bragdon at city
  


16          hall who is implementing the New York
  


17          City Energy Plan, and this is an e-mail
  


18          that that I sent back to him in December
  


19          of 201.  Basically, my focus will be on
  


20          immediate measures to implement
  


21          conservation and renewables because
  


22          conservation is really the ticket to
  


23          reduce the amount of energy the City and
  


24          therefore, in fact, the State could use
  


25          many of these particular suggestions.
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 2          I'll read the e-mail.  A lot of it is
  


 3          relevant to this, although it is
  


 4          addressed to him regarding the New York
  


 5          City Energy Plan.  "David Bragdon, in
  


 6          Plan NYC mitigating natural gas usage
  


 7          more of a priority than curtailing
  


 8          natural gas carbon emissions and
  


 9          footprint, fracking's natural gas huge
  


10          carbon footprint has been entirely
  


11          promoted by Plan NYC.  Marcellus shale
  


12          high level of radon 222 would be
  


13          transported into New York City homes,
  


14          restaurants, commercial entities causing
  


15          second leading cause of lung cancer in
  


16          the U.S., it's imperative that we not
  


17          only mitigate the onslaught of mitigating
  


18          factors that the carbon footprint is
  


19          produced, but most certainly to institute
  


20          immediately as many compounding measures
  


21          as possible to reverse the crippling
  


22          prospect of a future climate change.  A
  


23          few suggestions are included here and I
  


24          had spoken with him at that time about
  


25          these particular suggestions, in addition
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 2          to sending the e-mail.
  


 3                Suggestion:  Conservation,
  


 4          instituting mandates for New York City,
  


 5          and of course this could be implemented
  


 6          to New York State, for New York State or
  


 7          New York City buildings to provide
  


 8          uniform heat throughout buildings through
  


 9          use of conforming valves to no higher
  


10          than a temperature of 70 degrees would
  


11          relieve existing gross overheating in
  


12          many New York City buildings, and of
  


13          course this could be applied to many
  


14          different state buildings throughout the
  


15          State of New York, there are so many
  


16          residential and commercial buildings.
  


17                Number two:  Institute mandates
  


18          that office buildings turn off lights
  


19          after a certain hour unless in direct
  


20          use.  And that is a very important thing
  


21          because walking around any city you will
  


22          see many lights on in buildings and no
  


23          one is in occupancy at the time.  These
  


24          are very easily implemented.  These are
  


25          conversion -- conservation-implementing
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 2          devices that could be used and done
  


 3          immediately.  This is not anything that
  


 4          has to, that costs money to do.  It's
  


 5          mandated.
  


 6                Number three:  As part, as part of
  


 7          the European policy that currently
  


 8          exists, 24-hour hall-lighting is
  


 9          minimized.  Motion sensors are
  


10          implemented for efficiency and energy
  


11          consumption.  Think about all the
  


12          hallways in New York State, this is
  


13          hallways, in New York State in every
  


14          building, residential as well as
  


15          commercial, that could be changed over to
  


16          motion sensor detectors in every hallway
  


17          that would eliminate the usage of
  


18          electricity when no one's in the hallway.
  


19          So this of course is a job creator
  


20          because, for the obvious reasons.
  


21                Another one, mandate building
  


22          retrofit upgrades in terms of insulation,
  


23          increasing air barrier, less fossil fuel
  


24          energy uses with additional solar panels
  


25          on roofs in every building.  If every
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 2          federal building, state building, would
  


 3          be outfitted with solar panels, one could
  


 4          only imagine the decrease in electrical
  


 5          usage.  This is also a job creator.
  


 6                Another:  Direct building owners
  


 7          through a mailing campaign with
  


 8          definitive steps to be taken regarding
  


 9          real conservation efforts.  This would be
  


10          accomplished with a menu of choices that
  


11          could be phased in within a certain time
  


12          frame.  For example, a list of ten
  


13          choices with a checklist of at least
  


14          three of the choices for the landlord to
  


15          be implemented within one year and
  


16          progressing on to accomplish additional
  


17          choices each year.  That's a terrific
  


18          suggestion because it would give every
  


19          landlord impetus to perhaps move forward
  


20          with conservation, because basically,
  


21          what could be done is tax incentives
  


22          predicated on the fact that there -- let
  


23          me just do one more, okay?  Promotion and
  


24          subsidies for solar panels on roofs would
  


25          substantially augment energy needs --
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 2          that's a job creator tore -- and a
  


 3          landlord reward system for accomplishing
  


 4          their conservation goals could be a
  


 5          percentage reduction of real estate
  


 6          taxes, not to mention a yearly reduction
  


 7          of yearly NOY expenses, always a tried
  


 8          and true incentive.
  


 9                So these are tried and true
  


10          incentives that could be taken to
  


11          mitigate the usage in a conservation form
  


12          to mitigate the energy usage in New York
  


13          State.
  


14                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


15                David Alicea, followed by Jordan
  


16          Christensen.
  


17                MR. ALICEA:  Hi, how are you?
  


18                MR. RHODES:  Hi.
  


19                MR. ALICEA:  So my name is David
  


20          Alicea.  I'm from Sierra Club and Beyond
  


21          Coal Campaign.  I'm here representing
  


22          thousands of Sierra members and
  


23          supporters here New York City and across
  


24          the State, some of whom are h ere today.
  


25          I just want to say thank you for putting
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 2          this plan together and listening to us
  


 3          and being here all day.
  


 4                So in 2012, after the devastation
  


 5          of Super Storm Sandy, Governor Cuomo made
  


 6          it clear, climate change is real and we
  


 7          have to act.  Since then, the Governor
  


 8          has made a strong commitment to solar
  


 9          through NY SUN and this plan and its goal
  


10          of reducing greenhouse gas emissions 80
  


11          percent by 2050 shows that this governor
  


12          understands climate change is a serious
  


13          issue.
  


14                Unfortunately, this plan has more
  


15          questions than answers when it comes to
  


16          how you get to that point.  A real plan
  


17          must include enforceable interim steps to
  


18          reach 80 percent reductions by 2050 and
  


19          must reject any further investment in
  


20          fossil fuels.  New Yorkers have said it
  


21          time and time again.  We can't frack and
  


22          burn our way to a clean energy economy.
  


23          While the Governor's commitment to solar
  


24          is an encouraging start, this plan should
  


25          ramp up renewable energy and commit to a
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 2          goal of 50 percent by 2025, and pledge to
  


 3          continue our energy-efficiency programs.
  


 4                It also needs to do more than pay
  


 5          lip service to some of the best
  


 6          opportunities that we have to build a
  


 7          new, clean energy economy.  Right now,
  


 8          off the coasts of New York City and Long
  


 9          Island, there are two major offshore wind
  


10          proposals.  We need the State and
  


11          Governor Cuomo to prioritize wind energy
  


12          development and make sure these projects
  


13          start moving forward this year.
  


14                A couple of things that we've heard
  


15          between yesterday and today is, Oh,
  


16          people don't want wind.  Actually, in
  


17          fact, we have shared with the Governor's
  


18          office over 70 percent of New Yorkers are
  


19          willing to pay more for wind energy.  And
  


20          some people don't think it's actually
  


21          feasible but it is.  These projects start
  


22          construction this year, not only will
  


23          these help us meet our goals by reducing
  


24          emissions but will create jobs for much
  


25          needed investment across New York.  New
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 2          York has the manufacturing base, the
  


 3          educated work force, and the port
  


 4          infrastructure to become home to the
  


 5          American offshore wind industry.  This
  


 6          Energy Plan should be jumping at that
  


 7          opportunity to help make New York a real
  


 8          leader.
  


 9                This plan would also make sure we
  


10          move away from further investments in gas
  


11          infrastructure and protect our families
  


12          and water from fracking.  Further
  


13          spending on natural gas infrastructure
  


14          will lock-in reliance for fossil fuels
  


15          for decades, increase demand for fracking
  


16          in our state, and help fund the
  


17          devastating gas extraction occurring in
  


18          states.  Instead of wasting millions of
  


19          dollars on fossil fuels, we can use those
  


20          resources to invest in clean, renewable
  


21          energy like wind and solar.  The Sierra
  


22          Club is asking, Let's turn, not burn our
  


23          way to a clean energy future.
  


24                Again, we're encouraged by the goal
  


25          of 80 percent by 2050, action on climate
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 2          change can't wait until 2050.  Super
  


 3          Storm Sandy showed us all, our
  


 4          communities are at risk now.  Will Long
  


 5          Island's famed beaches or Coney Island's
  


 6          boardwalk still be there for our
  


 7          children?  Will families who've spent
  


 8          generations on Staten Island or the
  


 9          Rockaways be forced to move?  This is
  


10          what is at stake.  We need Governor Cuomo
  


11          and this Energy Plan to make sure we are
  


12          protecting our communities.  We need a
  


13          strong commitment on renewable energy and
  


14          a real plan that explains how we can get
  


15          there.
  


16                Thank you once again for your time.
  


17          I hope you take my statements and those
  


18          of all the people who've spoken today and
  


19          use those to revisit this Energy Plan.
  


20                MR. RHODES:  Thank you.
  


21                Jordan Christensen followed by
  


22          James Shillitto, and again, anyone who
  


23          has a written statement you can provide
  


24          it to the reporter when you're done.
  


25          Thank you.
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 2                MS. CHRISTENSON:  Hi, My name is
  


 3          Jordan Christensen.  I'm with Citizens
  


 4          Campaign For the Environment.  I will be
  


 5          providing written comments, however,
  


 6          these are all scribbled up.  So since the
  


 7          development of the 2002 State Energy Plan
  


 8          CC has been actively engaged in the state
  


 9          energy planning process.  We've
  


10          consistently worked for renewable energy
  


11          development and energy efficiency, and
  


12          reduced dependence on fossil fuels and
  


13          nuclear power.
  


14                Before I make specific comments on
  


15          the Energy Plan we would like to express
  


16          our disappointment that New York has not
  


17          included any hearing the Hudson Valley.
  


18          Hudson Valley represents significant
  


19          licensed generation facilities and over
  


20          18,000 green jobs, and has the ability to
  


21          significantly contribute to the New
  


22          York's renewable energy future.  Here in
  


23          New York City we're already statewide
  


24          energy efficient and renewable energy
  


25          generation with PlaNYC.  By permitting
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 2          commercial and residential energy
  


 3          efficiency creating renewable energy
  


 4          incentives and infrastructure, New York
  


 5          city has achieved a 90 percent reduction
  


 6          in greenhouse gas emissions since 2005.
  


 7          This is an impressive achievement and one
  


 8          that can only be accomplished with good
  


 9          planning and an aggressive implementation
  


10          plan.  On the state level, New York
  


11          currently meets 22 percent of the state
  


12          energy needs for renewable energy.
  


13          However, New York has not maximized its
  


14          renewable energy potential, and it's
  


15          still far from the RPS goal of generating
  


16          30 percent less electricity from
  


17          renewable sources by 2015.  Hydropower
  


18          provides only 17 percent of New York's
  


19          electricity, but significant investments
  


20          in wind and solar projects are needed in
  


21          order to meet carbon emission production,
  


22          and renewable energy goals.  According to
  


23          a report by a recently released report
  


24          issued by Solar Foundation, New York
  


25          ranks fifth in the country for solar
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 2          energy jobs, up from seventh rank last
  


 3          year.  Since the inception of the
  


 4          program, New York City has created over
  


 5          five thousand jobs in the solar industry
  


 6          with potential to grow.  In addition to
  


 7          its economic benefit, solar is able to
  


 8          meet peak summer demand and to stabilize
  


 9          the grid.  With planning doing solar
  


10          mapping and distribute energy, New York
  


11          City's solar power could provide up to a
  


12          fifth of the City's electricity by 2020.
  


13          Investment in solar energy incentives,
  


14          infrastructure and storage capacity
  


15          should be a priority in the New York
  


16          State Energy Plan.  While renewable
  


17          energy production increased over all, New
  


18          York's wind resources still remain
  


19          largely untapped.  We rank twelfth in the
  


20          nation for wind capacity, but there is
  


21          significant offshore wind capacity as
  


22          well as land-based wind potential in
  


23          almost every region in the state.  New
  


24          York has enough wind potential to supply
  


25          50 percent of the State's current
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 2          electricity needs.  Wind power could play
  


 3          a large role in the renewable energy
  


 4          future and wind energy, particularly
  


 5          offshore projects, should be part of the
  


 6          Energy Plan.
  


 7                While we support the planned
  


 8          assessment, New York should be moving
  


 9          away from coal and nuclear power.  These
  


10          outdated fossil fuels should not be
  


11          replaced with dirty gas.  Natural gas is
  


12          not a clean fuel and it's not sustainable
  


13          for the future of New York State.
  


14                We also support the rejection of
  


15          the relicensing Indian Point, however,
  


16          although nuclear power poses unnecessary
  


17          health and environmental risks, so does
  


18          fracturing.  Indian Point supplies 200
  


19          megawatts of power to Westchester and New
  


20          York City.  This energy load should be
  


21          replaced by clean, emission-free wind and
  


22          solar.  Joint Long Island-New York City
  


23          offshore wind projects proposed by Con
  


24          Edison and LIPA is slated to supply
  


25          300,000 megawatts of offshore wind
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 2          energy.  The project would have been a
  


 3          critical step toward replacing Indian
  


 4          Point with clean energy.  CC is
  


 5          disappointed the opportunities for wind
  


 6          power have been repeatedly shelved.  In
  


 7          order to have a practical commitment to
  


 8          renewable energy generation, the New York
  


 9          State Energy Plan must embrace offshore
  


10          wind as a key part of renewable energy
  


11          plan.
  


12                New York has demonstrated a
  


13          commitment to increasing energy storage
  


14          capacity, global incentives, and
  


15          promoting energy efficiency.  The New
  


16          York State Energy Plan has stated that
  


17          it's the foundation's plan to move
  


18          forward with these goals but that is
  


19          simply not true.  Replacing one fossil
  


20          fuel with another is not a good public
  


21          health plan.  It's a stopgap measure that
  


22          does not prepare us for a better future.
  


23          Yes, the fuel will run out.  New York
  


24          City should be capitalizing on
  


25          opportunities to move New York into a
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 2          sustainable renewable energy future.
  


 3          Thank you.
  


 4                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 5                Frank Ippoliti, followed by Eugene
  


 6          Shapiro.
  


 7                MR. IPPOLITI:  Good afternoon, my
  


 8          name is Frank Ippoliti and I am the
  


 9          business agent for Millwright Local Union
  


10          740 which is part of the New York City
  


11          and Vicinity District Counsel of
  


12          Carpenters and I have the privilege of
  


13          speaking on behalf of 25,000
  


14          highly-skilled members.  Thank you for
  


15          the opportunity to share our views on New
  


16          York State's proposed energy plan.  My
  


17          local installs, repairs, replaces
  


18          machinery in every industry locations
  


19          ranging from nuclear power plants, heavy
  


20          construction projects, real estate,
  


21          transportation and infrastructure needs
  


22          throughout New York State.  We also
  


23          represent a large number amount of
  


24          workers at Indian Point Power Plant who
  


25          are proud to be part of the plant's
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 2          strong track record of high performance
  


 3          and record safety, earning the NRC's
  


 4          highest safety designation, Green, for
  


 5          nine years in a row.
  


 6                Before going any further I would
  


 7          like to recognize the board for
  


 8          developing a solid blueprint for
  


 9          safeguarding our energy future.  There is
  


10          certainly much to like with the proposed
  


11          plan, including the development of new
  


12          wind energy, support for extracting
  


13          natural gas from Marcellus shale
  


14          formation, promoting a modernized and
  


15          smarter grid among other ambitious energy
  


16          goals; however, some components of the
  


17          Plan raise concern.
  


18                In 2009 New York set a goal of
  


19          reducing electricity consumption 15
  


20          percent by 2015.  According to the data
  


21          from the New York Independent System
  


22          Operator, NYISO, the State's consumption
  


23          grew by 2.56 percent.  The current call
  


24          to realign efficient policies must be
  


25          rooted in the reality that New York needs
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 2          more energy, not less.  With this in
  


 3          mind, stronger restrictions should be put
  


 4          in place to ensure that failing to reach
  


 5          efficiency goals do not occur solely at
  


 6          the expense of the ratepayer.  High
  


 7          energy taxes and flawed policy
  


 8          initiatives are only part of the reason
  


 9          New York has the highest electric prices
  


10          in the continental United States.  The
  


11          Plan falls short on addressing to view to
  


12          expand or maintain access to affordable,
  


13          reliable energy sources.  This includes
  


14          pipelines that deliver natural gas,
  


15          transmission upgrades that deliver cheap
  


16          electricity from upstate in western New
  


17          York to downstate, cloaks political plans
  


18          to close Indian Point, yet invites an
  


19          ill-advised 336 extension cord from
  


20          Canada to Queens to take our jobs and
  


21          treasure north of the board.
  


22                For the record, the New York City
  


23          District Council of Carpenters supports
  


24          the continued operations of Indian Point.
  


25          The facility produces 2,000 megawatts of
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 2          affordable, reliable baseload power with
  


 3          virtually zero emissions.  It is also
  


 4          responsible for hundreds of well-paid,
  


 5          high-skilled union jobs.  This is good
  


 6          for our economy and our environment.
  


 7                We oppose the Champlain Hudson
  


 8          Power Express project as it undermines
  


 9          the governor's energy highway goal of
  


10          becoming energy independent.  NYISO's
  


11          2012 New York State Transmission
  


12          Assessment and Reliability Study found no
  


13          reliability need that merited the
  


14          installation of this unnecessary project.
  


15          In fact, during the recent cold snap, New
  


16          York sent New York-generated power to
  


17          Pennsylvania, New Jersey, and Quebec as
  


18          each could not meet their demand for
  


19          energy.  New York should focus on
  


20          remaining a net energy exporter and not
  


21          allow itself to become dependent on
  


22          foreign energy sources.  Energy
  


23          dependency leads to higher electric
  


24          prices, job losses, and would reverse the
  


25          course of New York's economic recovery.
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 2                As you construct the final Energy
  


 3          Plan, I urge you to consider these
  


 4          arguments to fortify what is a largely
  


 5          positive plan.  As a region continuously
  


 6          growing and demanding more power, we must
  


 7          do what is necessary to address these
  


 8          issues.  Bolstering in-state power
  


 9          generation while safeguarding our current
  


10          baseload portfolio, including Indian
  


11          Point, are critical parts of this
  


12          efforts.  Thank you.
  


13                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


14                Eugene Shapiro.
  


15                MR. SHAPIRO:  Well, it's
  


16          interesting to follow a fellow union
  


17          official as I'm a former official from
  


18          the Motion Pictures Editor's Guild.
  


19                I read your Draft Plan with great
  


20          interest because I don't come before you
  


21          with great energy and planning expertise
  


22          or experience.  So why do I come before
  


23          you?  I understand the complexities of
  


24          what you have to deal with and it reminds
  


25          me of the complexities from 45 years ago
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 2          seeing how a West African republic with
  


 3          ill-planning ended up destroying their
  


 4          food, land resource and water supply in
  


 5          the way they built a damn.  In the
  


 6          meantime, we compared it to the beaver,
  


 7          who needless to say, does a good job of
  


 8          damning.  I remember asking my colleagues
  


 9          the horrors of World War II and people
  


10          getting gassed to death, but somehow with
  


11          over 50 million dead bodies, mankind
  


12          recovered from that.  Now, what happens
  


13          with what we've heard about the water
  


14          supply?  Well, you made some mistakes,
  


15          are you going to fix that?  No.  You
  


16          destroy the water supply and it's gone
  


17          like it was in that part of West Africa.
  


18          Every once in a while, as a filmmaker, I
  


19          get jealous when I was watching Gasland
  


20          which I'm sure many people here have
  


21          seen, and he walks over to the water with
  


22          a lit match, turns on the water, and you
  


23          expect that match to be put out, and
  


24          instead it explodes.  That's our
  


25          next-door neighbor making the mistakes,
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 2          because coming out of the water is gas.
  


 3          Until the system is refined -- and I'm
  


 4          not denying the fact it could be studied
  


 5          and refined -- let's not jump the gun.
  


 6          This is one of the best water supplies in
  


 7          the world, accidentally, here in New
  


 8          York.  So I say to you, having watched
  


 9          that scene in Gasland, I think that
  


10          fracking is misspelled.  It's not
  


11          F-R-A-C-K-I-N-G.  It's S-U-I-C-I-D-E,
  


12          suicide.
  


13                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


14                Dr. Shyana Orum, and can I just
  


15          check on Helen Bentley or John Iglietta
  


16          have returned?  After, it will be Tassia
  


17          Rosa.
  


18                DR. ORUM:  Thanks, thank you the
  


19          committee.  I'm actually a New Yorker but
  


20          I also have a little house in upstate New
  


21          York and in that home I use electric
  


22          power from wind farms.  My neighbor
  


23          across the street who just moved in is
  


24          getting solar panels on his roof, so I
  


25          know renewables are practical and they
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 2          work.
  


 3                I'm here today because of my
  


 4          experience working in New York City for
  


 5          many years with children and families.  I
  


 6          was the tutor of hospitalized children
  


 7          for the New York City Board of Education
  


 8          and some of the boroughs with a high air
  


 9          pollution such as the South Bronx and
  


10          central Brooklyn and I watched as
  


11          children, seven, nine, 13, 16 year-olds
  


12          were hospitalized, struggling to breathe.
  


13          I watched as their families were looking
  


14          on helplessly.  I saw those children lose
  


15          their opportunities for good education,
  


16          for advancement in life.  I even had the
  


17          unhappy experience of seeing one of our
  


18          promising young woman who managed to get
  


19          into a private high school, through her
  


20          hard work, die, in the intensive care
  


21          unit, from asthma.  And yet, this plan is
  


22          advocating for gas infrastructure
  


23          build-out that will increase air
  


24          pollution wherever it goes and in that
  


25          way sicken thousands of children and
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 2          adults now and in the future, and it
  


 3          can't be reversed.  That air pollution
  


 4          does not go away.  I'm very grateful to
  


 5          Pramilla for speaking about her family
  


 6          experiences in Minisink with the new
  


 7          compressor station there and I think it's
  


 8          a very telling description of what will
  


 9          happen all over, and because of that, I
  


10          want to read a press release that her
  


11          organization, her citizen organization,
  


12          put out last March regarding a blow-down
  


13          in Minisink last March.  It says, "This
  


14          week a blow-down event occurred in
  


15          Minisink, New York as Millennium pipeline
  


16          subsidiary of NiSource which has just
  


17          become part of Columbia Pipeline Group,
  


18          released unknown quantities of
  


19          high-pressure emission from two metering
  


20          stations in order to clear the line as
  


21          they connected the compressor station to
  


22          the main gas pipeline.  However,
  


23          Millennium failed to notice several of
  


24          the residents of Minisink of the code red
  


25          event.  Numerous residents have reported







166


  


 1                        HEARING
  


 2          nosebleeds, painful headaches, nausea,
  


 3          and stomach pain and dizziness this week.
  


 4          Although the blow-down events were
  


 5          scheduled for March 5th and 6th, Tuesday
  


 6          and Wednesday of last week, earlier this
  


 7          morning, which was the 11th, the local
  


 8          volunteer fire department was called when
  


 9          loud booms were heard at approximately
  


10          8:30 a.m., followed by noxious fumes.
  


11          The sounds and smells were perceptible
  


12          from a half-a-mile away.  The specific
  


13          cause is still unknown.  'We were shocked
  


14          and scared to hear this tremendous noise
  


15          coming from the compressor station,' said
  


16          Osha Conello (phonetic) a Minisink
  


17          resident."
  


18                If this was planned why weren't we
  


19          notified?  Millennium is bound by law to
  


20          report these events to residents of the
  


21          town, at least a few days before the
  


22          blow-down occurs.  However, Millennium
  


23          did not notify residents then, and
  


24          Pramilla has told us there is ongoing
  


25          smell of sulfur, and on Christmas Day, as
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 2          a holiday gift, Millennium managed
  


 3          another blow-down which caused this type
  


 4          of event which I've just read about.
  


 5                So if we're looking to the gas
  


 6          industry to provide safe and healthy
  


 7          power, I think we can forget it.  I think
  


 8          we have to realize that it's our
  


 9          representatives, our governor, our team,
  


10          to provide the Plan that will make sure
  


11          that this type of thing does not happen
  


12          all over New York State, and I believe we
  


13          can do it.  You know, so many people have
  


14          spoken today about all the options for
  


15          clean energy, renewables, and it's there,
  


16          it's available.  It needs to be done.
  


17          Going back to building up gas
  


18          infrastructure, such as pipeline, the
  


19          Spectra pipeline that is now in the West
  


20          Village that could blow up and cause a
  


21          blast zone all the way to 28th Street,
  


22          that's not what we need.
  


23                We're asking you to create a plan
  


24          that pushes renewables that gets rid of
  


25          fossil fuels and that brings us into the
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 2          future.  Let's get moving cause we can do
  


 3          it.
  


 4                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 5                Tassia Rosa, followed by James
  


 6          Shillitto.
  


 7                MS. ROSA:  Good afternoon, and
  


 8          thank you for this opportunity to testify
  


 9          today.  My name is Tassia Rosa.  I'm a
  


10          project coordinator for the New York
  


11          Public Interest Research Group of the
  


12          Borough of the Manhattan Community
  


13          College.  NYPIRG is the largest consumer
  


14          environmental consumer advocacy
  


15          organization, with 20 college campus
  


16          chapters across New York State, including
  


17          ten here in New York City.  NYPIRG
  


18          representatives will be speaking on
  


19          different topics at each of the scheduled
  


20          hearings of the Energy Plan, and will
  


21          submit formal written comments on a later
  


22          date.
  


23                I will focus my comments today on
  


24          how the Plan addresses mass transit.
  


25          Most of our students rely on New York
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 2          City's extensive network of subways,
  


 3          buses and railroads to get around.  For
  


 4          35 years NYPIRG's Straphanger's Campaign
  


 5          has been the leading advocate for decent,
  


 6          safe and affordable mass transit in New
  


 7          York City.
  


 8                According to the Metropolitan
  


 9          Transit Authority, MTA mass transit helps
  


10          New Yorkers avoid about 17 million metric
  


11          tons of pollutants, while emitting only 2
  


12          million metric tons, making it perhaps
  


13          single biggest source of greenhouse gas
  


14          avoidance in the United States.
  


15                The draft Energy Plan acknowledges
  


16          that mass transit is an important
  


17          energy-saving mechanism.  Mass transit
  


18          jobs make up about 62 percent of New
  


19          York's clean energy economy jobs and
  


20          public services.  But while the Plan
  


21          recognizes that increased investment in
  


22          transportation infrastructure is
  


23          critical, it fails to establish a clear
  


24          road map for funding transit projects or
  


25          maintaining and training existing
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 2          infrastructure.  Instead, the Plan
  


 3          laments in today's challenging fiscal
  


 4          climate, identifying the resources
  


 5          necessary to sustain or increase
  


 6          transportation investment is a major
  


 7          hurdle.
  


 8                This is troubling for three
  


 9          reasons:  First, Governor Cuomo has
  


10          routinely raided funds dedicated to mass
  


11          transit and used them for other purposes.
  


12          The governor's executive budget proposal
  


13          contains a raid of MTA dedicated funds
  


14          that could mean a rough ride for bus and
  


15          subway riders, workers and manufactures.
  


16          In the proposed budget $40 million in
  


17          dedicated transit funds which pay for
  


18          day-to-day operations, service and
  


19          maintenance would be diverted into the
  


20          general service debt fund.  With this
  


21          action, Governor Cuomo reneged on an
  


22          agreement the State made with the MTA in
  


23          2002, in which the State would pay for
  


24          $2.4 billion in MTA debt, while putting
  


25          the MTA unstable finances at risk.
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 2          Furthermore, the governor has twice
  


 3          thwarted attempts to safeguard existing
  


 4          transit funds.  The transit lock-box bill
  


 5          would have increased fiscal transparency
  


 6          and public accountability while
  


 7          protecting dedicated transit funds.  Its
  


 8          key provision required the State to issue
  


 9          a diversion impact statement in the
  


10          unfortunate event that state dedicated
  


11          transit funds are diverted.  The impact
  


12          statement details what effect the
  


13          diversion would have had on transit
  


14          service, safety, and maintenance.  The
  


15          state legislature unanimously passed such
  


16          legislation in 2011 and again in 2013,
  


17          legislation that was supported by over
  


18          200 organizations across the state, but
  


19          the governor neutered the 2011 bills and
  


20          vetoed the 2013 bill.
  


21                Finally, the MTA's 2015 through
  


22          2019 Capital Building Program, the Plan
  


23          that allows the MTA to purchase new,
  


24          energy-efficient rolling stock like
  


25          subway cars and buses, and also to begin
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 2          projects like a fully featured bus rapid
  


 3          transit network.  That has a ten to $15
  


 4          billion hold no one knows where the final
  


 5          budget will come from.  We need
  


 6          leadership to solve these funding
  


 7          problems and not pay them lip service.
  


 8                Finally, one of the initiatives
  


 9          outlined in the Plan is to increase
  


10          transportation alternatives and vehicle
  


11          diversity to harness the benefits of
  


12          decreased dependence on oil and a
  


13          cleaner, more connected and more flexible
  


14          transportation network.  However, the
  


15          initiative fails to recognize Bus Rapid
  


16          Transit as a tested, viable alternative
  


17          that utilizes green vehicles and can be
  


18          implemented wherever there is enough road
  


19          space, political will and public
  


20          engagement.  Instead, this idea which was
  


21          touted as a priority strategic plan in
  


22          the governor's 2100 Commission report,
  


23          gets hardly a mention.  Bus Rapid Transit
  


24          is the State's best chance of expanding
  


25          mass transit service quickly and cost
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 2          effectively to transit-starved
  


 3          communities across New York City and New
  


 4          York State.  New York City has its own
  


 5          slimmed-down version of Bus Rapid
  


 6          Transit, called Select Bus Service, which
  


 7          is living up to its promise of faster and
  


 8          more reliable trips.  Through extensive
  


 9          community exercises and a willingness to
  


10          work with and hear from the public, MTA
  


11          New York City Transit and the New York
  


12          City Department of Transportation have
  


13          made great strides bringing a new
  


14          generation of bus service to the streets
  


15          of New York.  We can do better and the
  


16          State should look to the MTA as a model
  


17          for green and alternative transportation
  


18          and work to emulate their successes with
  


19          other transit providers across the State.
  


20          Thank you so much again.
  


21                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


22          And if you would share the written
  


23          comments, that would be helpful.
  


24                James Shellitto, followed by
  


25          Michael Jay.
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 2                MR. SHILLITTO:  Good afternoon.
  


 3          I'm James Shillitto.  I'm vice-president
  


 4          of the Utility Workers of America, Local
  


 5          1-2, speaking on behalf of our president,
  


 6          James Slevin.
  


 7                There is no doubt that the 2014
  


 8          Draft Energy Plan for New York contains
  


 9          very laudable goals and a view to New
  


10          York's energy future.
  


11                There is no doubt that the Plan
  


12          contains exciting ideas to meet our
  


13          growing demand for electricity in the
  


14          21st century.
  


15                There is no doubt that private
  


16          capital needs to sustain to help
  


17          stimulate this vision for a sustained
  


18          energy policy.
  


19                But what concerns me is that while
  


20          lip-service is paid to jobs and education
  


21          and training, there are no hard numbers
  


22          to help drive the Plan.  What is needed
  


23          in any energy map for our future is a
  


24          strong plan that has specific numbers of
  


25          good, middle-class jobs for the men and
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 2          women who will build, operate and
  


 3          maintain the grid of tomorrow.
  


 4                For too long New York and it's
  


 5          state-run economic development
  


 6          infrastructure have relied on spreading
  


 7          the wealth to already deep-pocketed
  


 8          investors without the concomitant
  


 9          creation of good-paying, steady jobs for
  


10          New York's workforce.  Sure, we help the
  


11          private sector by offering handsome
  


12          portions of the State's bond-cap to
  


13          fiance projects, and we extend to them
  


14          multiple tax-incentives to stay, yet it
  


15          is always done with fluid metrics that
  


16          demand very little evidence that the
  


17          financiers, many of whom call themselves
  


18          job creators, do create the jobs they
  


19          promise.
  


20                And then the Plan calls for these
  


21          investors to be self-reporting on their
  


22          progress.  Have we learned nothing from
  


23          the recent past?  Jobs, jobs, jobs.
  


24          Good-paying, steady, middle-class
  


25          building jobs are what is missing from
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 2          the equation of the 2014 Draft Energy
  


 3          Plan.  Ever since the global economic
  


 4          meltdown of 2008, stories emerge every
  


 5          day of corporate pillaging that takes
  


 6          place in the name of economic
  


 7          development.  Corporations already pay
  


 8          the lowest federal/state taxes in more
  


 9          than 60 years.  Executive pay for the top
  


10          ranks is at obscene levels which everyone
  


11          acknowledges but does nothing about.
  


12          Meanwhile, the middle class has been
  


13          stripped, laid off, and downsized, made
  


14          to take it on the chin.  It was manpower
  


15          that made New York the Empire State.  It
  


16          was manpower and its skilled, organized
  


17          workforce that helped made New York
  


18          become an industrial and economic power
  


19          in the 21st century.
  


20                Don't let the energy investors fool
  


21          you.  "Well, if we build it the jobs will
  


22          follow.  It's not true.  These projects
  


23          get nickel and dimed by anti-union
  


24          contractors and unqualified
  


25          subcontractors and out-of-state jobbers
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 2          who add nothing to the permanency of the
  


 3          jobs we need.
  


 4                So while we endorse the goals
  


 5          outlined in the Draft Energy Plan, we
  


 6          also take it with a grain of salt.  For
  


 7          it includes no real vision of the men and
  


 8          women who will perform the day-to-day
  


 9          tasks required.  It includes no vision of
  


10          good middle-class jobs that can be
  


11          created by smart energy investment.  It
  


12          contains no vision of real sweat, the
  


13          real toil, the real number of bodies that
  


14          will be needed.
  


15                Remember, without using these
  


16          investments to build a good workforce
  


17          with a strong middle class, there will
  


18          not be any ratepayers left to pay.
  


19          Everyone will have fled.
  


20                It was a strong middle class that
  


21          transformed this state and this country
  


22          after World War II.  And each time
  


23          another plan emerges that does not focus
  


24          on the key component of human capital,
  


25          and how it works, is doomed to be just so
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 2          much more pie in the sky.
  


 3                Tell us where the jobs are.  In
  


 4          addition, we'd like to confirm our strong
  


 5          opposition to the Champlain Hudson Power
  


 6          Express project and urge its denial.
  


 7          Electric power plants provide skilled,
  


 8          good-paying, sustainable jobs of
  


 9          thousands of hard working union members.
  


10          Rather than spurning investment to new
  


11          facilities, this proposal will curtail
  


12          infrastructure investments and undercut
  


13          the need of other in-state generation by
  


14          creating a one-way energy highway from
  


15          Quebec to Queens.  The result is the
  


16          exploitation of both jobs and dollars to
  


17          benefit Canada.  Updating and building
  


18          new electricity generation and
  


19          relicensing of Indian Point are important
  


20          for New York's energy future.  Thank you.
  


21                MR. RHODES:  Michael Jay?  Faith
  


22          Steinberg followed, by Adele Bender.
  


23                MS. STEINBERG:  My name is Faith
  


24          Steinberg and I'm a native New Yorker.  I
  


25          live on the upper west side.
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 2                We've heard a lot about natural gas
  


 3          today.  Whenever I hear natural I'm on
  


 4          the alert, because it's such an overused
  


 5          word.  Ain't nothing natural about
  


 6          pouring chemicals into the earth to get
  


 7          gas.  It ain't natural.  You know, poison
  


 8          ivy is natural, too.  I sometimes make
  


 9          the mistake of saying that humans are
  


10          killing our planet Earth but the --
  


11                MR. RHODES:  Ms. Steinberg, you're
  


12          drifting off the mike, if you can speak
  


13          clearly.  I can hear you, but --
  


14                MS. STEINBERG:  The reverse is
  


15          true.  The Earth is killing humans and
  


16          the Earth, being the wonderful organism
  


17          that it is, is telling us in its own
  


18          language that what we English-speaking
  


19          humans call storms, tsunamis, hurricanes,
  


20          cyclones, earthquakes, and on and on in
  


21          our ingenious manner.  How many of us
  


22          have died worldwide?  But the Earth is
  


23          still here.  Many living creatures have
  


24          been erased from the Earth but the Earth
  


25          is still here.  There's an echo system
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 2          and we think that we humans can outsmart
  


 3          Mother Earth but it's not true.  The
  


 4          Earth is reacting.  Instead of finding
  


 5          new sources rather than fossil fuels we
  


 6          must find more ways to conserve energy
  


 7          and become -- because we're becoming what
  


 8          the fable, the Sorcerer's Apprentice, is
  


 9          telling us.  Instead of the stupid, and I
  


10          use the word stupid because there's so
  


11          much information around that is being
  


12          ignored, so it's not ignorance of the
  


13          facts.  It's stupidity because of the
  


14          greedy people and they're poisoning our
  


15          land and habitats, we must find ways to
  


16          get sustainable energy and explore solar
  


17          energy, wind and water power.  That would
  


18          create lots of jobs.
  


19                Also I want to add to the woman's
  


20          list of ways to conserve energy.  I don't
  


21          mean to offend the men in our midst, but
  


22          during the summer, when we were having
  


23          record heat, men are dressed in ties and
  


24          it makes no sense, and the air
  


25          conditioning has to go up, and it's all
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 2          over the world, it's all corporate
  


 3          structures.  Women are putting on
  


 4          sweaters and men are dressed in their, in
  


 5          their leather shoes.  I forget what you
  


 6          call those shoes, but that's another way,
  


 7          I think it was Al Gore who said there are
  


 8          all kinds of little ways that we can
  


 9          conserve energy and I think that if we
  


10          want a world, the Earth, to be here for
  


11          humans, if we want humans to be here for
  


12          this Earth, then we have got to change.
  


13          We have really messed up the world and
  


14          now they want to go to the other planets
  


15          and see how they can mess them up.  Okay,
  


16          thank you.
  


17                MR. RHODES:  Adele Bender followed
  


18          by Morgan Monzana, if I have that right.
  


19                MS. BENDER:  Can you hear me?  My
  


20          name is Adele Bender.  I am a member of
  


21          the Gray Panthers and several other
  


22          organizations to Riverkeeper and so I'm
  


23          always very, very passionate about what
  


24          happens to our environment.  It's the one
  


25          Earth we know about that we have and what
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 2          scares me about going to the other
  


 3          planets, if we ever find life on another
  


 4          planet I hope we don't trash this planet.
  


 5          I'd like it to stay.  I'd like our planet
  


 6          to stay nice and healthy.
  


 7                One of the things I'd like to talk
  


 8          about, we're here about fracking.  About
  


 9          twenty-five years ago, I live two blocks
  


10          off Queens Boulevard in Forest Hills,
  


11          Queens, and about 20, 25 years ago my
  


12          husband and I, like two o'clock in the
  


13          morning, we felt a boom, a vibration, and
  


14          we didn't know what it was.  The next day
  


15          we found out it was a mini earthquake,
  


16          and this comes from all the way upstate,
  


17          and so it's not impossible if you're
  


18          going to have fracking, I don't know that
  


19          fracking will exacerbate a situation like
  


20          this, cause a situation like this, or if
  


21          there is another mini earthquake what
  


22          would happen with fracking, with the gas
  


23          coming all the way down from upstate.  My
  


24          common sense tells me, I get a little
  


25          nervous, I do think about it from time to
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 2          time, and I leave it to the scientists
  


 3          and the experts to look at a situation
  


 4          like this, and as I say, I am afraid of
  


 5          this fracking, and I think it is really
  


 6          important that the experts really search
  


 7          out alternatives and safer and healthier
  


 8          alternative to use to be able to avoid
  


 9          things like fracking because we need
  


10          clean air, we need clean water cause once
  


11          those chemicals are used for the fracking
  


12          and if the water is ruined, that's it.
  


13          You cannot straighten it out.  Everybody
  


14          is affected, rich poor and in between.
  


15          So I think we have to be very cautious
  


16          about this and use a lot of the good
  


17          alternative energies.  If I have to spend
  


18          a couple of more dollars on my Con Edison
  


19          bill, I think of the L'Oreal ad, I'm
  


20          worth it, and you're worth it and we're
  


21          worth it.  Thank you.
  


22                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


23          Morgan Montana, followed by Michael
  


24          Benjamin.  Is Michael Benjamin here?
  


25          Thank you very much, sir.
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 2                MR. BENJAMIN:  Thank you.
  


 3                MR. RHODES:  And following will be
  


 4          Merrill Macel -- I'm sorry.
  


 5                MR. BENJAMIN:  I will submit my
  


 6          testimony to you later.  I will send you
  


 7          my testimony by e-mail later.
  


 8                MR. RHODES:  Thank you.
  


 9                MR. BENJAMIN:  Can you hear me all
  


10          right?
  


11                MR. RHODES:  I can, yes.
  


12                MR. BENJAMIN:  Good afternoon, my
  


13          name is Michael Benjamin.  I'm a former
  


14          state legislator from the Bronx.
  


15          Presently I'm with SHARE New York a
  


16          membership-based organization consisting
  


17          of individual and small businesses.  I'm
  


18          here today in support of relicensing
  


19          Indian Point Energy Center.  As a
  


20          legislator I visited IPEC on more than
  


21          one occasion.  I was impressed by the
  


22          operation and dedication of the
  


23          operators.  Nuclear energy is an integral
  


24          part of all of President Obama's all of
  


25          the above energy policy.  Electricity
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 2          generated by Indian Point is clean,
  


 3          affordable and reliable.  Our modern
  


 4          society depends on electricity for
  


 5          virtually everything.  At SHARE we
  


 6          believe the New York State Energy Plan
  


 7          should include a large investment in
  


 8          cost-effective energy management and
  


 9          awareness of programs.  The environmental
  


10          communities should have input before new
  


11          power plants are permitted to be built.
  


12          Continuing operation of Indian Point
  


13          would provide 20 to 40 percent of the
  


14          area's power needs and the development
  


15          environment of renewable energy, wind,
  


16          solar, hydroelectric power to address
  


17          growing power needs.  We believe that the
  


18          state Energy Plan should support programs
  


19          to lower energy bills and protect our
  


20          environment, strengthen energy building
  


21          codes, and expand programs that manage
  


22          power usage on the hottest days of the
  


23          year.
  


24                Low income areas in and around New
  


25          York City have a disproportionate number
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 2          of power plants damaging the health and
  


 3          quality of life in those areas.  Such
  


 4          communities must be involved in the
  


 5          decision-making process before any new
  


 6          power plants are constructed.  Two years
  


 7          ago an independent report commissioned by
  


 8          the City of New York found that if IPEC
  


 9          were to be closed New York City
  


10          ratepayers would pay an additional two to
  


11          $3 billion dollars in higher energy
  


12          costs.  The closing of Indian Point Power
  


13          Plant would place another billion dollars
  


14          on area residents.  That's nearly $3
  


15          billion in additional costs on New
  


16          Yorkers.
  


17                Irrational fears should not drive
  


18          state energy policy.  Nuclear power
  


19          plants are not the same as nuclear bombs.
  


20          IPEC will not and cannot explode.
  


21          Replacing Indian Point with dirtier coal
  


22          or gas-fired power plants will be
  


23          unhealthy.  The State Energy Plan must
  


24          insure the power is from safe,
  


25          reliability and renewable energy.  And
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 2          finally, $3 billion in additional
  


 3          unnecessary costs must not be passed onto
  


 4          overburdened ratepayers.
  


 5                Thank you for taking the time to
  


 6          hear my views.
  


 7                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 8                Merrill Maceldonery (phonetic), I
  


 9          apologize.  Tula Tsalis, followed by
  


10          Elizabeth Mellen.
  


11                MS. TSALIS:  I want to thank you
  


12          for the opportunity to speak today and I
  


13          would mainly like to address the people
  


14          out here.  I feel very, very privileged
  


15          to be here among you today.  I feel very
  


16          privileged to be here among you today.
  


17                I have been active throughout my
  


18          life in many, many ways and more recently
  


19          have been quiet until now.
  


20                I live in Warwick, New York, Orange
  


21          County, and I'm a member of Sustainable
  


22          Warwick and also Orange County Peace and
  


23          Justice Coalition which is beginning to
  


24          have some interest in these energy
  


25          issues, whereas before they were so
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 2          concerned about Iraq and Afghanistan.  I
  


 3          made a couple of -- I don't have a formal
  


 4          presentation.  I just made a few brief
  


 5          notes.
  


 6                In Orange County there is a plan to
  


 7          build a huge plant in a place called way
  


 8          Wawayander, right near Middletown.  I
  


 9          don't know how many of you know that
  


10          area.  I know that you do.  I just
  


11          learned this today and I learned a few
  


12          things today, and I'm very, very thankful
  


13          to you for educating me.  This plant,
  


14          which is, I forget what the size is, it's
  


15          going to be built, if it is built, by
  


16          Competitive Power Ventures, I've heard
  


17          them called competitive power vultures,
  


18          but I read somewhere that Competitive
  


19          Power Ventures who also, by the way,
  


20          wants to build a huge plant in Northern
  


21          California, had made some comments about
  


22          the fact that when the nuclear power
  


23          plant closes, which of course it must
  


24          close, then they will be in the perfect
  


25          position once the plant is built near
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 2          Middletown to provide the much-needed
  


 3          energy that the area needs.  There are
  


 4          other people who have come out about the
  


 5          fact that with energy conservation we're
  


 6          not going to need that level of energy
  


 7          production in that region.  I don't know
  


 8          if that's true there, but these things
  


 9          are being bounced around.
  


10                I'm here to say simply this:  This
  


11          is one of the most important issues right
  


12          now.  The decisions that we make today
  


13          and tomorrow regarding energy will make
  


14          the difference in the quality of our
  


15          lives and in the quality of the planet in
  


16          the years ahead.  Everyone here knows
  


17          that.  We've all expressed these facts,
  


18          figures, information.  I don't have to
  


19          say more on any of that, even if I knew
  


20          them which I don't have the details, but
  


21          I'm grateful to many of you who do have.
  


22          What I would like to see happen in New
  


23          York State is a full commitment toward
  


24          renewable energy as most of you do as
  


25          well, and for this to happen, we're going
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 2          to have -- we're going to need the kind
  


 3          of energy, human power energy, that
  


 4          occurred back in the late sixties and
  


 5          seventies when the environmental movement
  


 6          first became a reality and communities
  


 7          all over the country were involved, and
  


 8          that's how we got the laws that were put
  


 9          in place afterwards.  And for that to
  


10          happen today, those of us who are working
  


11          on this now must begin to form
  


12          coalitions.  Other groups, large and
  


13          small, some of you are so good at it,
  


14          you're professional, and sometimes those
  


15          who are professionals in the
  


16          environmental area tend to stay and work
  


17          together by themselves and don't
  


18          necessarily reach out to small
  


19          communities here and there.  That's what
  


20          I hope will happen.
  


21                There's a hearing to take place on
  


22          February 25 in Middletown, New York.
  


23          It's no longer a community college, it's
  


24          now a full four-year college, as I
  


25          understand, and I, I'm asking why, why is
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 2          there only one, only one public meeting
  


 3          to take place on this incredibly
  


 4          important issue in Orange County, when
  


 5          there should be many?  Not only in Orange
  


 6          County but everywhere.  The limitation of
  


 7          these meetings is a mistake and the only
  


 8          way to rectify that is to fight it.  It's
  


 9          the only way, because Governor Cuomo and
  


10          the State of New York will do what
  


11          governors do in order to get things done.
  


12          Sometimes they will try to limit
  


13          discussion and that must not happen.
  


14          Thank you.
  


15                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


16          Elizabeth Mellen, followed by Ann Basser,
  


17          I believe.
  


18                MS. MELLEN:  I'm Elizabeth Mellen.
  


19          I live in Manhattan.  I'm a member of a
  


20          church which is also part of a network
  


21          called Interfaith Power and Light all
  


22          across the State, are concerned with
  


23          energy conservation and climate change.
  


24          I'm also a member -- I mean, contribute
  


25          to the Atlantic Chapter Sierra Club.  I
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 2          applaud all preceding comments pointing
  


 3          out the danger of fracking to our
  


 4          environment and to human and animal
  


 5          health.  I add my voice emphasizing our
  


 6          need to move away from natural gas and
  


 7          other fossil fuels to renewables.
  


 8                Fracking and the continued
  


 9          construction in the State of new
  


10          pipelines for compressed gas takes us in
  


11          the wrong direction if we care about
  


12          global warming.  Also, considering that
  


13          new pipelines are intended to lead to gas
  


14          exporting, the current profit motive as
  


15          opposed to the public's interest becomes
  


16          clear and evident.  On another note, with
  


17          a summer place in Susquehanna County,
  


18          Pennsylvania, a state which caved and
  


19          it's is just ten miles as the crow flies,
  


20          our place is, from Dimock, Pennsylvania.
  


21          I have witnessed the industrialization of
  


22          lovely, lovely countrysides.  The
  


23          degradation of roads, the influx of
  


24          workers from the southwest of the U.S.,
  


25          the rising housing costs for locals.  The







193


  


 1                        HEARING
  


 2          enormous fracking pads and compressor
  


 3          stations and the endless -- and the water
  


 4          truck stations for the trucks which suck
  


 5          millions of gallons of water from the
  


 6          tributaries of the Susquehanna River,
  


 7          that truck traffic and the enormous
  


 8          flatbed trucks carrying huge, heavy
  


 9          machinery are just a new phenomenon in
  


10          otherwise lovely countryside.  We are
  


11          subject there to the endless and
  


12          relentless PR propaganda of Chesapeake
  


13          and Cabot and other gas corporations
  


14          here.
  


15                We're here, we're doing good, we
  


16          contribute to the local hospital, we do
  


17          this, we do this, and it's endless.  The
  


18          proposed route of the Constitution
  


19          Pipeline is suppose to run from there to
  


20          Albany, runs throughout the property
  


21          adjoining ours where we walk each
  


22          morning.  That's close to home, but all
  


23          of this is very close to all our homes.
  


24          Do we want this kind of industrialization
  


25          of upstate New York countryside or will







194


  


 1                        HEARING
  


 2          we move more seriously to renewable
  


 3          sources of energy?  Thank you.
  


 4                MR. RHODES:  Thank you.  Anne
  


 5          Basser, followed by Sheila Geist.
  


 6                MS. BASSER:  Thank you, I don't
  


 7          have a lot of -- I don't have any
  


 8          prepared statement but one of the major
  


 9          issues that is not spoken about very
  


10          often with fracking is the billions of
  


11          gallons of water used in the fracking
  


12          wells and how that is not usable again.
  


13          It's contaminated.  There's been a media
  


14          blackout and a gag, gag orders by the gas
  


15          industry for people who've had their
  


16          water contaminated cannot speak about it.
  


17          It's leaking out.  A lot of people are
  


18          now finding out about it, so that's just
  


19          a huge, huge issue.  Obviously our water
  


20          is pure.  It's one of the best water
  


21          systems in the whole world and why are we
  


22          going to commit suicide, as someone
  


23          mentioned earlier.  I felt my own
  


24          personal experience of just two days
  


25          without clean water and it was one of the
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 2          scariest experiences I've had and I don't
  


 3          know if any of you up there have had
  


 4          that, but there was a blackout in 2004
  


 5          and then the high-rise building I was
  


 6          living in, the water couldn't get up to
  


 7          our apartments, and it was chaos.  People
  


 8          were at the delis buying bottled water,
  


 9          and I just have a glimpse of what it
  


10          would be like if our water system was
  


11          destroyed.  People would be killing each
  


12          other for clean water, and that's not a
  


13          very crazy scenario considering what
  


14          fracking is doing to water supplies.  So
  


15          do we want to get into that?  I don't
  


16          think so.  I don't want to, and I imagine
  


17          you and your families, children,
  


18          grandchildren, don't want to get into
  


19          that situation.
  


20                So ban fracking immediately.  We
  


21          should support alternative energy that's
  


22          been around for years and just not being
  


23          developed because the gas industry and
  


24          the oil industry won't make any profit on
  


25          it.  Thank you.
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 2                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 3                Sheila Geist, followed by Ellen
  


 4          Weininger.
  


 5                MS. GEIST:  Hello, I'm Sheila
  


 6          Geist.  I'm an at-large rights activist
  


 7          and I've been walking with -- I've been
  


 8          working with United for Action --
  


 9                MR. RHODES:  United for Action, if
  


10          you can keep your mike up.
  


11                MS. GEIST:  -- United for Action
  


12          and Shut Down Indian Point Now.  Most of
  


13          what I was going to speak about has
  


14          already been said this morning and
  


15          especially the presentation to the
  


16          speakers from Minisink, Food Water Watch,
  


17          Riverkeeper, and from the Sierra Club
  


18          have given the details of the dangers of
  


19          fracking and of methane, and also the
  


20          dangers from Indian Point from nuclear
  


21          reactors all over the State.
  


22                However, I'd like to focus on a few
  


23          details that are absent in your plan and
  


24          necessary if we're going to move toward
  


25          renewables and away from the natural gas
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 2          infrastructure and the LNG ports, and the
  


 3          need to close the nuclear plant and
  


 4          arrange for the decommissioning and the
  


 5          funding of the decommissioning of these
  


 6          plants.
  


 7                To start with, we need to work
  


 8          toward the option for clean, safe energy
  


 9          and the Sierra Club spoke about the need
  


10          for investing in more wind power,
  


11          especially land wind power and off-shore
  


12          wind power.  The problems that present
  


13          themselves in this regard right now is
  


14          the fact that they're proposing an LNG
  


15          port off the Rockaways, Port Ambrose.
  


16          That is the same place that the wind farm
  


17          is being proposed off the Rockaways, and
  


18          you can't have both.  The most important
  


19          thing is we get Port Ambrose vetoed and
  


20          the governor has the ability to do that.
  


21          He doesn't need anybody else.  Christie
  


22          could do it, too, but we need to get this
  


23          LNG port which just promotes gas for
  


24          export and is a dangerous terrorist
  


25          target.  This is, you know, right off our
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 2          beaches.  To go on with the wind power we
  


 3          need to invest in the projects off
  


 4          Montauk Point and off the Rockaways.  We
  


 5          have wind power upstate.  The question is
  


 6          we need to bring it downstate and we need
  


 7          investments in the smart grid.  So this
  


 8          is the part that I didn't see in the Plan
  


 9          and where the efforts have to go and the
  


10          funding.
  


11                In terms of both wind and solar
  


12          power we have the Jacobsen plan and the
  


13          possibilities for renewables, but that
  


14          can't be implemented as such.  It means
  


15          each community has to map what their
  


16          potential is for solar and wind, and then
  


17          do it, but the question is, where will
  


18          the funding come from for mapping these
  


19          communities?  And that I think is a state
  


20          responsibility, to put a plan in place so
  


21          that the communities can map their spaces
  


22          for what is feasible and then funding of
  


23          what comes after remains to be
  


24          determined.
  


25                With regard to Indian Point,
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 2          specifically, because it's clear, it's
  


 3          old and dangerous, and it's --
  


 4          Riverkeeper said it's on a fault.  It's
  


 5          two faults, and fracking is also
  


 6          considering causing earthquakes which
  


 7          many studies have shown recently.  So we
  


 8          can't afford to have this blow up in our
  


 9          face.
  


10                I'd like to give you an experience
  


11          of my own during Hurricane Sandy.  I was
  


12          living below Harlem on the west side, so
  


13          it's high ground, so I didn't have to
  


14          worry about being flooded out at the
  


15          moment.  I could pay attention to the
  


16          weather reports, and all through the
  


17          night I heard about the storm surges.  It
  


18          came within inches of flooding the fuel
  


19          ponds at Indian Point, within inches.
  


20          That was overlooked by most people
  


21          regarding flooding in the City, so it
  


22          hasn't gotten the attention.  One of the
  


23          things we're worried about is not only
  


24          the need to close Indian Point but the
  


25          funding of the decommission.  When I was
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 2          up at the hearings at Indian Point a few
  


 3          months ago it was clear they don't have a
  


 4          plan and they even propose a generic plan
  


 5          for all the plants that they didn't have
  


 6          to decommission until 60 years later
  


 7          after they closed the Plan.  So we need
  


 8          to put a plan in place, not only closing
  


 9          the nuclear plants, but also for funding
  


10          the decommission.  The first step is to
  


11          get the fuel, used fuel into dry pass
  


12          storage.  Right now these fuel ponds are
  


13          subject to flooding.  We don't need a
  


14          terrorist to blow it up.  I mean, a
  


15          hurricane could do it.  This is something
  


16          you have to build into your energy plan,
  


17          the funding of the decommission of these
  


18          plants and not later, now.  The permits
  


19          could be withheld for some.  These plants
  


20          are old, they're dangerous, Fukushima
  


21          must have taught us something.  To make
  


22          us safe, your plan lacks enough
  


23          protection for safety and health, and
  


24          that's my major criticism and that's the
  


25          least you can do, to remedy that.  Thank
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 2          you.
  


 3                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


 4                Ellen Weininger, followed by
  


 5          Catherine Skopic.
  


 6                MS. WEININGER:  My name is Ellen
  


 7          Weininger.  I'm an environmental health
  


 8          educator and public health advocate in
  


 9          the educational outreach program for grad
  


10          students in environmental education.  Our
  


11          New York program is an environmental
  


12          health nonprofit that works closely with
  


13          leading medical and scientific experts on
  


14          environmental health issues.
  


15                I'm also a lifelong New York
  


16          resident and mother of three.  Thank you
  


17          for this.  Beyond photos and solar rays
  


18          and storm energy, efficiency, the
  


19          recently released plan to provide
  


20          specific steps for New York to meet
  


21          sustainable energy now and in the future
  


22          was not provided in the Energy Plan.
  


23          Just the opposite unfolded in the Plan's
  


24          projections with policies that are
  


25          submerged in fossil fuel developmental
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 2          production by promotion and sweeping
  


 3          expansion of fracking for methane gas and
  


 4          rolling out large-scale build-out on
  


 5          methane gas infrastructure.  This will
  


 6          result in significant increases in
  


 7          methane emissions which is in direct
  


 8          conflict with Governor's Paterson's Order
  


 9          No. 24, requiring that New York State
  


10          reduce its total greenhouse gas emissions
  


11          by 80 percent by 1990 levels.
  


12                Methane gas is not a clean fuel, it
  


13          is a fossil fuel, and you've heard that
  


14          it is 86 times more potent a greenhouse
  


15          gas than carbon dioxide over a 20
  


16          year-period, and 34 more potent over a
  


17          hundred years.  The Plan ignores this
  


18          crucial fact and offers to measure only
  


19          one single greenhouse gas, carbon
  


20          dioxide.  The Plan must include a total
  


21          reduction of greenhouse reductions with
  


22          benchmarks at consistent intervals and
  


23          must exclude further advancement in its
  


24          expansion of fracking for methane gas and
  


25          the build-out of its infrastructure in
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 2          New York or anywhere.
  


 3                Recent studies show significant
  


 4          methane leaks in existing aging
  


 5          infrastructure in Washington D.C.,
  


 6          Boston, and in New York City.  And you've
  


 7          heard about Dr. Mark Jacobsen's recently
  


 8          -- last year's peer-reviewed report with
  


 9          a team of scientists and comments that
  


10          provided a road map in New York to reach
  


11          100 percent renewables by 2030.  This
  


12          wind, water and sunlight plan provides a
  


13          roadmap to potential for portions and
  


14          amount of power provided by each
  


15          renewable resource and its footprint.
  


16          These energy solutions are already on the
  


17          shelf and meet can meet our energy needs
  


18          by 2030.  The report explains the
  


19          technical capacity that we have, the
  


20          economic feasibility that we have and the
  


21          benefits of the renewable energy
  


22          infrastructure that can transform New
  


23          York State by eliminating dependence on
  


24          polluting fossil fuels.  This means
  


25          reduction in greenhouse gas emissions,
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 2          energy independence and security, job
  


 3          growth, improve water and air quality,
  


 4          protection of public health, lower
  


 5          health-care costs, and stabilization of
  


 6          energy costs.
  


 7                This plan, this wind, water and
  


 8          sunlight plan would also reduce New
  


 9          York's electric power demand by 37
  


10          percent.  Just last week, Dr. Jacobsen
  


11          released the 50-state roadmap for this
  


12          plan.
  


13                New York cannot afford to bear the
  


14          burden of public health environment and
  


15          economic impact of increased greenhouse
  


16          gas emissions, water contamination and
  


17          air water pollution from the unwise and
  


18          unnecessary development and production of
  


19          methane gas and its hazardous
  


20          infrastructure and pipeline and polluting
  


21          compressor stations.  According to Mount
  


22          Sinai School of Medicine's recently
  


23          released report, New York State's
  


24          Children and the Environment,
  


25          environmentally-mediated disease
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 2          continues to spiral and take a huge toll
  


 3          on our most vulnerable population, our
  


 4          children.  Asthma has tripled in the past
  


 5          three decades and it's leading cause of
  


 6          hospitalization.  Hit affects 250,000
  


 7          children.  Air pollutants are known to
  


 8          contribute to that.  Birth defects are
  


 9          now the leading cause of infant death.
  


10          Birth defects have actually doubled
  


11          frequency.  Developmental disorders and
  


12          other learning disabilities affect one in
  


13          every six children.  Primary brain cancer
  


14          among children has increased in incidents
  


15          by nearly 40 percent from 1975 to 2004,
  


16          according to the National Cancer
  


17          Institute.  Childhood leukemia has
  


18          increased in incidents by over 40
  


19          percent.  Benzene and other solvents are
  


20          linked, and these are substances that are
  


21          found in the entire life cycle of shale
  


22          gas development and production.
  


23                According to the World Health
  


24          Organization, environmental exposures are
  


25          responsible for 35 percent of all
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 2          childhood disease and death worldwide.
  


 3          This all comes at a hefty price on
  


 4          families, schools, communities, health
  


 5          institutions and our society.  A recent
  


 6          analysis estimates that the cost of
  


 7          environmentally-mediated disease in New
  


 8          York's children alone leads up to over 4
  


 9          billion annually.  That figure accounts
  


10          for children and does not even begin to
  


11          factor in the adult population.
  


12                We've seen that recent proposal for
  


13          expansion of a pipeline by Spectra Energy
  


14          calculates that compressor station
  


15          emissions would include 81.4 tons per
  


16          year of nitrogen oxide, sulfur dioxide,
  


17          4.1 tons per year, volatile organic
  


18          compounds, 5.9 tons a year, that's just
  


19          one compressor station for one year.
  


20          Fives expanded compressor stations and
  


21          25 expanded metering stations, plus two
  


22          new metering stations on just one
  


23          pipeline, just do the math.  Start
  


24          multiplying the annual emissions per
  


25          station per year by all the stations that
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 2          currently exist, the ones about to be
  


 3          approved and those approved, plus the
  


 4          promotion of further expansion by this
  


 5          Draft Plan.  Cumulative impact of the
  


 6          entire life cycle of methane gas and its
  


 7          production and infrastructure are ignored
  


 8          in this plan, yet significantly increases
  


 9          greenhouse gas emissions.  Public health
  


10          and economic impacts are also absent from
  


11          the draft.  Significantly increased
  


12          exposure to polluted air, water,
  


13          industrialization of communities, toxic
  


14          emissions from industrial plants to
  


15          processing, storing and distributing LNG
  


16          and petroleum natural gas, station
  


17          pipelines, fueling stations, fuel pads,
  


18          truck traffic, higher level of radon gas
  


19          cause lung cancer in nonsmokers, toxic
  


20          radioactive fracking waste and its
  


21          constituent disposing landfills, waste
  


22          water treatment plant on roads and farm
  


23          land are not addressed.  Even though the
  


24          consequence of increasing more greenhouse
  


25          gas will mean greater toxic exposure
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 2          across New York State and elsewhere,
  


 3          whether or not fracking is permitted in
  


 4          New York.  Toxic radioactive fracking
  


 5          waste produced in billions of gallons per
  


 6          year has no safety disposal plan.  In
  


 7          fact, it poses an immediate public health
  


 8          threat even with New York's de facto ban
  


 9          on fracking.  Many New York counties
  


10          currently use this waste, toxic
  


11          radioactive waste by-products for
  


12          road-spreading applications, accepted in
  


13          landfills and waste water treatment
  


14          facilities.  Contamination from radium
  


15          226 and radium 228 can last thousands of
  


16          years.  Road-spreading applications,
  


17          truck accidents, leaks, spills; water
  


18          supplies are at risk from run-off,
  


19          containment encrosion and rupture.  Waste
  


20          water treatment plants can be permanently
  


21          damaged by these toxic chemicals, and
  


22          food supplies are at risk from the
  


23          run-off, contaminated water supplies,
  


24          radioactive.  More fracking means more
  


25          toxic radioactive waste, with no safe
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 2          disposal options.
  


 3                In closing, we need clean air to
  


 4          breathe, clean water to drink, and
  


 5          uncontaminated food to eat.  The current
  


 6          Draft of the New York State Energy Plan
  


 7          with promotion of methane gas
  


 8          development, and production and
  


 9          widespread expansion of its
  


10          infrastructure proceeds.  Greenhouse
  


11          gases will continue to escalate.
  


12          Contamination of our precious natural
  


13          resources and health are a certainty.
  


14          This Plan is unacceptable and New York
  


15          State can do better.  We have the tools
  


16          and the solutions on the shelf now to
  


17          reach 100 renewables by 2030.
  


18          Renewables, energy efficiency and
  


19          conservation, what's missing in this plan
  


20          is the political will to do so.  Thank
  


21          you.
  


22                MR. RHODES:  Thank you very much.
  


23                Catherine Skopic.
  


24                MS. SKOPIC:  Thank you for holding
  


25          this hearing, and I'm glad I was able to
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 2          join you at 1 o'clock.
  


 3                My name is Katherine Skopic and I
  


 4          am a mother, citizen, member of IMAK, and
  


 5          The Coalition of New Yorkers Against
  


 6          Fracking, and I'm the Anglican
  


 7          representative to the United Nations.
  


 8                Carbon free, nuclear free.  Never
  


 9          in human history have we faced a moment
  


10          such as this.  The possible extinction of
  


11          life due to human activity, the burning
  


12          of fossil fuels; the threat is real and
  


13          impending unless we change our ways.  We
  


14          have caused the problem and we can
  


15          prevent it from getting worse.  Why would
  


16          an intelligent civilization not do this?
  


17                Renewable energy sources such as
  


18          wind, solar, both thermal and photo
  


19          voltaic, hydro, geothermal, tidal, wave,
  


20          in-conduit hydro can provide intermittent
  


21          and nonintermittent energy to supply our
  


22          home and industrial energy needs.  The
  


23          technology exists.  More and more
  


24          manufacturing, installation and financing
  


25          entities are coming on board.  In light
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 2          of recent extreme weather events, more
  


 3          and more people are demanding renewables.
  


 4          Always seem to lack in this picture is
  


 5          the political will.
  


 6                That's why I'm here today, that's
  


 7          why everyone else was here today:  to
  


 8          encourage the political will to
  


 9          transition to renewable energy, to
  


10          encourage our New York State government
  


11          to move to renewable energy.  I can't
  


12          imagine there was a person in this room
  


13          who doesn't know that this is the morally
  


14          right thing to do.
  


15                Water is one of the most important
  


16          reasons to move to renewables.  The
  


17          process of horizontal slick water
  


18          fracturing uses enormous amounts of water
  


19          making it permanently unusable for life,
  


20          and at the same time threatens existing
  


21          reservoirs, aquifers and wells with
  


22          poisoning.  We just have to look to our
  


23          west to see the impact of no water.  It's
  


24          happening right now, and such
  


25          irresponsible extraction processes
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 2          destroy this precious, life-giving
  


 3          resource of water.  No responsible
  


 4          civilization would knowingly do this.
  


 5          It's short and long-term suicide.
  


 6                Accidents from fossil fuel
  


 7          extraction and transportation abound, be
  


 8          it in off-shore drilling, tanker
  


 9          accidents, pipeline explosions or train
  


10          derailments.  People are being killed,
  


11          and when any of this fuel is burned, we
  


12          all die, slowly or fast through extreme
  


13          weather events such as Sandy, forest
  


14          fires, drought, extreme heat and cold,
  


15          rising sea levels, forest loss, ocean
  


16          acidification, disease, global heating.
  


17          Future generations won't stand a chance.
  


18                You know the urgency of the
  


19          problem.  We urge you to act.  Initiate a
  


20          full and complete renewable energy plan
  


21          for New York State now.  Thank you.
  


22                MR. RHODES:  Thank you.  May I just
  


23          check whether Helen Bentley is in the
  


24          room?  John Iglietta, Michael Jay?
  


25          Morgan Montana, and Merrill Maceldonery.
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 2                Are there any further speakers?
  


 3          Then seeing none, I'd like to extend
  


 4          thanks on behalf of all of us at Joan Jay
  


 5          College.  On behalf of the state Energy
  


 6          Plan Board, we've taken the development
  


 7          of this draft Energy Plan with great
  


 8          seriousness.  It's extremely important we
  


 9          hear comments and questions like yours as
  


10          we develop the final State Energy Plan.
  


11          You've given us much to think about and
  


12          made many excellent points.  Please
  


13          remember that written comments can be
  


14          submitted on our website up until April
  


15          30 at energyplan.ny.gov.
  


16                With that, I adjourn this session.
  


17          Thank you again.
  


18                (Time noted:  2:25 p.m.)
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24
  


25







214


  
  
   1                 C E R T I F I C A T E
  


 2
  


 3   STATE OF NEW YORK )
  


 4                     )ss.:
  


 5   COUNTY OF NASSAU  )
  


 6
  


 7               I, CHARLENE ANCI, a Notary Public
  


 8   within and for the State of New York, do
  


 9   hereby certify:
  


10               That foregoing hearing is a true
  


11   record of the proceedings.
  


12               I further certify that I am not
  


13   related to any of the parties to this action
  


14   by blood or marriage; and that I am in no way
  


15   interested in the outcome of this matter.
  


16               IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto
  


17   set my hand this 28th day of February, 2013.
  


18
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20
  


21
  


22
  


23
  


24    
   ------------------


25   CHARLENE ANCI
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